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WALNUT CREEK
California Bird,, Suite 750
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

925.274.0190

iVlAC!AS GINI ~ O’CONNELLLLP
Certified Public Accountants & M~nagement Cc~r~UJtahf~s

City Council
City of San Jos&, California

Independent Auditor’s Report

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the.aggregate remaining fund information of the City of San Jos6,
California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the city’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these, financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United states of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Th0s~ standards require that we pl~nand
perform the audit to obtain, reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control Over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that areaPpr~wiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
exPressi.ng an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial .reporting.
Accordingly, we exoress no such opinion. An audit als0 includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures, in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles

:used: and signifi~:ant estimates made by ~ana~iementl aS ~ell aS~Vaiuafing"the 0~e~all financial
statement presentation, we believe that our audit provides a reas0.nab!e b~.s.is f.0r 0ur.oPinions.

In o~r opinion, thefinancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fuad information of the City of San Jos&, California, as of June 30, 2009,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in: Note I.E: to the financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution
Remediation Obligations, on July 1 2008.

As: discussed in Note IV.D. tothe financial statements, on July 24, 2009, the State of California passed
legislation that will require payments totaling $75.0 million in property tax increment revenues to the
Supplemental EdUCational Revenue Augmentation Fund on May 10, 2010 and May t0, 2011. A class-
action lawsuit has been filed that includes a challenge to the constitutionality of the State’s revenue shift.
While the ultimate outcome of the lawsuit cannot presently be determined, if unsuccessful, the payments
required Under the State legislation are material and will require significant modifications ~o the San Jos~
Redevelopment Agency’s operations and initiatives.

www;mgocp~,�om ............. An Independent Member Of the BOO SeldmanAIliance



In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 4, 2009, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of
our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis; the schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances - budget and actual for the General Fund and the Housing Activities Fund; and the
schedules of funding progress listed in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and do not express an opinion on
it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and schedule of revenues and expenditures of passenger facility charges are presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and the Passenger Facility Charges
Guide, respectively, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected tothe auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Certified Public Accountants

Walnut Creek, California
November 4, 2009
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’ Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the City of San Jose’s activities
and financial performance for the fiscal year ended J,une 30, 2009. We encourage readers to read the
MD&A in conjunction with the basic financial statements that immediately follow it, with the letter of
transmittal at the beginning of the Introductory Section, and with other portions of this Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand dollars
and one tenth of a percent.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total assets exceed total liabilities at June 30, 2009 by $6.416 billion (net assets). Of this amount,
unrestricted net assets of $372.2 million may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to.
citizens and creditors, In addition, restric!ed net assets of $757.8 million are dedicated to specific
purposes and $5.286 billion is invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Total net assets decreased by $376.5 million or 5.5 Percent during 2008-2009 from $6.793 billion to
$6.416 billion. Depreciation expense of $396.4 million accounts for this decrease. Excluding
depreciation, net assets increased by $19.9 million.

Governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1.416 billion at June 30, 2009,
which are $88.0 million or 5.9 percent less than the June 30, 2008 balances. Decreases in fund
balances for the General Fund ($65.9 million), Special Assessment Districts ($5.5 million), and other
nonmajor fuhds ($100.9 million) were offset by the fund balance increases Of the Redevelopment
Agency ($6.7 million), Housing Activities ($38,4 million) and San Jose Financing Authority Debt
Service ($39.3 million). Unreserved fund balance comprises $678.5 million or 47.9 percent of
combined .governmental fund balances at June 30, 2009 and is available to meet the City’s current
and future spending needs at its discretion.

Unreserved fund balance for the General Fund is $178.8 million at June 30, 2009 and represents
24.9 percent of total General Fund expenditures during 2008-2009.

Total long-term obligations increased by $142.9 million during 2008-2009 to $5.272 billion at June 30,
2009, an increase of 2.8 percent over the amount at June 30, 2008. Primary factors leading to this
increase during the year include the issuance of $117.3 million of Redevelopment Agency tax
allocation bonds to finance multiple redevelopment projects within ’the San Jose Redevelopment
Agency’s Merged Area Redevelopment Project, an addition of a $50.0’ million Bank of New York
Housing Set-Aside Term Loan to finance affordable housing programs, and the issuance of $125.0
million of City of San Jose Financing Authority lease revenue bonds to refund prior bonds and
commercial paper related to the Civic Center, Civic Center Garage, and the Ice Center Expansion
projects. These additions to long-term debt were offset by $88.1 million of refunded City of San Jose
Financing Authority lease revenue bonds and $88,8 million in principal reductions for governmental
activities,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis provides an introduction to the City of San Jose’s basic financial statements
which are comprised of four components:

G~vernment-wide Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information

In addition, this report also contains other supplementary information.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements provide readers with a broad overview of the City of San
Jos~’s finances in a manner similar to that of a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all assets and liabilities and reports the difference
between the two as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how’the net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. Examples
include revenues pertaining to uncollected taxes and expenses pertaining to earned but unused vacation
and sick leave.

Both of these government-wide financial statements address functions that principally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) and other functions that intend to recover
all or in part a portion of their costs throug~ user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the City of San Jos~ include general government, public safety, capital
maintenance, community services, and sanitation. Its business-type activities include airpQrt, wastewater~
treatment, water supply, a~d various parking management operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the primary governmer~t of the City of San
Jos~, but also a legally separate redevelopment agency and three legally separate financing authorities
for which the City is financially accountable.

Fund Financial S~atements

Fund Financial Statements report information about groupings of related accounts used to maintain
control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives. As do other state and local
governments, the City of San Jos~ uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal
compliance. Each City fund falls into one of three categories: .qovernmental funds, proprietary funds, or
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating the City of San Jos6’s capacity to finance its programs in the near future.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures
and char~ges in fund balances present information separately for the General Fund, Redevelopment
Agency, Housing Activities, Special Assessment Districts, ,and the San Jos6 Financing Authority Debt
Service, which are all classified as major funds. These statements also report several individual
governmental funds classified as nonmajor funds such as special revenue, debt service, and capital
projects funds which are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of
the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The City of San Jose adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Housing Activities.
This report includes budgetary comparison statements to demonstrate compliance with these budgets.

proprietary funds generally account for services charged to external or internal customers through fees.
Proprietary funds ’provide the same type of information as shown in the government-wide financial
statements for business-type activities, only in more detail. The City of San Jos6 accounts for its airport,
wastewater treatment, water supply, and parking management operations in proprietary funds..

Fiduciary funds account for resources held for the benefit of City of San Jos6 employees and outside
parties in a similar manner as that for proprietary funds. Pension plan trust funds, prig/ate purpose trust
funds, and agency funds are reported as fiduciary funds. The government-wide financial statements do
not include fiduciary funds as their resources are not available to support City of San Jos6 programs.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information includes the budgetary schedules for General Fund and Housing
Activities. In addition, pension and other postemployment healthcare schedules present the Cityof San
Jos6’s progress towards.funding its obligation to provide future pension and other postemployment
healthcare benefits for its active and retired employees.

Combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier provide information for
nonmajor governmental funds and fiduciary funds and are 3resented immediately following the required
supplementary information.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Analysis of net assets: Asnoted earlier, net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. For the City of San Jos~, assets exceeded liabilities by $6.416 billion at the June 30,
2009 close of the current fiscal year.

The following table is a condensed summary of the City’s net assets for governmental and business-type
activities:

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009 and 2008

(in thousands)

Governmental               Business-type
Activities                   Activities                    Totals

FY 2009 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2008
Assets:
Current and other assets ........ $ 1,844,380 1,951,906 990,886 1,112,121 2,835,266 3,064,027
Capital assets ...................... 7,631,580 7,806,763 1,941,182 1,621,811 9,572,762 9,428,574

Total assets ................ 9,475,960 9,758,669 2,932,068 2,733,932 12,408,028 12,492,601

Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities ..... 293,019 301,689 426,657 268,948 719,676 570,637
Long-term liabilities ............... 4,095,351 3,929,063 1,176,7t9 1,200,114 5,272,070 5,129,177

Total liabilities ............. 4,388,370 4,230,752 1,603,376 1,469,062 5,991,746 5,699,814

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt ............ 4,400,552 4,769,191 885,744 823,223 5,286,296 5,592,414
Restricted net assets ............. 654,124 662,863 103,694 160,153 757,818 823,016
Unrestricted net assets .......... 32,914 95,863 339 254 281 494 372,168 377,357

Total net assets ........... $ 5,087,590 5,527,917 1,328,692 1,264,870 6,416,282 6,792,787

At June 30, 2009, the City of San Jos6 reported positive balances in all three categories of net assets.

At $5.286 billion, investment in capital assets (infrastructure, land, buildings, other improvements,
vehicles, and equipment, less outstanding debt used to acquire them) comprise 82.4 percent of the City
of San Jos6’s total net assets. Since these assets are not liquid and they provide services to citizens, they
are not available for future spending.

Of the total net assets, $372.2 million or 5.8 percent represents unrestricted net assets available for
meeting the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Governmental activities show a balance
of $32.9 million in unrestricted net assets and business-type activities show a balance of $339.3 million.
An additional portion of the City’s net assets representing $757.8 million or 11.8 percent of the total are
subject to legal restrictions on their use.

During 2008-2009, the City of San Jos6’s total net assets decreased by $376.5 million or 5.5 percent.
Although the increase in City expenses is only 4.5% this year, compared to 8.3% in the prior year, the
unprecedented downturn in the economy has resulted in declining revenues that were not able to keep
pace with the increase in expenses.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Notable changes in the statement of net assets between June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008 include:

Capital. assets increased by $144.2 million or 1.5 percent Compared to the prior fiscal year.
Governmental capital assets decreased by $175.2 million, .but were offset by an increase in
business-type capital assets of $319.4 million. The decrease in governmental capital assets
resulted from asset additions of $t86.0 million less $350.2 million in depreciation expense for
major infrastructure and other assets and asset deletions of $10.9 million. The increase in
business-type capital assets was due primarily to the continued Norman Y. Mineta San Jose
International Airport (Airport) expansion construction projects in the amount of $344.2 million
which was partially offset by business-type activities depreciation expense of $46.2 million.

Current and other assets decreased by $228.8 million or 7.5 percent due to a $107.5 million
decrease for governmental activities and a $121.2 million decrease for business-type activities.
The decreases primarily resulted from reduced cash balances as governmental activities bond
proceeds were spent .on parks, libraries, and public safety bond projects, and business-type
activities bond proceeds were spent on the Airport’s expansion construction projects.

Long-term liabilities increased by a net amount of $142.9 million or 2.8 percent principally due to
"the issuance of Redevelopment Agency tax allocation bonds to finance redevelopment projects,
City of San Jose General Obligation Bonds to improve public safety, and San Jose Financing
Authority Lease Revenue Bonds to refund prior bonds and commercial paper related to the Civic
Center, Civic Center Garage and Ice Center Expansion project. In addition, the Redevelopment
Agency had an ’addition of $50.0 million Housing Set-Aside Term Loan to finance affordable
housing programs.

Current and other liabilities for the City increased by $149.0 million or 26.1 percent. This increase
was primarily due to $137.3 million increase in business type short term commercial paper, and
accounts payable of $16.0 million mainly in connection with the Airport expansion project. In
addition, other increases include accrued liabilities for year-end accrual of salaries and wages
payable of $12.2 million, unearned revenue of $9.8 million mainly related to receipt of unearned
sales taxes, interest payable of $7.8 million related to increases in outstanding debt, and due to
outside agencies of $7.7 million representing an increase in tax increments due from the
Redevelopment Agency to the County of SantaClara. Total increases were offset by a $36.2
million reduction in governmental short-term commercial paper which was refinanced by the
issuance of City of San Jos6 Financing Authority Series 2008B Bonds and miscellaneous
decreases in advances,deposits, and reimbursable credits and other liabilities of $5.8 million.

Unrestricted net assets for governmental activities decreased by $62.9 million or 65.7 percent
resulting in a $32.9 million unrestricted net assets balance at year-end. A significant part of this
reduction in unrestricted net assets is the result of the continued recognition of the City!s net other
postemployment benefit obligation (NOPEBO) that reduced net assets by an.additional $52.6
million in 2009 after recording an initial NOPEBO of $66.7 million in the prior year.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Analysis of activities: The following table indicates the changes in net assets for governmental and
business-type activities:

Statement of Activities
For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

(in thousands)

Governmental             Business-type
Activities                 Activities                 "Totals

FY 2009 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2008

Total revenues ....................................... 1,350,981

Rev e nue s:
Program revenues:

Fees, fines, and charges for services ........... $ 297,788 325,853 327,374 303,480 625,162 629,333
Operating grants and contributions ............... 115,965 94,357 9,326 8,444 125,291 102,801
Capital grants and contributions ................... 26,306 48,075 18,618 9,162 44,924 57,237

General revenues:
Property taxes .. ........................................ 507,273 495,731 507,273 495,731
Utility taxes .............................................. 93,619 82,255 93,619 82,255
Franchise fees .......................................... 41,067 41,064 41,067 41,064
Transient occupancy taxes .......................... 19,261 23,900 .... 19,261 23,900
Sales taxes shared revenue ........................ 127,802 149,500 127,802 149,500
State of California in-lieu ............................. 8,839 9,244 8,839 9,244
Business license tax .................................. 38,597 39,901 38,597 39,901
Unrestricted interest and investment earnings. 34,092 65,721 18,434 29,232 52,526 94,953
Other revenue .......................................... 40,372 53,420 40,372 53,420

1,429,021 373 752 350,318 1,724,733 1,779,339

Expenses:
General government ..................................
Public safety ............................................
Capital maintenance ..................................
Community services ..................................
Sanitation ................................................
Interest and fiscal charges ..........................
Norman Y. Mineta San Jos~ International

Airport .................................................. -
Wastewater Treatment System ....................
Municipal Water System .............................
Parking System ........................................

Total expenses ...................................... 1,796,593
Excess (deficiency) before transfers (445,612)
Transfers .............................................. 5,285
Change in net assets .............................. (440,327)

Net assets at beginning of year 5,527,917
Net assets at end of year ............................ $ 5,087,590

172,077 142,886 172,077 142,886
463,196 476,570 463,196 476,570
595,,547 569,636 595,547 569,636
276,396 211,511 276,396 211,511
122,705 113,525 122,705 113,525
166,672 170,852 166,672 170,852

1,684,980
(255,959)

9,383
(2,~6,576)

5,.774,493
5,527,917

140,641 153,927 140,641 153,927
126,788 134,882 126,788 134,882
25,416 26,017 25,416 26,017
11,800 10,127 11,800 10,127

304,645 324,953 2,101,238 2,009,933
69,107 25,365 (376,505) (230,594)
’(5,285) (9,383)
63,822 15,982 (376,505) (230,594)

1,264,870 1,248,888 6,792,787 7,023,381’
1,328,692 1,264,870 6,416,282 6,792,787



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

~Governmental activities: Net assets for governmental activities decreased by $440.3 million or 8.0
percent during 2008-2009 from $5.528 billion to $5.088 billion. Total revenues decreased at a rate of 5.5
percent compared to expenses increasing at a rate of 6.6 percent. During 2007-2008, revenues and
expenses increased at rates of 9.1 percent and 7.1 percent, respectively.

Significant elements of the decrease in net assets for governmental activities from June 30, 2008 .to June
30, 2009 are as follows:

Contributing to the decrea,se in total revenues, Capital grants and contributions decreased by
$21,8 million or 45.3 percent principally due to a reduction of capital donations from developers.
Operating Grants and Contributions, on the other hand, increased by $21.6 million or 22.9
percent primarily due to increases in State and Federal grants for street maintenance, recognition
of developer parkland in-lieu fees, and developer revenue from low-income housing projects.
Fees, fines and charges for services also .decreased by $28.1 million or 8.6 percent due
principally to reduced interest income on developer loans and lower developer in-lieu fees, plus
the passage of Measure J, which ended the Emergency Communications System Support Fee
(ECSS) and. replaced it with a telephone line tax that is now classified as a general revenue.

The overall decrease in interest and investment earnings of $31.6 million or 48.1 percent was due
to lower cash balances combined with a lower interest yield. The pre-payment of theCity’s
contribution to its two retirement plans in August 2008 along with a drop in revenues and an
increase in expenditures during 2008-2009 resulted in a significantly lower cash balance. The
City’s annualized investment interest yield for the General Fund also dropped from 4.1 percent as
of June 30, 2008 to 2.7 percent as of June 30, 2009, reflecting the lower interest rate environment
experienced during the year.

Due to lower consumer spending habits, sales taxes decreased significantly b,~ $21.7 million or
14.5 percent from the previous year and a loss of businesses due to the economic downturn
resulted in a decrease of $1.3 million or 3.3 percent in business license tax revenues. In addition,
transient occupancy tax decreased $4.6 million or 19.4 percent. The 2008-2009 Adopted Budget
assumed a $14.9 million or 4% increase in transient occupancy tax, however actual revenues
ended the year approximately 20% below the 2007-2008 collection level. For the fourteen largest
hotels, the average room rate fell from $142 to $130, and the occupancy rate fell from 62.1% to
53.8%. Other revenue experienced a decrease of $13.0 million or 24.4 percent primarily due to a
reduction of housing development in the City and the resultant decrease in developer in-lieu fees
and one-time revenue received in the prior year for the Redevelopment Agency’s share in
refinancing of a hotel development loan.

General government expenses increased by $29.2 million or 20.4 percent between years
primarily due to a $12.2 million increase in the City’s underfunding of the current year other
postemployment benefits annual required contribution ($19.3 million) compared to the prior year
unfunded liability contribution ($7,1 million), and increases in General Fund expenditures as
explained in more detail in the governmental section later in this document ($17.0 million).

Public Safety expenses decreased by $13.4 million or 2.8 percent between years primarily due to
a $33.8 million current year expense for other postemployment benefits annual required
contributions compared to the prior year expense of $50.7 million. This $16.9 million decrease in
expense for other postemployment benefits annual required contributions was somewhat offset
by a $3.5 million increase in Public Safety expenditures primarily reflecting higher wage and
benefits costs.

Community services expenses increased by $64.9 million or 30.7 percent due mainly to a $46.1
million increase in the loan loss reserve for receivables from developers of various housing
projects in the current year compared to a prior year decrease in the loan loss reserve of $16.7
million.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Depreciation expense for infrastructure and other capital assets was $350.2 million, an increase
of 1.3 I~ercent.

Somewhat offsetting these decreases was an increase in Property tax revenue of $11.5 million or
2.3 percent due to modest growth in secured property tax assessments related to both the
residential and commercial sectors, and an increase in utility taxes of $11.4 million primarily due
to the recharacterization of the ECSS fee to a telephone line tax as mentioned above.

Revenues 2009

Unrestricted Interest and investment
earnings

Business license fee 2.5%
2.9%

State of California In-lieu
0.7%    -~

Bales taxes shared revenue
9.5%

Transient occupancy taxes
1.4%

Franchise fees
3,0%

Olher revenue
3.0%

Utility taxes
6,9%

Property taxes
37,6%

Fees, fines, and charges for
se~ces
22.0%

OperatIng grants & conbibutl0ns
8.6%

Capital grants & c0nWbuL]ons
1

The chart above shows the principal components of 2008-2009 revenue sources for governmental
activities. Of the $1.351 billion in total revenues generated by governmental activities, 69.1 percent is
attributable to three categories: property taxes (37.6 percent); fees, fines, a.nd charges for services (22.0
percent); and sales taxes (9.5 percent). Although the overall percentage of revenues to total revenues for
these categories is somewhat consistent with 2007-2008 (68.0 percent), the individual categories
experienced mixed results in 2009. While fees, fines, and charges for seryices remained relatively stable
as a percent of total revenues, Property taxes increased 2.9 percent, from 34.7 percent in 2007-2008 to
37.6 percent in 2008-2009, and sales taxes decreased 1.0 percent, from 10.5 percent in 2007-2008 to 9.5
percent in 2008-2009.

The chart on the following page shows the principal categories of 2008-2009 expenses for governmental
activities. Of the $1.796 billion in total expenses generated by governmental activities, the categories
accounting for 74.3 percent of the total are: capital maintenance (33.t percent); public safety (25.8
percent); and community services (15.4 percent). Public safety’s percentage of overall expenses
declined from 28.3 percent in 2007-2008 to 25.8 percent in 2008-2009 due mainly to the lower expense
for net other Postemployment benefits contributions of $33.8 million as compared to the $50.7 million
expense for the contributions in 2007-2008. Expenses for community services increased by 2.8 percent
from the prior year mainly due to a $46.1 million increase in the loan loss reserve for receivables from
developers of various housing projects in the current year compared to a prior year decrease in the loan
loss reserve of $16.7 million.
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Expenses 2009

Public Safety
25.8%

Interest and fiscal charges
9.3%

Sanitation
6.8%

Community Services
15.4%

General Government
9.6%

Capital Maintenance
33.1%

Business-type activities: Business-type activities net assets increased by $63.8 million or 5.0 percent to
$1.329 billion during 2008-2009.

The notable components of the increase in net assets for business-type activities during 2008-2009 are:

The Norman Y. Mineta San Jos6 International Airport (Airport) net assets increased by $24.2
million or 5.6 percent. The Airport incurred an operating loss of $9.8 million in 2008-2009, a
decrease of $17.6 million or 64.3 percent compared to the 2007-2008 I~ss of $27.3 million.
Despite the decline in passenger traffic, operating revenues increased by $1,1 million or .9
percent reflecting higher rental and concessions revenue as a result of rate Increases. Overall
operating expenses of $125.7 million in 2008-2009 were 11.6 percent lower compared to 2007-
2008, highlighted by a $9.8 million decrease in operating and maintenance costs due to a lower
allocation of other postemployment benefits (OPEB) expenses and a decrease in expenses
pertaining to the noise attenuation program. Although there was a slight increase in personnel
expenses, it was mitigated by the elimination of 51 positions at mid year. Nonoperating revenues
exceeded nonoperating expenses in 2008-2009 by $20.9 million, a decrease of $14,9 million or
41.7 percent from 2007-2008. The net decrease is mainly due to a decrease in investment
income of $7.3 million, which is due to the decrease" in market interest rate in the current year.
The results of operations reflects the combined effect.of three years of continued enplanement
decreases and potential for further erosion of air service and weakness in concession revenue
that coi~ld further pressure the Airport’s cost profile going forward.

Wastewater Treatment System net assets increased by $40.5 million or 6.1 percent from $662.1
million to $702.6 million. Operating revenues increased $26.3 million or 21.0 percent from $125.1
million in 2007-2008 to $151.4 million in 2008-2009 primarily due to a 15% sewer rate increase,
effective July1, 2008, and increased contributions from the City of Santa Clara and participating
agencies to the Treatment Plant’s costs. ’Total operating expenses decreased by $8.2 million or
6.2 percent primarily due to recording lower OPEB expense in the current year than was recorded
in the prior year. Net nonoperating revenues decreased by $2.7 million attributable primarily to a
decrease in interest and investment earnings, Capital contributions increased by $1.3 million
mainly due to an increase in the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation grants for construction of
was.tewater recycling activities. Transfers-out of $4.2 million in 2008-2009 consisted primarily of
transfers to the General Fund for in-lieu taxes and City Hall debt service payments.
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Municipal Water System net assets increased by $0.3 million or 0.4 percent from $82.4 million to
$82.7 million. Operating revenues of $25.8’ million increased by $1.7 million or 7.2 percent from
$24.0 million due mainly to a nearly 9% potable and recycled water sales revenue index rate
increase effective July 1, 2008. In addition, operating expenses of $25.3 million decreased $.6
million or 2.1 percent from $25.8 million primarily due to lower operations and maintenance costs
a~ a result of a reduction in program expenditures attributed to economic factors.

Parking System net assets decreased by $1.2 million or 1.3 percent from $91.7 million to $90.5
million. Operating revenues decreased slightly by $.076 million or .7 percent due primarily to
lower activity at parking facilities as a result of the economic downturn. Operating expenses
increased by $1.7 million or 16.5 percent reflecting higher operations and maintenance costs and
increased staffing costs due to the filling of vacant positions.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accountinq to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds

The City of San Jos6’s governmental funds provide’ information about near-term inflows, outflows, and
resources balances available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the City!s financial
requirements for its programs and activities. In particular, unreserved fund balance at the fiscal year end
may serve as a useful measure of a government’s capacity for spending in future years. Governmental
funds reported by the City of San Jos6 idclude the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service
Funds, and Capital Project Funds.

As of June 30, 2009, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $1.416 billion, a
decrease of $88.0 million or 5.9 percent compared to the balance at June 30, 2008: Unreserved fund
balance at $678.5 million Constitutes 47.9 percent of the combined balances and is available for spending
at theCity’s discretion. The $737.3 million remainder of the governmental fund balances is reserved to
indicate that it is not available for new spending because the following portions have been committed to
particular purposes:

¯ $321.3 million for advances, loans, and other assets that are long-term in nature and thus do not
represent currently available resources;

.̄ $213.0 million for contractual commitments of 2008-2009 carried into fiscal year 2009-2010;

¯ $202.4 million for debt service payable in fiscal year 2009-2010;

¯ $0.6 million for restricted cash commitments.

Revenues and other financing sources for governmental functions totaled approximately $2.030 billion in
2008-2009, a decrease of $76.5 million or 3.8 percent from 2007-2008 primarily due to lower proceeds
from long-term debt, a significant reduction in investment income due to reduced interest rates, and lower
sales tax collections.

General Fund: The General Fund is the chief operating fund (if the City of San Jos& At June 30, 2009,
its unreserved fund balance is $178.8 million or 84.7 percent of the $211.2 million total General Fund
balance. Comparing both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures may
be useful as a measure of the General Fund’s capacity to liquidate future obligations. At June 30, 2009,
unreserved fund balance represents 24.9 percent of total General Fund expendi.tures of $719.4 million,
while total fund balance represents 29.4 percent. This measure of financial health shows a decline from
the prior fiscal year. At June. 30, 2008, the same measures were 32.7 percent and 39.6 percent
respectively of $699.1 million in 2007-2006 expenditures.
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As anticipated at the beginning of the year, key revenue sources in 2008-09 were not sufficient to meet all
expenditure obligations. However, the use of reserves and one-time revenues offset by net transfers into
the General Fund resulted in a $65.9 million or 23.8 percent decrease to the General Fund ending fund
balance during 2008-2009.

In 2008-2009, General Fund revenues of $663.1 milliof] were $31.3 million or 4.5 pe.rcent lower than
2007-2008 revenues of $694.4 million. General Fund revenue declined across all categories with the
exception of a $3.6 million increase in intergovernmental revenue, which increased due to a slight
increase in grants and reimbursement revenues principally related to a State grant for the Literacy,
Enrichment, Art, Recreation, Nurture and Students (LEARNS) after school programs, State
reimbursements for fire strike teams expenditures, and federal super urban area se, curity initiative funding
for the Interoperable communications system project set to replace the City’s existing emergency dispatch
analog communication system with a new digital microwave system. The largest decrease was in the
interest and other income categories ($2.1.5 million) due primarily’to a significant decrease in investment
income ($18.6 million) from decreasing interest rates and lower cash balances combined with various
miscellaneous decreases ($2.9 million). Taxes and Special Assessments revenue decreased by $5.7
million primarily due to an on-going decline in General and Proposition t72 sales tax collections ($21.7
million) "that were particular impacted during the second half of the year, transient occupancy tax
collections ($1.8 million), and motor vehicle .in-lieu fees ($0.4 million) due the continuing economic
downturn, somewhat offset by an increase in property taxes ($7.1 million), utility taxes ($3.5 million), and
receipts from the recently approved Measure J telephone line tax ($7.9 million). Licenses and permits
declined $5.4 million primarily due to lower collections of building permits ($2.2 million) due to the
economic downturn, a decrease in Disposal Facility taxes ($1.7 million) and decreases in other
miscellaneous fines ($!.5 million). In addition, charges for services decreased $2.4 million primarily due
to lower fees and charges for planning and building, transportation and public works developer fees ($3.6
million) offset by a $1.3 million increase from the newly implemented business tax administrative fees.

General Fund expenditures of $719.4 million in 2008-2009 were $20.4 million or 2.9 percent higher than
2007-2008 expenditures of $699.1 million. The increase in expenditures was mainly due to increases in
general government expenditures of $11.6 million primarily from increased workers’ compensation claims
($2.4 millionl and retirement payouts ($4.8 million) as well as increased costs in the City Clerk’s Office for
the November elections ($1.3 million) and miscellaneous other.expenditures ($3.1 million) consisting
principally of increases in expenditures for. public and educational access cable programming services,
and the City’s comprehensive General Plan update. Public safety expenditures increased $2.8 million
because of higher wage, pension, healthcare and benefit costs. Capital maintenance expenditures
increased by $2.8 million primarily.due to increases in the COPS Interoperable Communications grant
expenditures. Infrastructure and fixed asset capital outlay expenditures increased $3.8 million primarily
for fire apparatus replacement. Slightly offsetting these increases was a $2.9 million decrease in
community services expenditures primarily related to a reduction in planning and building department
staffing due to the downturn in the housing market.

Redevelopment fund: The Redevelopment Agency (Agency) fund accounts for the activities of the
Redevelopment Agency of the C!ty of San Jos6 that redevelops and upgrades blighted areas. Fund
balance for the Agency’s governmental funds increased $6.7 million or 3.2 percent to $213.8 million at
June 30, 2009. A deficit of expenditures over revenues of $81.3 million was offset by other financing
sources (net) of $88.0 million.

The following are some of the highlights for the Agency:

Revenues increased b~j $2.6 million or 1.2 percent to $212.8 million from $210.2 million in the
prior fiscal year. This increase is due to a $17.4 million increase in tax increment revenue,
attributable mainly to increased commercial and industrial property values netted by a decrease
in intergovernmental revenue ($1.5 million), rental income ($.5 million), investment income ($4.4
million) and other revenue ($8.z~ million).

¯ Expenditures decreased $3.4 million, or 1.1 percent from the prior fiscal year primarily due to
lower capital outlay costs incurred for the City’s parking garages in downtown San Jos6.
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¯ Other financing sources decreased $84.2 million over other financing sources of $172.2 million in
2007-2008. The primary decrease is a result of lower bond proceeds of $117.3 million in 2008-
~009 compared to $213.0 million in 2007-2008.

Additional information about the Agency’s finances appears in their separately issued financial
statements.

Housinq fund: The Housing Activities fund accounts for the City of San Jose’s commitment to providing
low and moderate income residents with a diverse range of safe, decent, and affordable housing
opportunities. Objectives include preserving the existing affordable housing stock, increasing the supply
of affordable housing, and providing services to homeless and at-risk populations. Redevelopment
Agency tax allocation bonds and 20 percent of the gross property tax increment provide the fund’s
primary resources. As required by California State law, the tax increment revenue is used solely for
affordable housing. In addition, Housing funds receive resources from U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development and California Department of Housing and Community Development. The fund’s
loans receivable balance (net) which represents loans to developers of various affordable housing
projects and First Time Home Buyers increased during the current year by $22.7 million or 8.4 percent to
$290.9 million at June 30, 2009 due to an increase" in loans to developers for various projects including
the First Rosemary St., First Rosemary Family, Brookwood, Cornerstone at Japan town, McCreery
Courtyards, North Fourth Street, Orvieto, and King Crossing housing projects, and a increase in the
valuation allowance in the Housing Activities Fund based on the City’s review of the valuation accounts.

Total expenditures increased by $55.9 million to $57.6 million from $1.7 million in the prior fiscal year,
which is primarily due to an adjustment in the prior year that reduced the Housing loan loss reserve as
compared to an increase in the loan loss reserve in the current year.

.Special Assessment Districts fund: The Special Assessment Districts fund accounts for debt issuance
and capital improvements related to the specific purposes of seven special assessment and community
facilities districts located in different parts of the City of San Jose. A total of $64.9 million in special
assessment debt outstanding at June 30, 2009 is secured by special assessments or taxes charged to
owners’ real property in the district issuing the debt. The City of San Jose is not obligated to cure any
deficiency or redeem any debt of special assessment districts. However, the City may voluntarily choose
to cure a deficiency at its sole discretion. There was no new special assessment debt issued during 2008-
2009.

Total expenditures increased by $4.7 million or 58.9 percent to $12.7 million from $8.0 million in the prior
fiscal year. This increase is primarily due to $2.1 million reimbursement of development costs to the
developers of the Evergreen Speoific Plan Property Ownership Partnership.

Financing Authority fund: The City of San Jose Financing Authority Debt Service fund accounts for the
issuance of commercial paper notes secured by lease revenues as a mechanism for financing City of San
Jos~ public improvements such as the offsite parking garage for City Hall, Phase II improvements of the
City’s Central Service Yard, non-construction costs for technology, furniture, equipment and relocation
services at City Hall, capital improvements at the City’s HP Pavilion, and procuring the consolidated utility
billing system. The amount of commercial paper notes outstanding decreased from $83.8 million on June
30, 2008 to $47.6 million on June 30, 2009, a net decrease of $36.2 million or 43.2 percent primarily due
to the issuance of the City of San Jose Financing Authority Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B, to
redeem $36.6 million of commercial paper notes.

Other financing sources increased by a net $27.4 million or 47.9 percent to $84.5 million. This net
difference is the result of a $10.5 million decrease in transfers-in and refunding bonds issued, more than
offset by a $37.9 million decrease in transfers-out and payments to refunding bond escrow agents.

Proprietary funds
¯ The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements for business-type activities, butin more detail. At June 30, 2009, the unrestricted net assets
were $120.6 million for the Norman Y. Mineta San Jose International Airport, $188.4 million for the
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Wastewater Treatment System, $9.1 million for the Municipal Water System and $21.2 million for the
Parking System. Net assets for proprietary funds grew from $1.265 billion at June 30, 2008 to $1.329
billion at June 30, 2009, an increase of $63.8 millioi~ or 5.0 pe’rcent.

In an updated report released September 14, 2009, Fitch Ratings downgraded the rating on $1.04 billion
of the City of San Jos~’ Airport Revenue Bonds from ’A+’ to ’A-’ (two rating notches). The rating outlook
on the bonds remains negative. The downgrade reflects the combined effect of three years of continued
enplanement losses that were beyond Fitch’s prior expectation and a doubling of the airport’s overall debt
for the Terminal Area Improvement Plan (TAIP). According to the Fitch Ratings, the negative outlook
reflect~ the potential for further erosion of air service and weakness in concession revenue that could
further pressure the airport’s cost profile going forward.

Other aspects of proprietary fund activities are discussed in the business-type activities section above.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City of San Jos~ charter requires staff to submit operating and capital budgets to the City Council
prior to the beginning of a new fiscal year that begins each July 1 and ends on the following June 30.
Council approved the 2009-2010 budgets in June 2009, The City is at the end of its Decade of
Investment, which is transforming much of the City’s infrastructure. Major improvements continue in the
City’s parks, community centers, libraries and public safety facilities and as a result, the City is continuing
to dedicate significant resources towards addressing critical Service and infrastructure needs in the 2009-
2010 budgets.

During the fiscal year, ended June 30, 2009, there was a $0.1 million decrease in budgeted revenues
between the original and final amended operating budget for the General Fund. The decrease reflected
the lower expectations in economically sensitive revenues, such as sales taxes and interest income, due
to the downturn in the economy.

In addition, there was a $3.4 million decrease in appropriations between the original and final amended
operating budget for the General Fund. Following are the main components of the net decrease:

A supplemental appropriation of $12.1 million to Public Safety that included increases related to
the establishment of a new agreement with the San Jos~ Police Officers’ Association.

A supplemental appropriation of $1.6 million increase for Sanitation to provide funding to public
school districts that have waste reduction and recycling cooperation agreements with the City.

A supplemental appropriation of $13.4 million for Capital Maintenance that included decreases
related to street maintenance repairs and resurfacing, and t#affic calming.

A supplemental appropriation of $3.1 million decrease for General Government primarily
reflecting a decrease in the FMC Debt Service appropriation due to a reduction in debt service
payments as a result’ of the refunding of the related City of San Jos~ Financing Authority Lease
Revenue Bonds.

A supplemental appropriation of $0.6 million decrease for Community Services due to recognition
of departmental staffing "savings.

Actual budgetary basis expenditures of $746.1 million were .$68.2 million less than the amended budget
and $71.6 million less than the original budg, et. Savings were experienced over all expenditure
categories.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City of San Jose’s investment ir~ capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for its governmental
and business-type activities together amounted to $9.573 billion at June 30, 2009. This investment
includes land, infrastructure, structures and improvements, vehicles, equipment, intangible assets, and
construction-in-progress. The City of San Jose’s decision to depreciate infrastructure capital assets
results in recording a large non-cash depreciation expense each year that offsets additions to capital
assets. The result of the new additions less depreciation expense during 2008-2009 yielded a $175.2.
million decrease in governmental activities net capital assets offset by a $319.4 millioh increase in
business-type activities net capital assets resulting in an overall increase of $144.2 million or 1.5 percent
in net capital asset balances between June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2009.

Total construction-in-progress increased $364.1 million or 48.1 percent from $756.7 million at June 30,
2008 to. $1.121 billion at June 30, 2009. The governmental activities’ portion of construction-in-progress
increased $112.2 million mainly related to continued work on Parks, Libraries, and Public Safety projects.
Business-type activities contributed a net increase of $252.0 million to construction-in-progress due to
the on-going Airport expansion ($324.2 million), offset by decreases to the Municipal Water System ($1.0
million) and the Wastewater Systems ($71.3 million) capital projects. Outstanding commitments related to
construction-in-progress at June 30, 2009 totaled $67.6 mi.llion and $359.0 million for governmental and

business-type activities, respectively.

The City of San Jos~ records infrastructure assets at historical cost in the goveinment-wide financial
statements and depreciates assets from acquisition date to the end of the current fiscal year as required
by GASB Statement No. 34. For governmental fund financial statements recording purposes, capital
asset purchases are recorded as expenditures, rather than capitalizing and recording related
depreciation. Capital assets, net of depreciation, for governmental and business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements are presented below to illustrate changes between June 30, 2008
and June 30, 2009 (in thousands):

Governmental actlvitles Business-type activities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Land $ 561,258 559,825 134,926 134,926 696,184 694,751
Construction In

progress 252,661 140,489 868,141 616,188 1,120,802 756,677
Buildings 989,452 997,119 371,470 328,641 1,360,922 1,325,760
Improvements, other

th an bu ildin gs 120,828 121,308 491,960 490,012 612,788 611,320
Infrastructure 5,667,443 5,949,391 5,667,443 5,949,391
Furniture and fixtures,

vehicles, equipment 38,864 37,364 64,633 41,214 103,497 78,578
Intangible assets 7,253 7,577 7,253 7,577
Property under

capital leases- 1,074 1,267 2,799 3,253 3,873 4,520

Total capital assets $ 7,631,580 7,806,763 1,941,182 1,621,811 = 9,572,762 9,428,574..

Increase/
(Decrease)

Pe rcen t of
Change

0.2%

48.1%
2.7%

0.2%
(4.7)%

31.7%
(4.3)%

(14.3)%
1,5%

Additional information about the City’s capital assets can be found in Note III.D to the financial
statements.

General Fund Bo.nded Debt Limit

The City of San Jos~ Charter limits bonded indebtedness for General Obligation bonds to 15 percent of
the total assessed valuation of all real and personal property within the City. The total assessed value on
the City’s 2008-2009 tax roll was $129.020 billion, which results in a net total debt capacity of $18.834
billion. As of June 30, 2009, the City had $519.3 million of General Obligation bonds outstanding.
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General Obligation Bo~d Rating

During May 2009, the City receiv.ed confirmation of its general obligation bond ratings from the three
major rating agencies: Aal from Moody’s Investors Service; AAA from Standard & Poor’s; and AA+ from
Fitch Ratings. san Jos6 remains the highest rated large city (with populations over 250,000) within the
State of California.

Outstanding Debt

The City’s debt service obligations include general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, lease revenue
bonds, special assessment bonds, and Redevelopment’Agency tax allocation bonds.

At June 30, 2009, the City had $3.728 billion of gross outstanding long-term debt related to governmental
activities and $1.151 billion related to business-type activities, for a total of $4.879 billion. These amounts
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were $3.603 billion for governmental activities and $1.176 billion
for business-type activities, for a total of $4.779 billion.

The table below identifies the net changes in each category (in thousands):

Governmental Activities
General ob~gation bonds

HUD Section t08 loan

Lease ~evenue and

revenue bonds

Sp,eclal asse~ments

Redevelopment Agency

Sub-total

Bus ine ss-Type Activitias
Revenue bonds

State of CA-Revolving Fund Loan

Sub-total
Total:

As of As of Net
June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008 Chan~e

519,320 528,565 (9,245)
23,923 24,876 (953)

655,137 629,324 25,813
64,886 68,151 (3,265)

2,464,690 2,352,465 112,225
3,727,956 3,603,381 124,575

1,112,320 1,133,690 (21,370)
38,254 4t ,952 (3,698)

1,150,574 1,175,642 (25,068)
4 ~878.530 4.779 ~023 99.507

Additional information about the City’s long-term obligations appears in Note III.F. of the notes to the
financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The severity of the current economic downturn is expected to continue to deeply impact some of
the City’s largest revenue sources. Property Tax, the largest source of General Fund revenue, is
expected to decline approximately 7.0 percent in 2009-2010 driven by the drop in property
assessments, and Sales Tax receipts are expected, to decline by approximately 5.0 percent.
Other General Fund categories that are expected to be significantly impacted include Transient
Occupancy Tax, development fees, and interest earnings. The deep economic downturn is also
expected to negatively impact performance of a.’number, of special funds and capital funds,
including the Airport Funds, the Convention and Cultural Affairs Fund, the Transit Occupancy Tax
Fund, the Traffic Capital Funds, and the Construction and Conveyance Tax Funds.

The 2008-2009 fiscal year was extremely challenging and required active bL~dget management to
ensure the financial stability of the various City funds. As the City experienced the worst
recession in seven decades, many of the City’s economically sensitive, revenues sustained
significar~t declines, including Sales Tax, Transient Occupancy Tax, development-related fees
and taxes, interest earnings, and Construction and Conveyance Taxes. Passenger activity at the
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Airport also fell 15% in 2008-2009. The fiscal challenges faced in 2008-2009 are expected to
continue in 2009-2010 and until the local economy significantly recovers from this severe
recession. A set of 2009-2010 budget balancing recommendations was developed through a
comprehensive community outreach process, and a Council Priority Setting Study Session. In
June 2009, the City Council approved a balanced General Fund budget for fiscal year 2009-2010,
closing a funding gap of approximately $84.2 million through a combination of service reductions
and eliminations, revenue increases, use of reserves, and funding shifts.

The City has begun a five-year phase-in to fully pre-fund retiree healthcare benefits for the
majority of its employee units, with the exception of the San Jose Firefighters union (International
Association of Firefighters, Local 230). This will result in an incremental increase in retiree
healthcare contributions for both the City and its employees over the next five years. It is
important to note that phasing-in to fully pre-fund retiree healthcare benefits does not mean that
the existing obligation is paid off immediately. It is projected that it will take approximately 30
years to pay off the existing unfunded retiree healthcare liability.

As of June 30, 2007, the most recent actuarial date, the Police and Fire Department Retirement
¯Plan (Plan) was 99.7% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2,372,386,000,

and the actuarial value of assets was $2,365,790,000, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL).of $6,596,000. However, as noted in the Trust and Agency Funds section of this
document, the Plan’s net assets experienced a decrease of $516.0 million in 2008-2009 following
a $175.4 million decline in net assets in the prior year. Due to this significant decrease in fund
assets, the Plan’s next actuarial study is expected to substantially increase the annual reqtJired
contribution amounts for 2009-2010.

As of June 30, 2007, the most recent actuarial date, the Federated City Employee’s Retirement
System (System) was 82.8% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$1,960,943,000 and, the actuarial.value of assets was $1,622,851,000, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $338,092,000. However, as noted in the Trust and Agency
Funds section of this document, the System’s net assets experienced a decrease of $334.1

’ million in 2008-2009 following an $86.7 million decline in net assets in the prior year. Due to this
significant decrease in fund assets, the System’s next actuarial study is expected to substantially
increase the annual required contribution amounts for 2009-2010.

¯ The 2009-2010 budget reflects rate increases of 30.0 percent for the Storm Sewer rate, 2.0
percent for Recycle Plus single family dwellings, and 11.5 percent for the Municipal Water
System in order to improve operational efficiencies and maintain a reliable utility infrastructure.

San Jos~’s average unemployment rate for calendar year 2008 increased over the prior year
average of 5.3 percent, but the City’s rate was lower than the average unemployment rate for the
State. The City’s average unemployment rate for calendar year 2008 was 6,7 percent, which is
lower than the statewide average of 7.2 percent.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for 2009-2010.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our. residents, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors
with a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additiorial financial information’should be addressed to the Director of Finance,
200 E. Santa Clara Street, San Jose, CA 951 t3.
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City of San Jos~
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2009
($000’s)

Governmental
Activities

ASSETS
Equity in ppoled cash and investments $ 751,473
Other cash and Investments 6
Receivables (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) 160,994
Due from outside agencies 3,700
Internal balances (7,165)
Inventories 1,040
Loans receivable (net) 336,271
Advances and deposits 535
Other assets 21,970
Restricted assets:

Equity In pooled cash and Investments 76,036
Other cash and investments _ 447,~180
Receivables (net of allowances

for uncollectibles)
Deferred bond Issuance costs

(net of accumulated amortization) 52,340
Capital assets (net of accumulated

depreciation):
Nondepreciable 813,919
Depreclable 6,817,661

Total assets 9,475,960

Business-Type
Activities

356,710

24,701
337

7,165
1,046

250
9,948
3,289

99,084
469,123

6,032

13,201

1,003,067
938,115

2,932,068

Total

1,108,183
6

185,695
4,037

2,086
336,521

10,483
25,259

175,120
916,303

6,032

65,541

1,816,986
7,755,776

12,408,028

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 64,174 70,778 134,952
Accrued liabilities 40,925 4,823 45,748
Interest payable 54,942 18,701 73,643
Due to outside agencies 24,727 24,727
Short term notes payable 47,581 323,561 371,142
Unearned revenue i 31,219 3,897 35,116.
Advances, deposits, and reimbursable credits 18,430 4,897 23,327
Other liabilities 11,021 11,021
Noncurrent obligations:

Due Within one year 170,938 28,426 199,364
Due in more than one year 3,924,413 1,148,293 5,072,706

Total liabilities 4,388,370 1,603,376 . 5,991,746
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,400,552 885,744 5,286,296
Restricted for:

Debt service 123,160 13,648 ¯ 1.36,808
Capital projects 251,485 90,046 341,531
Community services 276,040 276,040
Public safety 3,439 3,439

Unrestricted 32,914 339,254 372,168

Total net assets $ 5,087,590 1,328,692 6,416,282

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of San Jos~
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
($000’s)

Functions/Programs Expenses

Governmental activities:

Gbneral government $ 172,077

Public safety 463,196

Capital m’aintsnance 595,547

Community services 276,396

Sanitation 122,705

Interest and fiscal charges 166.672

Total governmental activities 1,796,593

Business -Type aclivitles:

Norman Y. Mineta San Jos~

International Airport 140,641

Wastewater Treatment System 126,789

Municipal Water System 25,416

Parking System t 1,800

Total business-type activities 304,645

Total $ ¯ 2,101,238

Program Revenues
Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes In Net Assets

Fees, Fines, Operating Capita( Grants
and Charges Grants and and Governmental
for Services Contributions Contributions Activities

Business .Type
Activities Total

30,906 84 (141,087)

39,254 15,908 (408,034)

36,340 58,737 26,306 (474,164)

66,090 41,236 (169,070)

125,198 2,493

(I66,672)

297,789 t15,965 26,306 (I.356,534)

(141,087)

(408,034)

(474,164)

(t69,070)

2.493

(t66.672)

(1.356.534)

138,999 4,625 12,869

151,516 4,701 5,305

25,807 444

11,052

327,374 9,326 18,618

625~162 125,291 44,924

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property and other taxes

Utility

Franchise

Transient occupancy

Sales taxes shared revenue (unrestricted)

State of California in-lieu (unrestricted)

Business license tax

Unrestricted Interest and investment earnings

Other revenue
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

(1,356,534).

507,273

93,619

41,067

19,261

127,802

8,839

38,597

34,092

40,372
5,285

916,207

(440,327)

5,527,917

5~087,590

15,852

34,734

835

(748)

50,673

50,673

18,434

(5,285)

13,149

63,822

1,264,870

1,328,692

15,852

34,734

835

(748)

50,673

(1,309.861)

507,273

93,619

41,067

19,261

127,802

8,839

38,597

52,526
40,372

929,356

(376,505)

6,792,767

6,416,282

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of San Jos~
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2009

($000’s)

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments

held in City Treasury
Other cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowance

for uncollectibles)
Due from outside agencies
Due from other funds
Inventories
Loans receivable (net)
Advances and deposits
Restricted assets:

Equity in pooled cash and investments
held in City Treasury .

Other cash and Investments
Advances to other funds
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages, and payroll taxes
Due to other funds
Due to other agencies
Short term notes and bonds payable
Deferred revenue
Advances, deposits, and reimbursable credits
Advances from other funds
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances
Noncurrent advances, loans and other assets
Debt service
Restricted cash commitments

Unreserved reported in:
General fund
Speoial revenue funds
Capital projects funds

Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

General Fund
Redevelopment Housing

Agency Activities

$ 218,536 119,942 59,086

48,054 1,534 6,983
3,336 51
5,688 4,225 54

2,391 36,858 290,925
13 65

722                    8,115
157,750

3,333               1,080
21,118

282,073 321,454 386,332

12,139
34,181

278
697

12,096
7

5OO
10,982
70,880

25,824
6,576

178,793"

8,723 1,309
470 495

6,447
31,530

5,300
40,642 22,692

1,900
12,612 580

107,624 25,076

44,975 37,962
4,795 296,059

130,594
3

33,466
211,193 213,830
282,073 321,454

27,232

361,256
386,332

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

22



Special
Assessment

Districts

San Jos~
Financing

Authority Debt
Service

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

65,027
22

293

353,909
6

39,390
291

39,713
1,040
6,097

164

751,473
6

160,9~4
3,700

49,680
1,040

336,271
535

25,862
10,810

102,014

1,244
58,093

59,343

40,093
220,527

5,812
852

707,894

76,036
447,180

10,225
21,970

1,859;110

2,330
8

65,174
4,009

71,521

145

47,581

3,333

51,059

39,528
5,771

43,019

16,042
12,514

301
39

117,214

64,174
40,925
49,744
32,227
52,881

156,646
18,430
17,326
11,021

443;374

228
5

22,000

8,260
30,493

102,014

8,284

8,284
59,343

104,030
13,853
41,490

588

286,896
143,823
590,680
7O7,894

213,019
321,288
202,368

591

178,793
314,128
185,549

1,415,736

1,859,110
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City of San Jos~
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009

($000’s)

Total fund balances-governmental funds (Page 22)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

Land
Infrastructure assets
Other capital assets
Accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

561,258
11,301,028
t,826,192
(6,056,898)

Long-term receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred on the modified accrual basis.

Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid,
however, are capitalized and amortized over the life of the corresponding
bonds for purposes of the statement of net assets.
Deferred charges, net of amortization

Special Assessments are reported as revenue when levied in government-wide
financial statements. In governmental funds, these assessments are reported as
deferred revenue (a liability) since they are not available.

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, interest payable is generally not accrued as a liability
in the balance sheet of governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

Bonds and notes payable
Accreted interest on capital appreciation bonds
Compensated absences
Claims and judgments
Other postemployment obligation
Other

Total long-term liabilities

Net assets of governmental activities (Page 20)

(~,726,614)
(1,786)

(96,921)
(123,442)
(119,321)
(14,467)

$ 1,415,736

7,631,580

60,541

52,340

64,886

(54,942)

(4,082,551)

$ 5,087,590

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of San Jos~
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
($000’s)

REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments
Licenses, permits, and fines
Intergovernmental
Charges for current services
Rent
Investment income
Other revenue

Total revenues

General Fund

.494,169
84,274
16,366
28,140

7,541
32,606

663,096

Redevelopment
Agency

202,346

7O

1,317
5,134
3,883

212,750

Housing
Activities

12,010

10,994
1,486

24,490

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 98,536 15,137
Public safety 419,043
Capital maintenance 53,440 90,337 65
Community services 138,992 57,530
Sanitation 2,621

Capital outlay 5,233 26,873
Debt service:

Principal 953 53,640
Interest and fiscal charges 630 106,625
Bond issuance costs 1,453
Current refunding escrow

Total expenditures 719,448 294,065 57,595
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (56,352) (81,315) (33,105)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds issued
Refunding bonds issued
Premiums (discount) on bonds
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Reclassification of variable rate demand bonds (5,300)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 8,365
Loan proceeds 50,000
Transfers in 32,809 24,827
Transfers out (42,397) (105,854)

Total other financing sources (uses) (9,588) 87,985

Net change In fund balances (65,940) 6,670

Fund balances - beginning 277,133 207,t60

Fund balances - ending $ 211,193 213,830

117,295

(1,348)

90,469
(19,001)
71,468

38,363

322,893

361,256

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Special
Assessment

Districts

6,087

849
250

7,186

San Jos~
Financing

Authority Debt
Service

746
15

761

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

105,550

92,014
293,862

11,423
20,839
22,636

546,324

Total
GovernmFntal

Fund~

808,152
84,274

120,460
322,002

12,740
46,t03
60,876

1,454,607

5,631

3,265
3,797

12,693

(5,507)

12,635
28,987

1,229
3,143

45,994

(45,233)

146,026
1,440

132,757
53,102

120,856
141,328

18,245
24,746

.244

638,744

(92,420)

259,699
420,483
282,230 ¯
249,624
123,477
173,434

88,738
164,785

2,926
3,143

1,768,539

(313,932)

(6)
(5)

(5,513)

36,006

30,493

36,580
88,380

(84,982)

47,960
(3,448)
84,490 ,

39,257

(30,973)
8,284

9,000

276

69,616
(87,332)

(8,440)

(100,860)

691,540

590,680

162,875
88,380
(1,072)

(84,982)
(5,300)
8,365

50,000
265,681

(258,038)
225,909

(88,023)

1,503,759

1,415,736
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City of San Jos~
Reconciliation of the Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Actlvitles
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

’ ($000’s)

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds (Page 26)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Cap]tsl outlays are reported as expenditures th governmental funds, However, In the
state.ment of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

Excess of depreciation expense over capital outlay

The net effect of vad0us miscellaneous transac8ons thvolving capital assets (i,e.
sales, retirements, trade-Ins, donations)

Donated assets
Disposal of assets             ~

173,434
(350,228)

12,542
(10,931)

Bond Issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid, however, are
capitalized and amortized over Ihe life of the corresponding bonds for the purposes
of the statement of activities,

Bond Issuance costs 2,926
Amortization and refunding of bond issuance costs (4,227)

Total bond issuance costa, net of amortizaSon

Repayment of long-term obligation principal is repealed as an expenditure in
governmental funds and, thus, has the ~ffect of r~duclng fund balance because
current financial resources have been used. For the government-wide statsments,
however, the principal payments reduce the liabilities In the statement of net
assets and do not result in an expense in the statement of activities. The City’s
long-term obligations were reduced because principal payments were made to
bondholders and HUD.

Accrued Interest expense on tsng-term debt Is reported In the government-wide
statement of activities, but does not requlre the use of current financial resources,
Amortization of bond premiums, discounts and deferred amounts on refunding
should be expensed as a component of Interest expense on the slatement of
activities, 3"his amount represents the net accrued interest expense and the
amort~zalion of bond premiums, discounts and deferred amounts on refundin9
not reported in governmental funds,

Accrued Interest on capltat appreciation bonds ¯ (183)
Net discount]premium on bonds issued 1,072
Increase in accrued Interest expense (2,070)
Amodlzatlon and refunding of deferred amounts, premiums and discounts 4,666
Deferred amounts on bonds issued (3,279)

Total net Interest expense and amortization of discount/premium

Bond and loan proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, however,
issuing debt Increases Iong-lerrn liabilities In the statement of net assels.

Reclaselfcation of long term liabilities to a governmental fund liabllt{y is reported
as a financing use In a governmental fund and thus contributes to the change In fund
balance, However, it does not affect the statement of activities,

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the City’s
fiscal year ends, they are nol considered "available" revenue and are deferred
in the governmental funds. Deferred revenues decreased by this amount this year,

Some items reported in Ihe statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds, These acfivlfies consist of:

Net decrease In accrued landfill postciosure cosls 465
Net increase in pollufion remediation obligation (4,946)
Net increase in OPEB obligation (52,637)
Net increase in vacation, sick leave, and compensatory time (5,156)
Net decrease in estimated liability for self-insurance 15,396
Net decrease tn arbitrage liability 347

Total additional expenditures

The net expenses of the Public Works Program Support Internal Service fund reported.
with nonmajor governmental funds

Change in net assets of governmental activities(Page 21)

(88,023)

(176,794)

1,611

(1,301)

176,863

206

(301,255)

5,300

(8,045)

(46,531)

(2,358)

(440,327).

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of San Jos~
Statement of Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, ,2009

($000’s)-

ASSETS
Current assets:

Equity in pooled cash and investments
held in City Treasury

Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles)

Due. from outside agencies
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses, advances and deposits
inventories

Total unrestricted current assets

Restricted assets:
Equity in .pooled cash and investments

held in City Treasury
Other cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowances

for uncollectibles)
Prepaid expenses, advances and deposits

Total restricted current assets
Total current assets

Norman Y. Mineta
San Jos~ Wastewater

International Treatment
Airport System

Public Works
Municipal Program Support

Water Parking Internal Service
System System Totals Fund

85,812 242,131 13,153 15,614 356,710

14,649 7,069 2,778 205 24,701
337 337

14 750 764
137 137

1,046 1,046

100,612 251,333 15,931 15,819 383,695 .- "

75,336 22,113
462,809 6,314

1,635 99,084
469,123

6,032 6,032
3,152 3,t52

547,329 28,427 1,635 577,391
647,941 279,760 15,931 17,454 961,086

Noncurrent assets:
Deferred bond issuance costs

(net of accumulated amortization) 12,398 803
Loan receivable 250
Advances and deposits 9,948
Advances to other funds 2,418
Capital assets (net of accumulated

depreciation):
Nondepreciable 909,346 74,179
Depreciable 340,098 476,230

Total noncurrent assets 1,272,040 553,630
Total assets 1,919,981 833,390

6,800

13,201
250

9,948
9,218

605
73,027

73,632
89,563

18,937
48,760

74,497
91,951

1,003,067
938,115

1,973,799
2,934,885

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of San Jos~
Statement of Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2009

($000’s)

LIABILITIE~
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Due to other funds
Accrued vacation, sick leave and

compensatory time
Estimated liability for self-insurance
Advances and deposits payable
Unearned revenue
Loans payable
Pollution re~nediation obligation

Total current liabiI~ties unrestricted

Current liabilities payable
from restricted assets:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Accrued vacation, sick leave and

compensatory time
Short term notes payable
Current portion of bonds payable
Pollution remedlation obligation
Total current liabilities payable from

restricted assets

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation, sick leave and

compensatory time
Estimated liability for self-insurance
Advances from other funds
Advance contributions from participating

agencies
Advances, deposits and reimbursable

credits
Loans payable
Bonds payable (net of discount and

deferred loss on premium/refunding)
Net other postemployment benefit obligation

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capital projects and other

agreements
~ Unrestricted

Total net assets

Norman Y. Mineta
San Josd Wastewater Municipal

International Treatment Water
Airport System System

Parking
System Totals

Public Works
Program Support
internal Service

Fund

8,873 7,756 1,910 975
1,760 2,723 218 122

39 394
7OO

2,409 3,t58 168 193
560 1,296 165 1
941

3,897
3,767

33O

18,809 19,094 3,161 1,291

19,514
4,823

433
7OO

5,928
2,022

941
3,897
3,767

330

42,355

51,264
17,966 3O2

158
323,561

11,341
384

4O4,674

423,483

4,496

4,798
23,892 3,161 1,291

51,264
18,268

158
323,561

15,837
384

4O9,472
451,827

1,429 1,879
2,736 4,253

2,117

2,782

1,174
34,487

1,035,266 58,292
4,167. 5,205 408

1,043,598 106,898 3,699
1,467,081 130,790 6,860

171
171

1,462.

3,308
6,989
2,117

2,782

1,174
34,487

1,093,558
9,951

1,154 366
. 1,606,193

287,028 457,387
5,764 6,249

73,632

39,496 50,55O
120,612 188,414 9,071
452,900 702,600. 82,703.

67,697
1,635

885,744
13,648

21,157
9O,489

90,046
339 254

1,328,692
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City of San Jo~
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

($000’s)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Rentals and concessions
Customer transportation fees
Service connection, engineering

and inspection
Contributions
Other

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations and maintenance
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Materials and supplies

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES iEXPENSES
Passenger facility charges
Operating grants
Investment income
Land and building rental
Interest expense
Contributions refunded to participating

agencies
Lois on disposal of capital assets
Other revenues

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Changes in net assets

Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

Norman Y. Mineta
San Josd Wastewater Municipal

International Treatment Water Parking
Airport System System System

45,917 116,196
62,617 2,703

6,713

25,770 11,052

3,019
17,894

7OO 11,628

115,947 ’ 151,440 25,770 11,052

Public Works
Program Support

Internal Service
Totals Fund

198,935
65,320
6,713

3,019
t7,894
12,328

304,2O9

76,405 80,085
28,328 21,172
20,967 21,025

576

125 700 122,858
(9,753) 28,582

17,416
4,625
8,138

(11,4o4)

21,738 4,838 183,066
1,068 4,347 54,915
2,489 2,243 46,724

372 948

25,295 11,860 285,653
475 (748) 18,556

17,416
4,625

9,267 461 568 18,434
8 8

(3,534) (121 ) (15,059)

(384) (384)
(3,537) (12) (3,549)
5,636 4,769 37 10,442

20,874 10,114 377 568 31,933

11,121 38,696 852 (180) 50,489

12,869 5,305 444 18,618
325 670 35 135 1,165

(104) (4,16t) (1,018) (1,167) (6,450)

24,211 40,510 313 (1,212) 63,822

428,689 662,090 82,390 91,701 1,264,870
$ 452,900 702,600 82,703 90,489 1,328,692 ¯

(2,358)

(2,358)

2,358

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of San Jos~
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

($000’s)

Norman Y. Mineta
San Jos~ Wastewater Municipal

International Treatment Water Parking
Airport System System System

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
¯ Receipts from customers and users $ !15,474 ’

Payments to suppliers (65,722)
Payments to employees (37,054)
Other receipts 7,119

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer from other funds 325
Transfer to other funds (104)
Advances (to) from other funds

’ Subsidies from operating grants 4,557
Advances, dePOsits and credits received 19

Net cash provided by (used in) by noncapltal
and related financing activities "4,797

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Passenger facility charges received 16,789
Proceeds from commercial paper 143,171
Principal payment on commercial paper (5,800)
Subsidies from capital grants 6,319
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (298,156)
Principal pald on debt (11,180)
Cash paid for the refunding of Sedes 2005B
Bond Issuance cost (payment) refund (19)
Interest paid on debt (60,210)
Advances, deposits and credits paid , (1,866)

Net cash used in capital
and related financing activities (210,952)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds fi’om sales and maturities of
Investments

Purchase of Investments
Interest and dividends received
Land and building rentals

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equlvalent~ - beginning
Cash and cash equivalents - ending $

Totals

Public Works
Program Support

Internal Service
Fund

134,576 26,090 11,045 287,185
(41,219). (18,406) (7,078) (132,425)
(59,501) (4,404) (2,290) (103,249)
17,961 25,060

19,817 51,817 3,280 1,677 76,591

67o 35 135 1,165
(4,161) (1,018) (1,167) (6,450)
3,090 (1,000) 2,090

4,557
7Q 89

(5,124)

(401)     (1,913) (1,032) 1,451 (5,124)

1,480
(20,911)

(8,179)
(4)

27
(3,276)

(1,345)

16,789
143,!71

(5,800).
7,799

(553)    (320,965)
(19,359)

(4)

(63,486)
(1,866)

(30,863) , (1,345) [553)    (243,713) -

288,269 288,269
(155,025) (6,117) (161,142)

’29,819 9,715 497 568 40,599
7 7

163,063 3,605 497 568 167,733

(23,275) 24,158 519 660 2,062      (5,124)

194,931 240,329 12,634 16,580 464,483 5,124
171,656 264,487 13,153 17,249 466,545.

(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



City of San Jos~
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

($000’s)

Reconciliation of operating income (lass) to
net cash provided by operating
activities:

Operating income (toss) $
Adjustments to reconcile operating

Income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Other nonoperating revenues

Decrease (Increase) in:
Accounts receivable
Due from outside agencies
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in’.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued salaries, wages, and payroll
Accrued vacation, sick leave

and compensatory time
Estimated liability for self-insurance
Unearned revenues
Advances and.deposits payable
Other liabilities

Total ad!ustments
Net cash provided by operating activities $

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
to the statement of net assets:

Equity In pooled cash and investments
held In City Treasury

Unrestricted $
Restricted

Other investments
Less investments not meeting

the definition of cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents $

Noncash noncapital, capital and related financing
activities:

Loss on disposal of capital assets $
Acquisition of capital assets on accounts

payable and accrued liabilities
Capitalized interest
Contributions from developers
Amortization of deferred charges and other charges’
Retirement of deferred charges and other charges
Participating agencies’ payments to

refunded escrow
Bond proceeds paid to refunded bond escrow
Change in fair value of investments
Transfer out assets and liabilities to other funds

Norman Y. Mineta
San Jos~ Wastewater Municipal

International Treatment Water
Airport System System

Parking
System Totals

Public Works

Program Support
Internal Service

Fund

(9,753)     28,582 475 (748)      18,556

20,967 21,025 2,489
5,636 68 37

767 1,009 283
20

227
1,541

(282) 515 25
447 579 51

60 (7)
(65) 365
546
69

(115) (566)
29,570 23,235
19,817 51,817

(70)
(14)

4
2,805
3,280

2,243 46,724
5,741

(8) 2,051
2O

227
38 1,579

68 326
49 1,126

16 (1)
286
546
69

lg (65g)
2,425 56,035
1,677 76,591

85,812 242,131
75,336 22,113

462,809 6,314

(452,301) (6,071)
171,656 264,487

13,153

13,153

15,614 356,710
1,635 99,084

469,123

(458,372)
17,249 466,545

3,537

53,090
33,991

571

684

12

1,214
235
370

4,701
22,891

46

444

3,549

53,090
33,991

1,658
8O6
370

4,701
22,891

73O
2,766

The notes to the financial statements are an integral 3art of this statement.
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City of San Jos~
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2009

($o0o’s)

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and Investments held

in City Treasury
Investments of retirement plans:

investments, excluding securities lending collateral:
Domestic fixed maturities
International fixed maturities
Domestic equities
International equities
Private equities
Derivatives

Real estate
Cash equivalents and short term Investments
Securities lending cash collateral investment pool

Pension
Trust
Funds

1,105,2o9
162,104

t ,085,43o
768,395
134,039

(175)
270,760

(10)
230,267

Total Investments 3,756,019

Other cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowances

for uncollectibles):
Accrued investment income 15,366
Employee contributions 2,692
Employer contributions 11,826
Other 72,906

Total assets 3,858,809

LIABILITIES
Due to brokers 123,013
Securilles lending collateral, due to borrowers 242,950
Other liabilities 6,401

Total liabilities 372,364

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for:                        t

Employees’ pension benefits 3,358,098
Employees’ postemployment healthcare benefits 128,347
Other purpose

$ 3,48~,4,~5

James Lick
Private Purpose

Trust Fund

58

33

91

91
9t

Agency
Funds

1,858

11

1,869

1,869

1,869

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of San Jos~
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

($000’s)

ADDITIONS           ,
Investment income:

Interest
Dividends
Net rental income
Net change in fair value of plan investments
Investment expenses

Total investment income (loss)
Securities lending activities:

Securities lending expenses
Total securities lending activities

Contributions:
Employer
Employees

Total contributions
Total additions

James Lick
Pension Private
Trust Purpose
Funds Trust Fund

67,934 6
34,141
11,077

(88!,668) ’-
(16,454)

(784,970) 6

(8,380)
(8,380)

136,379
58,465.

194,844

(5g8,506) 6

DEDUCTIONS
General and administrative 4,969
Health insurance 39,763
Refunds to terminated employees 1,758
Retirement and other benefits paid:.

Death benefits paid 12,903
Retirement benefitspaid 192,132

Total deductions 251,525

Change In net assets (850,031) 6

Net assets - beginning 4,336,476 85
Net assets - ending $ 3,486,445 91

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part Of this statement.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The City of San Jos6, California.(the "City"), was chartered on March 25, 1850, and has operated
under a Council-Manager form of government since 1916. The City has defined its reporting entity
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") in the United States of
America, which provide guidance for determining which governmental activities, organizations, and
functions should be included in the reporting entity, In evaluating how to define the City for financial
reporting purposes, management has considered all poti~ntial component units. The primary
criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body’s
financial accountability. A primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting
majority of a component unit’s governing body and it is able to impose its will on the component
unit, or if there is a potential for the component unit to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. A primary government may also be
¯ financially accountable if a component unit is fiscally dependent on the primary government
regardless of whether the component unit has a separately elected governing board, a governing
board aplSointed by a higher level of government, or a jointly appointed board. Based upon the
application of these criteria, the following is a’ brief description of each component unit included
within the City’s reporting entity. All such component units have been "blended" as though they are
part of the primary government because the componen~t unit’s governi,ng body is substantively the
same as the City’s primary government, and/or the component units provide services entirely, or
almost entirely, to the City or otherwise exclusively, or alm.ost exclusively, benefits the City, even
though it does not provide services directly to it.

Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Jos6 -.The Redevelopment Agency of the City of
San Jos~ (the "Redevelopment Agency") was created by the City Council with the authority and
responsibility for redevelopir~g and upgrading blighted areas of the City. The members of the
City Council are also members of the Redevelopment Agency’s Board of Directors and, as
such, are authorized to transact business and exercise their power to plan, engineer, and carry
out projects of the Redevelopment Agency.

Parking Authority of the City of San Jos~ - The Parking Authority ofthe City of San Jos6
(the "Parking Authority") was created by the City Council to provide funding through debt
issuance f~r parking facilities constructed on City-owned land. Such parking facilities are leased
to the City. Members of the City Council are also members of the Parking Authority’s Board of
.Directors.

San Jos~ - Santa Clara Clean Water Financing Authority - The San Jos~ - Santa Clara
Clean Water Financing Authority (the "Clean Water Financing Authority") was created pursuant
to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of San Jos~ and the City of Santa
Clara. The purpose was to finance the acquisition of, and additions and improvements to the
existing San Jos~ - Santa Clara Water Pollution Control Plant (the Plant). The Clean Water
Financing Authority is governed by a five-member Board of Directors, three are members of th6
City Council of the City of San Jos6 and two are members of the City Council of the City of
Santa Clara. The Clean Water Fin.ancing Authority arid the cities of San Jos~ and Santa Clara
subsequently entered into an Improvement Agreement, which requires each city to make base
paymentsthat are at least equal to each city’s allocable share of debt service requirements of
the Clean Water.Financing Authority’s outstanding revenue bonds.
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City of San Jos~ Financing Authority - The City of San Jos6 Financing Authority (the
"Authority") was created by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City and the
Redevelopment Agency. The Authority was created for the purpose of facilitating the financing
of public improvements and facilities within the City and is authorized to issue bonds for this
purpose. The Authority is governed by an 11 member Governing Board, which consists of the
members of the City Council.

Separate financial reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, containing additional information
and more detailed information regarding financial condition and change in financial positi.on, are
available from the City’s Director of Finance, 200 East’ Santa Clara Street; .13~h Floor, San Jos~, CA
95113-1905, for the following:

¯ Federated City Employees’ Retirement System (the "System")

¯ Police and Fire Department Retirement Plan (the "Plan")

¯ Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Jos~

¯ Norman Y. Mineta San Jos6 International Airport

¯ San Jos6 - Santa Clara Clean Water Financing Authority

B. Financial Statement P~resentation

Government.wide Financial Statements. The.government-wide finahcial statements (i.e. the
statement of net assets and the statement of activities) display information about the primary
government (the "City") and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of
the overall government, except.for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double counting of internal activities. For example, the direct expenses charges based on actual
use are not eliminated, whereas indirect expense allocations made in the funds are eliminated.
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City.
Governmental activities, which normally are ’supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues and
other non-exchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees cha~’ged to external parties.

The statement of activities, which is included in the government-wide financial statements, presents
a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each business-type activity of
the City and each function of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a business-type activity or governmental function and; therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular activity or function. Program revenues include 1) fees, fines and
charges paid by .the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are instead
presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide’ information about the City’s
funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category, such as
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary, are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements
are on the major governmental and enterprise funds of the City and are reported separately in the
accompanying financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported
as non-major funds in the accompanying financial statements.

41



Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certaii~ government functions or activities. A fund is a separate
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

The City reports the following major governmen!al.funds: .

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all revenues and
expenditures necessary to carry out basic governmental activities of the City that are not
accounted for through other funds.

The Redevelopment Agency Fund is a capital projects fund that accounts for administrative,
operating, low-to-moderate income housing program, debt and construction activities necessary
to carry out responsibilities for redeveloping and upgrading blighted areas in the City.

The Housing Activities Fund is a special revenue fund that accounts for the City’s affordable
housing activities.

The Special Assessment Districts Fund is a capital projects fund that accounts for the capital
project and debt activities related to debt issued to finance public improvements benefiting
properties against which special assessments or special taxes are levied.

The City of San Jos6 Financing Authority Fund is a debt service fund that accounts for the
debt activities related to capital projects funded with Authority debt.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Norman Y. Mineta San Jos# International Airport Fund accounts for the activities of the
City owned commercial service and general aviation airport.

The Wastewater Treatment System Fund accounts for the financing, construction and
operations of the City’s ~ewer system, the San Jos6 - Santa Clara Water Pollution Control Plant
(the Plant) and the regional water reclamation program,

The Municipal Water System Fund accounts for the operations Of the five water system
operating districts: North San Jos6, Evergreen, Coyote, Edenvale and AIviso.

The Parking System Fund accounts for the operations of ’the parking garage facilities, parking
lots and parking meters located within the City.

The City reports the following fiduciary fund types:.

The Pension Trust Funds account for the accumulated resources to be used for retirement
annuity and postemployment healthcare payments to members of the Federated City Employees’
Retirement System (the "System") and the Police and Fire Department’ Retirement Plan (the
"Plan" and collectively, the "Retirement System").

The .James Lick Private Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for resources legally held in
trust for use towards the support of the Eastfield Home of Benevolence (orphanage)..All
resources of the fund, including any earnings on invested resources, are used to support the
organization’s activities.

The Agency Funds account for assets held by the City in a custodial capacity on behalf of the
San Jos6 Arena and the Health Care Financing Administration.
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C, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting determines when transactions are reported on the financial statements.
The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary funds (excluding agency funds) financial
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide,
proprietary funds and trust funds financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
ac(~ounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in
which the City gives (or re~eives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in
exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and donatior~s. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenues from sales and use, transient occupancy and utility user tax are recognized when the
underlying transactions take place. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus. This
focus !s on the determination of, and changes in financial resources, and generally only current
assets and current liabilities are included in the balance sheet. These funds use the modified
accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which
they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period. For this
purpose, the City considers revenues as available if they are collected within sixty days of the end
of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred.
However, principal and interest on long-term debt and certain estimated liabilities, such as
compensated absences and self-insurance claims, are recorded only when payment is due.

In governmen(al funds, revenues from taxes, licenses, franchise taxes, interest, certain state and
federal grants and charges for services associated with the current fiscal period -are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues, in the current period. All
other revenue items are considered measurable and available only when cash is received by the
city.

Proprietary funds distinguish between operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
Also included as operating revenues are the Wastewater Treatment System Fund’s contributions
from other participating agencies for their allocation of the plant’s operating and mainteoance
expense. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales, and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-.operating revenues and expenses,

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and genei’al revenues. Thus, when program
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. It is the City’s policy to first apply restricted cost-reimbursement grant resources, to such
programs, followed by restricted categorical block grants, and then by unrestricted general
revenues,

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments ,also have the option of following subsequent private-
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sector guidance for business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation.
The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

D. Use of Estimates

A number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of revenues,
expenditures/expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities were used
to prepare these financial statements in conformity, with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

E. New Pronouncements

In November 2006, GASB issued Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations, which addresses accounting and financial reporting standards
for pollution (including contamination) remediation obligations, which are obligations to address the
current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation
activities such as site assessments and cleanups. The scope of the statement excludes pollution
prevention or control obligations with respect to current operations and future pollution remediation
activities that are required upon retirement of an asset, such as landfill closure and post-closure
care. Application of this statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The
additional disclosure concerning the implementation of GASB 49 is available in Note II1.

The City is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the
financial statements for the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statements:

In June 2007, GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible
Assets. This Statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope
provisions be classified as capital assets. Accordingly, existing authoritative guidance related to the
accounting and financial reporting for capital assets should be applied to these intangible assets, as
applicable. This Statement also provides authoritative guidance that specifically addresses the
nature of these intangible assets. Such guidance should be applied in addition to the existing
authoritative guidance for capital assets. Application of this statement is effective for the City’s fiscal
year ending June 30, 2010.

In June 2008, GASB issued.Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instruments. The Statement specifically requires goyernments to measure and report most
derivative instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The requirement of
reporting the derivative instruments at fair value on the face of financial statements gives the users
of financial statements a clearer look into the risks their governments are sometimes exposed to
when they enter into these transactions and how those risks are .managed. The Statement also
addresses hedge accounting requirements and improves disclosures, providing a summary of the
government’s derivative instrument activity, its objectives for entering into derivative instruments,
and their significant terms and risks. Application of this Statement is effective for the City’s fiscal
year ending June 30, 2010.

In March 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions. The objective to this Statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied
and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. This Statement e~tablishes fund
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balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a
government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in
governmental funds. Application of this Statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June
30, 2011,

F. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted and unrestricted pooled cash and investments held in the City Treasury and other
unrestricted investments, invested by the City Treasurer, are considered cash equivalents for
purposes of the statement of cash flows because the City’s cash management pool and funds
invested by the City Treasurer possess the characteristics of demand deposit accounts. Other
restricted and unrestricted investments with maturities less than three months at the time of
purchase are also considered cash equivalents for purposes’of the statement of cash flows,

2. Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments Held in City Treasury

Most cash balances of the City’s funds and some of its component units are pooled and invested by
the City Treasurer unless otherwise dictated by legal or contractual requirements. Income and
losses adsing from the investment activity of pooled cash are allocated to the participating funds
and component units on a monthly basis, based on their proportionate shares of the average
weekly cash balance.

3. Deposits and Investments

Investments are accounted for in accoi*dance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.

\

This Statement requires governmental entities to report investments at fair value in the statement of
net assets or balance sheet and to recognize the correspond ng change in fair value of investments
in the year in which the change occurred.

Pooled Cash and Investments held in City Treasury. The. City reports its investments held in
City Treasury at fair value. The fair value is based on quoted market information obtained from
fiscal agents or other sources. Income from some investments is transferred to the General Fund.
The assignment of the income from these investments is supported by legal or contractual
provisions approved by the City Council. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the total
investment income from these funds transferred to the General Fund was approximately
$3,717,000.                                                                    ~

Retirement Systems. The Retirement Systems investment policies authorize various types of
investments, including securities lending transactions. These investments are reported at fair value.
Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price
on the last business day of the fiscal year at current exchange rates, if applicable. Investments that
do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value. The fair value of the private
equities are based on actual cash flows to/from the Retirement Systems and the transactions and
unrealized gain/loss as ascertained from the most recently available investor reports or financial
statements issued by the manager of those funds. The fund manager provides an estimated
unrealized gain/loss of the fund based on the financial statements and other portfolio information
received from their underlying po~olio par:tnerships, The fair value of real estate investments is
based on independent appraisals. Purchases and sales of securities are reflected on the date of
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trade. Investment income is recognized as earned. Rental income from real estate activ!ty is
recognized as earned, net of expenses.

Other Investments. Non-pooled investments are generally carried at fair value. However,
investments in investment agreements are carried at cost. Income from non-pooled investments is
recorded based on the specific investments held by the fund. The interest, income is recorded in the
fund that earned the interest.

4. Inventories

Inventories of proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost (first-in/first-out) or market. In the
governmental funds, inventory items are valued at average cost. Inventories of governmental funds
are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

5. Special Assessment Districts

Special assessments are recorded as receivables when they become a lien on property. Special
assessments not considered available are recorded as receivables and offset by deferred revenues
in the governmental fund financial statements. The special assessment bonds are full.y secured by
liens against the privately owned properties benefited by the, improvements for which the bonds
were issued. There is no reserve for delinquent receivables since priority liens exist against the
related properties and hence the City’s management believes value will ultimately be received by
the City, Surplus funds remaining at the con3pletion of a special assessment district project are
disposed of in accordance with the City Council’s resolutions and with the applicable assessment
bond laws of the State of California. A liability is recorded for the balance remaining until a final
legal determination has been made.

6. Advances and Deposits

Amounts deposited in connection with eminent domain proceedings and special assessment
.surpluses are reported as advances and deposits. In the governmental fund statements, non-
current portions of these are offset equally by either a deferred credit or a fund-balance reserve
account indicate they do not constitute expendable .financial resources available for appropriation.

7, Other Assets

Other assets primarily consist of real properties acquired outright and/or through foreclosure in
connection with the housing rehabilitation program. These assets are recorded at the lower of cost
or estimated net realizable value.

8. Bond Issuance Costs; Original Issue Discounts and Premiums and Deferred Amounts on
Refundings

In the government-wide financial statem’ents and the proprietary fund fir~ancial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
deferred and are amortized over the term of the related debt. Gains or losses occurring from
advance refundings, completed subsequent to June 30, 1993, are deferred and amortized into
expense for both business-type activities and proprietary funds. For governmental activities, they
are deferred and amortized into expense if they occurted subsequent to June 30,200!.
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In the fund financial statements’, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Restricted Assets

Assets that are restricted for specific uses by bonded debt requirements, grant provisions or other
requirements are classified as restricted because they are maintained in separate bank accounts or
by fiscal agents and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants or agreements.

10. Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, buildings, improoements, vehicles and equipment, infrastructure and all
other tangible and intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial useful lives
extending beyond a single reporting period. Capital assets are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activity columns in the government-wide financial statements and
the proprietary funds’ statement of net assets. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial
individual cost of more than $5,000 for general capital assets and $100,000 for major infrastructure
.assets, and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased .or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the time received. C’apital outlay is recorded as expenditures of the
governmental funds and as assets in the government-wide financial statements to the extent the
City’s. capitalization threshold is met. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital
assets of business-type activities is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of
interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Amortization of assets acquired
under capital leases is based on the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the
asset and is included in depreciation and amortization.

Buildings and improvements, infrastructure, and vehicles and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings
Improvements, other than buildings
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Intangible assets

5 - 40 years
10 - 50 years
25 - 50 years

2 - 40 years
10 years
40 years

Capital assets which are used for general governmental purposes and are not available for
expenditure are accounted for and reported on in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets that meet the definition of the major infrastructure networks or extend the life of
existing infrastructure networks are capitalized as infrastructure. Infrastructure. networks include
road, bridges, drainage systems, and lighting systems.
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11. Compensated Absences- Accrued Vacation, Sick Leave, and Compensatory Time

Vacation, sick leave, compensatory time, and related benefits are accrued as determined by the
agreement between the City and th6 employees’ group. For governmental funds, compensated
absence obligations are recorded in the appropriate governmental funds when due. The portion not
currently due is recorded in the government-wide financial statements. For enterprise funds,
compensated absences are expensed when earned by employees. At year-end, the accrued but
unpaid compensated absence obligations are recorded as current and non-current liabilities in the
appropriate enterprise funds.

Vacation pay may be accumulated up to two tim~s :the annual accrual rate, not to exceed a
maximum of 400 hours for non-sworn employees.

Employees represented by the San Jose Police Officer’s Association (SJPOA) may carry over to
the next payroll calendar year not more than 200 hours of unused vacation leave. Employees
represented by the International Association of Firefighters, Local 230 maycarryover to the next
payroll calendar year not more than 200 hours of unused vacation leave for employees on a 40
hour workweek and 240 hours for those employees on a 56 hour workweek. All employees under
this bargaining unit shall not be allowed to accrue vacation in excess of two times their annual
vacation accrual rate.

"Employees in the Federated City Employees Retirement System who retire with at least 15 years of
service (20 years for police officers and firefighters in the Police & Fire Department Retirement
Plan) are eligible to receive, upon~ retirement, sick leave payouts based on percentages of
accumulated sick hours as determined by the respectiv.e Agreements.

The following table outlines sick leave payout percentages for full-time and deferred vested
employees.

800 to "1,200 Hours
(t,120 - 1,61]0 for

Employee Type Retirement Plan Firefighters)
Management Federated 75%

Non-Management Federated 75%
All Employee Types Police and Fire 80%

Greater than "1,200 Hours
(t,680 for Firefighters)

75% up to 1,392 hrs
No payout beyond 1,200 hrs

100%

12. Inter.fund Transactions

Inter-fund transactions are reflected as loans, services provided, reimbursements and/or transfers.
Loans and balances related to unsettled service transactions are reported as receivables and
payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consolidation of similar fund types, and are
referred to as either "~lue to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of inter-fund loans and
unsettled service transactions) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of
inter-fund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal
balances". Advances to other funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a
fund-balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not available financial resources.
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Services provided are deemed to be at market or near market rates and are treated as revenues
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are defined as when one fund incurs a cost, charges
the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other inter-fund
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are
netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide presentation.

13. Self-Insurance

The City is self-insured for workers’ compensation, general liability, auto liability, and certain other
risks. The City’s workers’ compensation activities are funded and accounted for separately in the
fund finartcial statements based upon the activities of each fund. The current portion of claims
liability is accounted for in the General Fund and the enterprise funds on !he basis of settlements
reached or judgments entered within the current fiscal year. In the government-wide financial
statements and the enterprise fund financial statements, the estiCnated liability for all self-insurance
liability, claims is recorded as a liability.

14. Net Assets/Fund Equity

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net assets presentation.
Net assets are categorized as invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted, and
unrestricted.

Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This category groups all capital assets,
including infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of debt that are attri’butable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

Restricted Net Assets - This category represents net assets that have external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislatiqn. At June
30, 2009, the government-wide statement of net assets reported restricted assets of $654.1
million in governmental activities and $103.7 million in business type activities. Of these
amounts $320.8 million and $35.9 million, respectively are restricted by enabling legislation.
Certain prior year net assets within the business type activities have been reclassified from
restricted to unrestricted to conform with the provisions of the new Airline Lease Agreement
and the Master Trust Agreement. Accordingly, restricted amounts pertained only to the
targeted revenue sharing of the airlines, the rolling debt service coverage and the amount
held by the fiscal agent.

Unrestricted Net Assets - This category represents net assets of the City, not restricted for
any project or other purpose.

In the governmental fund financial statements, reserves and designations segregate portions of
fund balance that are either not available or have been earmarked for specific purposes. The
various reserves and designations are established by actions of the City Council and management
and can be increased, reduced or eliminated by similar actions.
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Reservations of fund balance are described as follows:

¯ Encumbrances - to reflect the outstanding contractual obligations for which goods and
services have not been received.

¯ Non-current advances, loans, other assets, and cash commitments - to reflect the portion of
assets that are not currently available as a Spendable resource.

¯ ¯ Debt service - to reflect the funds held by trustees or other fiscal agents for future payment of
principal and interest related to bond i~sue. These funds are not available for general
operations.

Portions of unreserved fund balance may be desigflated to indicate tentative plans for financial
resource utilization in a future period. Such plans or intent are subject to change and have not been
legally authorized or may not result in expenditures: Fund balance designations include:

¯ Contingencies to reflect management’s intent to expend certain funds for future
unanticipated needs.

Future projects - to reflect management’s intent to expend certain funds approved for capital
projects in prior Years but not yet completed.

The unreserved governmental fund balance designations at June 30, 2009 are composed of the
following (dollars in thousands):

Special
General Redevelopment Housing Assessment Nonmajor

Fund Agency Activities Districts Funds Total

Unreserved, designated for:
Future projects $ 50,454 460 8,260 430,719 $ 489,893
Contingencies 47,296 47,296

Undesignated 81,043 33,466 26,772 141,281
Total unreserved fund balaoces    $ 178,793 33,466 27,232 8,260 430,719 $ 678,470

t5. Property Taxes

Property taxes are collected on behalf of and remitted to the City by Santa Clara County (the
County). The amount of property tax levies is restricted byArticle t3A of the California State
Constitution (commonly referred to as Proposition 13).

The County assesses property values, levies, bills, and collects the related property taxes as
follows:

¯ Secured Unsecured
Valuation./lien dates January 1 January 1
Levy dates October I July 1
Due dates (delinquent a’Rer) 50%on November 1 (December IO) July1 (August31)

50% on February 1 (April IO)

.The ~3ity has elected to participate in the "Teeter Plan" offered by the County whereby cities receive
100% of secured property and supplemental property taxes levied in exchange for foregoing any
interest and penalties collected on the related delinquent taxes. Accordingly, property taxes levied
for the fiscal year are recorded as revenue when received from the County.

50



Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

General property taxes are based either on a flat 1% rate applied to the fiscal !976 full value of the
property or on 1% of the sales price of the property on sales transactions and construction that
occur after the fiscal 1976 valuation. Assessed values on properties (exclusive of increases related
to sales and construction) can rise at a maximum of 2% per year depending on increases in the
consumer price index.

The City’s net assessed valuation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, was .approximately
$125.3 billion, an increase of approximately 5% over the previous year. The tax rate was
approximately $0.189 per $100 of assessed valuation, which included the 1% basic levy and
additional levies for general obligation bonds Measures "O" and "P" (2000) and Measure "O"
(2002).

16. Wastewater Treatment System

The Wastewater Treatment System is an enterprise of the City and is comprised of the San Jos6 -
Santa Clara Water Pollution Control Plant (the Plant)i including South Bay Water Recycling and the
San Jos6 Sewage Collection System.

The Plant provides wastewater treatment services to the City of San Jos~ and to seven other
sewage collection agencies. The Clean Water Financing Authority was established to provide
financing for the capital programs of the Plant including the regional water reclamation program.
The City’s sewer service rates pay for the City’s share of the Plant operations, maintenance, and
administration and capital costs.

In 1959, the City and the City of Santa Clara entered into an agreement t6 jointly own and operate
the Plant. Under the agreement, the City of San Jos6 serves as the administering agency and is
responsible for operating and maintaining the Plant. The cities share in the cap!tal and operating
costs on a pro rata basis deter’mined by the ratio of each city’s assessed valuation to the sum of
both cities’ assessed valuations. Annually, these percentages are determined and applied to the
capital and operating costs on an accrual basis For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City’s
portion of the capital and operating costs was approximately 81.0% and, based on operations
through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City’s interest in the net assets of the Plant was
approximately 83.2%.

II. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Deficit Fund Balances

Deficit fund balances of $3"23,000, $24,000 and $438,000 were reported in non-major capital
projects Fiber Optics Development Fund, the Interim City Facilities Improvement Fund and the Civic
Center Improvement Fund, respectively. The deficit fund balance for the Fiber Optics Development
Fund will be eliminated with future transfers from the General Fund, The Interim City Facilities
Improvement Fund and the Civic Center Improvement Fund deficits will be eliminated with transfers
made from future commercial paper proceeds.

51



Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California
Government Code and Policy, if more restrictive:

Authorized Investment Type

U.S. Treasury Obllgation~
U.S. Government Agency Issues
Bankers’ Acceptances
Insured Time Deposits
Uninsured Time Deposits
Commercial Paper
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Repurchase Agreements
Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Maximum
Maximum Maximum Percentage Investment in
Maturity of Dollar of Portfolio One Issuer

5 years None None
5 years None None

180 days 25% 5%
3 years $10 million 5%

18 months $10 million 5%
270 days 20% 5%
180 days 25% 5%
10 days None None
30 days $25 million or 20% None

(Which ever is less)
3 years 15% 5%

None None None
None 15% 5%

5 years 15% 5%
5 yeses 5% 5%
5 years 10% 5%
None None None

Corporate Notes
Local Agency California Investment Fund
Money Market Mutual Funds
California Municipal Bonds - Category 1
California Municipal Bonds - Category 2
California Municipal Bonds - Category 3
Investment Agreements,

Other restrictions on investments are summarized as follows:

Purchases of United States government agency securities are limited to issues of
Federal Farm Credit Banks (FFCB), the Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB),
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), the Federal National
Mortgage Association (FNMA), and Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA).

The purchase of Banker Acceptances (BAs) are limited to issues by domestic U.S.
or foreign banks .and which must be rated by Fitch Ratings as follows: an issuer
rating of "B" or better for domestic U.S., "C" or b~tter for California banks or "A/B ....
or better for foreign banks. Additionally, foreign BAs mDst be in U,S. dollar
denominations.                                      ~

Insured and uninsured time deposits are limited to issuances from banks and
savings and loans with offices located in the San Jose area and deposits shall not
exceed the net worth of that depository. Additionally, concerning uninsured time
deposits, depositories must have an issuer rating of "B" or better by Fitch Ratings
and be collateralized in a manner prescribed by state law for depositories.

Investments in commercial paper are limited to investments in domestic
corporations with the highest ranking or with the highest letter and number ratihg
as provided for by the three nationally, recognized rating services. Issuing
corporations must be organized and opera!ing within the U.S. and have total assets
in excess of $500,000,000.

¯ Negotiable certificates of deposit are limited to banks and savings and loans with
an issuer rating of "A/B" or better by Fitch Ratings and may not exceed the net
worth of issuing institution.
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Repurchase agreements are to be executed only with .primary dealers of the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York and financial institutions, which have entered
into the City’s Master Repurchase Agreement and any subsequent amendments to
the Master Repurchase Agreement. Securities accepted as collateral for the
repurchase agreement are limited to U.S. Treasury or U.S. Federal Government
Agencies permitted under the Policy. The market value of the securities that have
been accepted as collateral shall, at the time of transfer, equal at least 102 percent
face value of the repurchase agreement. For other than overnight investments, the
securities transferred shall be marked to market on a daily basis and maintained at
a market value to at least 102 percent of repurchase agreement’s face value.

Corporate notes eligible for investment must be rated ’,A" or better by two of the
three nationally recognized rating services.

Funds invested in Local Agency Investment Fund, a State of California managed
investment pool, may be made up to the maximum dollar amount pei" separate
legal entity in conformity with account balance limits authorized by the California
State Treasurer.

Investments in money market mutual funds are limite~l to those funds registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and for which either one of the
credit criteria are met: (1) obtained the highest ranking or highest letter and
numerical rating provided by no less than two nationally recognized rating services
or (2) retaiqed an investment advisor registered with the SEC or exempt from the
SEC registration requirements with no less than five years experience investing in
securities and obligations authorized by California Government Code Section
53601 and managing money market mutual funds with assets under management
in excess of $500,000,000". Investments by the funds are restricted to U.S.
Treasury and U.S. Government Agency backed securities permitted under the
Policy and be maintained at no less than $1.00 per share.

Reverse repurchase agreements under the Policy are limited to the lesser of
$25,000,000 or 20% of the portfolio value and to those occasions where
unanticipated short-term cash requirements can be met more advantageously by
initiating a reverse repurchase agreement than by selling a security into the
secondary market prior.to maturity.

Investment agreements may be used for the investment of bond proceeds in
accordance with the permitted investment provisions of the specific bond
indentures and in accordance with other safeguards outlined in the Policy to reduce
the risk associated with a Provider’s inability to meet its contractual obligations.

California municipal bonds under the Policy are limited to a total of no more than
20% of the portfolio value. The Policy establishes three California municipal bond
categories (1 through 3): bonds issued by the City or its agencies (as defined in the
Policy), by the State of California, and by other’California local agencies,
respectively. Eligible securities must be rated AA or better by two nationally
recognized rating services. For category 3, a rating of AAA through credit
enhancements is also permitted.
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The Policy permits the Director of Finance to authorize investments that.depart from the Policy’s
numerical limits if such an action is in the best interest of the City and is otherwise consistent with
the Policy and applicable City, State and federal laws. Whenever a deviation or exception to the
Policy occurs, it must be reported to the City Manager and the City Council within one business
day.

The following schedule indicates the interest rate risk, credit quality risk and concentration credit
risk of the City’s investments, as of June 30, 2009. The credit ratings listed are for Moody’s
Investors Services and Standard and Poor’s, respectively. Certain investments, such as obligations,
which are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government, are exempt from
credit rating disclosures (dollars in thousands):

Pooled investments In the City Treasury:.
U.S. Treasury notes
Federal Farm Credit Banks *
Federal Farm Credit Banks - Callable
Federal Home Loan Banks *
Federal Home Loan Banks - Callable"
Federal Home Loan Banks - Discount"
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation *
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation - Callable
Federal Home Loan Modgage Corporation - D[scount
Federal National Mortgage Association - Discount *
Commercial paper - Discounted *
Medium-term notes

Negotiable certiticate of deposit

Total pooled investments In the City Treasury

Other funds:
Federal Farm Credit Banks
Federal Home Loan Banks**
Federal Home Loan Banks - Discount

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation - Discount
Federal Nag0nal Mortgage Association
Federal Nagonal Mortgage Association - Discount
Cltigroup Investment agreements*"
Commercial paper*’*
Money market mutual funds
Local agency investment fund

Total other funds
Total cltywtda investments (excluding Retirement Systems)

Regmment Systems:
Total Investments In Retirement Systems (See page 61 and 62)

"t’otal Investments

Maturity
Credit Under 30 3t - 180 181. 366 1 ¯ 8 Carrying
Rating Days Days Days Years Value

Exempt 8,989
Aaa / AAA 44,435
Aaa I AAA
Aaa / AAA 106,086
Aaa I AAA
P-I / A-l÷ 75,000 39,981
Aaa I AAA 4,748
Aaa / AAA
P-I / A-l+ 15,000 29,967
P-I / A-I+ 141,419
P-1/A-I+ 128,272 19,985

AAA
AA

’ P-I I A-I IO,006
Nat Rated

228,278

19,722 63,935

30,494

20,624 ~19,036
78,134

66,593
5,152

5,036
25,791

180,00g
395,610 220,354 394,171

8,989
128,092
30,494

245,746
78,134

114,981
71,341

5,152
44,967

141,419
148,257

5,036
25,791
10,006

180,008
1,238,413

Aaa I AAA 5,373 5,373
Aaa/AAA 9,930 4,563 50,326 38,350 103,189
P-I/A-l+ 4,586 4,586
Aaa I AAA 3,542 3,~42
P-I/A-I+ 3 182 185
Aaa/AAA 315 315
P-1 I A-l+ 905 905
Not rated 379,143 379,143
P-1/A-l+ 32,251 45,166 77,417

AAAm 14,032 37,840 51,872
Not Rated 284,520. 284,520

58,216 88,656 343,289 422,866 911,027
$ 284,494 =    484,266 563,643 817,037 2,149,440

3,756,019
$ 5,905,459

Investments ’�,it h these Issuers represent more than 5% of the City’s pooled investments held in the City’s "l’reasury,
Investments represent more than 5% of the City’s investments held by Fiscal Agents,
As of June 30, 2009, the Agency’s commercial paper investments with Union Bank in the amount of $77,417,000 represents more than 5%
of the City’s Investments held outside the City’s TraasuP/pool,
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Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk’ that, in the event of the failure of
a depository financial institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk
for investments is the risk that, in the event of the fail.ure of the counterparty (e.g., broker - dealer)
to a transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code requires
that a financial institution secure its deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by the depository regulated under state law (unless so
waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged governmental securities and/or
first trust deed mortgage notes held in the collateral pool must be at least 110% and 150% of the
City’s deposits, respectively. The collateral is held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department and is considered held in the City’s name.

As of June 30, 2009, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits with financial institutions was
approximately $52,121,000 and the bank balance was $69,498,000. The difference between the
carrying amount and bank balance relates to outstanding checks and wire transfers issued against
the general operating account. Of the bank balance, $65,354,000 was covered by Federal
depository insurance and $4,144,000 was collateralized.

Foreign Currency Risk. The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. As of June 30, 2009, the investments in the City’s investment pool were not
subject to foreign currency risk.

2. Retirement Systems

Interest Rate Risk. The fair value of fixed-maturity investments fluctuate in response to changes in
market interest rates. Increases in prevailing interest rates generally translate into decreases in fair
value of those instruments. The fair value of interest sensitive instruments may also be affected by
the creditworthiness of the issuer, prepayment options, relative values of alternative investments,
and other general market conditions. Certain fixed maturity investments have call provisions that
could result in shorter maturity periods. The Retirement Systems do not have policies for managing
interest rate risk although the Retirement Systems do hold certain investments that could be
affected by changes in interest rates. The Retirement Systems have investments in U.S.
Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) in the amount of $22,711,000 and U.S.
gogernment agency securities in the amount of $251,466,000 backed by mortgage pass-throughs
which are sensitive to interest rate changes of which $3,284,000 are floating rate securities tied to
the six and twelve-month LIBOR and $899,000 are tied to the twelve-month MTA. Therefore, if
interest rates decline, the mortgages are subject to prepayments by borrowers. However the
Retirement Systems’ intent is to hold all fixed maturity investments until maturity, and accordingly,
fixed maturity investments are classified in the following tables as if they were held to maturity.
International government bonds include $2,376,000 of a floating rate bond linked to the 10 year
Japanese Government Bond that is reset semi-annually. In.addition, as of Jurie 30, 2009,
$2,671,000 of the collateralized mortgage obligation (CMO) are floating rate securities tied to the
one to twelve-month LIBOR and $3,070,000 are tied to a combination of LIBOR and CMT. Also,
$19,411,000 of the other asset backed securities are floating rate bonds tied to one to twelve-month
LIBOR; $9,433,000 of the corporate bonds are floating rate bonds tied to the one to twelve-month
LIBOR; and $146,000 of the corporate bonds are floating rate but not tied to an index.
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Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that an e~ity will not be able to recover the
value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party if the
counterparty fails. The Retirement Systems do not have a policy regarding custodial credit risk. The
Retirement System.s’ custodians hold all investments of the Retirement Systems in either the
System’s or the Plan’s nominee name, which ever is applicable, except for the assets held in
pooled funds, which are under custody of the investment managers’ custodian bank. The
Retirement Systems’ investments in pooled holdings have the underlying securities valued by the
fund managers in accordance with the Retirement Systems’ fair value standards. At June 30, 2009,
the Retirement Systems had the following pooled holdings: $66,406,000 in fixed income,
$293,184,000 in international equities, $261,446,000 in domestic equities, $122,849,000 in real
estate, and $134,039,000 in Private equities.

Credit Quality Risk. The Systems’ assets shall generally be invested in investment grade,
marketable, fixed-income securities. Domestic fixed maturity investment grade shall be defined as
being rated Baa/BBB or better by two of the following three rating service: Moody’s Investors
Service (Moody’s), Standard & Poor’s (S&P) or Fitch Rating Services (Fitch’s). If the ratings are
provided by only two agencies and the third is non-rated, the most conservative (lowest) rating will
be assigned. If only one agency assigns a rating, that rating will be assigned. Up to 15% !nvestment
in BB or B securities will be permitted with written authorization of the System’s Board. The
investment managers employed to manage domestic fixed-income securities will have discretion in
the day-to-day management of the funds under their control. International’ fixed maturity
investments must be at least Aa3/AA-. If the corresponding ratings assigi~ed by S&P and Moody’s
are not equivalent the higher rating will be used for purposes of measuring portfolio and security
quality. If a security is not rated by S&P or Moody’s, the equivalent rating determined by the
investment manager’s research department will be assigned. If bonds are downgraded below the
minimum credit quality allowable in the.guidelines at the time of purchase, the Investment Mana.g.er
is permitted to hold up to 2% of the Systems’ portfolio managed by the individual manager, using
the lower of S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch’s rating in the event of a split-rated security.

All domestic and international bonds and notes in which the Plan’s assets are invested, and which
mature one year or more from the date of original issues, are required to carry a rating of "BBB" or
better by two of the following three services: S&P, Moody’s or Fitch’s. In the event that ratings are
provided by only two ~gencies and the third is non-rated, the most conservative (lowest) rating will
be assigned. If only one agency assigns a rating, that rating will be used; or, if unrated, shall be of
equivalent quality in the judgment of the Investment Manager to a similar domestic issue.
Investment managers may, with prior written authorization of the Board, invest a maximum of 20%
of their fixed income portfolio in bonds or notes that are rated B or BB. If bonds are downgraded
below the minimum credit quality allowable in the guidelines at the time of purchase, the Investment
Manager is permitted to hold up to 2% of the Plan’s portfolio managed by the individual manager,
using the. lower of S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch’s rating in the event of a split-rated security.

The Retirement Systems may hedge against the possible adverse effects of currency fluctuations
on"the Retirement Systems’ portfolio of international fixed income.obligations when it is considered
appropriate. Short-term investments may consist of commercial paper rated at least A-1 or P-l,
repurchase agreements, short-term U.S. securities, and other money market investments.
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The credit ratings listed below are for Moody’s Investors Services and/or Standard and Poor’s.
Certain investments, such as obligations backed by the full faith and credit of the United States
Government, are exempt from credit rating disclosure.

The following schedule indicates the credit quality rate risk of the Retirement Systems’ investments,
by category, as of June 30, 2009. (dollars in thousands):

Ratings Total Percentage
AAA $ 261,567 20.64%
AA 68,749 5.43%
A 161,752 12.77%

B BB 134,903 10.65%
BB 90,605 7.15%
B .60,756 4.79%

CCC & below 16;778 1.32%
Not rated* 472,028 37.25%

$ 1,267,138 100.00%

* Includes Collective Short-term Investment Funds and derivatives, GNMA, FHMLC and FNMA TBA
mortgages and other cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Retirement Systems’ investment policies limit the aggregate
amount that can be invested in each class of investments. The limits of each policy are as follows:

The Plan

Type of Investment

Equity
Fixed Income
Long’Duration Fixed Income
Alternatives

Real Estate

Policy Limits and Descriptions

Minimum of 41% and maximum of 57% of the fair value of the aggregate portfolio.
Minimum of 15% and maximum of 31% of the fair value of the aggregate p6~folio.
Limited to 7% of the fair value of the aggregate portfolio.
Limited to 28% of the falr value of the aggregate portfolio.
(Funds allotted to the alternatives asset class are temporarily invested in other assets)
Limited to 15% of the market value of the aggregate portfolio.
Real estate investments include:
- Apartment complexes located in Houston, TX and Colorado Spdngs, CO.
- Office buildings located in Denver, CO; San Jose, CA; Anchorage, AK, near

Chicago, IL, Anchorage, AK and an office bullding under construction In O’Fallon, Me,
- Warehouse located near Minneapolis, MN.

(The properties have leases with various terms)

The System Domestic Equity
International Equity
Fixed Income
Private Equiy
Real Estate

Minimum of 28% and maximum of 38% of the fair value of the aggregate portfolio.
Minimum of 15% and .maximum of 25% of the fair value of the aggregate portfolio,
Minimum of 31% and maximum of 41% of the fair value of the aggregate portfolio.
Minimum of 2% and maximum of 8% of the fair value of the aggregate portfolio.
Minimum of 3% and maximum 9% of the fair value of the aggregate portfolio.
Real estate investments include:
- Warehouse located ]n Northern California.
- Interest in eight separate real estate funds managed by third parties.

The collective short-term investment fund is used for overnight investment of all excess cash in the
Retirement Systems’ funds. It is invested by the Retirement Systems’ custodians, and held in the
Retirement Systems’ custodians’ names. This fund consists of:

¯ Short-term fixed corporate and U.S. government obligations or those of any federal agency, or
of other issuers that are fully guaranteed by the U.S. government or a federal agency as to
repayment of principal and the payment of interest;
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¯ Commercial paper;
¯ Certificates of deposit;
¯ Repurchase agreements with major banks and U.S. government securities dealers that are

collateralized by obligations of the U.S. government or a federal agency, or obligations fully
gua[anteed by the~.S, government or a federal agency; and
Fully insured bank deposits.

As of June 30, 2009, the System held $79,559,000 of investments issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association (including non-USD) which represents 5.4% of the System’s total
investments.

Foreign Currency Risk. The risk that changes in foreign exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. As of June 30, 2009, the Retirement Systems were subject to foreign
currency risk. To mitigate this risk, the Retirement System’s investment policy permits individual
investment managers to defensively hedge currency to mitigate the impact on currency fluctuation
on the underlying asset value.

Forward International Currency Contracts. The Retirement Systems made investments in
forward currency contracts, which are commitmentsto purchase or sell stated amounts of
international currency. The Retirement Systems utilize these contracts to control exposure and
facilitate the settlement of international security purchase and sale transactions. At June 30, 2009,
the Retirement Systems’ net position in these contracts is recorded at fair value as forward
international currency contracts. The fair values of forward currency contracts are determined by
quoted currency prices from national exchanges. The Retirement Systems’ investments in forward
currency contracts bear credit risk in that parties to the contracts may fail to perform according to
the terms of the contract. As of June 30, 2009, total commitments in forward currency contracts to
purchase and sell foreign currencies for the System were $10,632,000 and $10,632,000,
respectively, with market values of $10,622,000 and $10,628,000, respectively. As of June 30,
2009, total commitments in forward currency contracts to purchase and sell’ foreign currencies for
the Plan were $2,0i2,000 and $2,012,000 respectively, with fair values of $2,007,000 and
$2,011,000, respectively. The Retirement Systems’ commitments relating to forward currency
contracts are settled on a net basis.

Derivatives. The Retiremeht Systems’ investment policies generally allow for investments in
futures and options that comply with the Retirement’System’s basic objective of achieving the
highest return on investment funds, consistent with safety, and in accordance with accepted
investment practices. At June 30, 2009 the Plan and the System held futures and options with fair
market values of approximately negative $166,000 and $108,000, respectively. Gains and losses
on futures and options are determined based on quoted market values and recorded in the
Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets.

Due to the level of volatility associated with certain derivative investments it is reasonable to expect
significant fluctuations in the fair market value of these securities from the amounts presented in the
financial statements as of June 30, 2009. The Plan specifically prohibits investment managers from
using derivative or synthetic securities that expose the Plan to potentially high price volatility or are
either speculative or leveraged, or whose market-ability may become severely limited.
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The following tables provide information related to the various investment risks that may affect the
investments of the Retirement Systems:

Investment Maturities at Fair Value
As of June 30, 2009

(Dollars in Thousands)

Type of Investment
Fixed ’Maturity:

D~mestic;
U.S. ~’reasury Securities
U,S. Treasury S~ps
GNMA
FHLMC
FNMA
Other U.S. Gov’t Agency Securities
Asset Backed Secudties
Sank Loans
CoIlateralized Mortgage Obligations
Corporate Bonds.
State and Local Obligations
Collective Shert Term Investments
Pooled Domestl’c Bonds

Total domestic maturities

Maturity
3 Months 3 - 6 6 Months - 1 - 5 6 - 10 More Than Total Fair
or Less Months 1 Year Years Years 10 Years Value

6,768 10,859

200

t18,969

125,937

724 10,172 10,590 15,535 $ 54,648
29 29

22,657 22,657
1,396 7,232 66,098 74,726
7,742 16,297 152,065 176,104

586 974 7,334 8,894
234 6,105 6,371 17,983 30,693

51,405 23,233 74,638
144 2,464 60,258 62,866

4,373 109,692 145,655 151,723 411,643
361 4,092 4,453

118,969
¯ - 64,889 64,989

5,475 187,098 278,666 497,774 1,105,20910,859

International=
Government bonds;

Australian Dollar
Brazilian Real
Bdti#h Pound
Canadian Dollar
Euro Currency
Indonesian Rupiah
Japanese Yen
Norwegian Krone
USD Denominated

Total International government bonds
Corporate Bonds:

BdSsh Pound
Canadian Dollar
Euro Currency
Japanese Yen
USD Denominated

Total International oerporsta bonds

Pooled Inlemational Fixed Maturity

143
4,214

693

376
601

2,135
6,05t 6,255

597
12,605 6,619
3,045 1,054
3,016 665

143 4,214 693 25,609 17,329

t,326 1,066
- 427

823 3,774 7,845
962 2,099

47 19,501 29,668
823 47 25,563 41,105

740 51,163 58,434

6,215 238,261 336,500

Total international fixed maturities 966 4,214
Dedvatlves (110)" (65)."

Total fixed maturity $ 126,793 15,008

4,395

7,167

6,697

2,352

20,611

657
369

2,756

20,675
24,459

1,517

46,587

544,361

376
601

4,395
2,278

23,687
507

26,6t4
4,099
6,033

68,590

3,049
798

t5,200
3,061

69,891
91,997

1,517

162,104
(175)

$ 1,267,t38

61



Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

1. Governmental and Business.Type Activities

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market rates will adversely affect
the fair market value of an investment. Generally, the longer the time of maturity of an investment,
the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. Additionally, the fair
values of the investments may be highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations. One of the ways that
the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasi’ng a combination of shorter-term
and longer-term investments and by timing the cash flows from the maturities so that a portion is
maturing ’or coming close to maturing evenly over time, as necessary to provide the cash flow and
liquidity needs for operations.

The City has the ability and generally has the intention to hold all i~vestments until their respective
maturity dates. The average maturity of the City’s pooled cash and investments as of June 30,
2009, was approximately 259 days. The Investment Policy does not prohibit the sale of securities
prior to maturity. However any portfolio restructuring requires prior conceptual approval in writing
from the City Manager and the Dire.ctor of Finance. Section 14.2 of the Investment Policy further
defines the parameters with respect to restructuring the portfolio.

Credit Quality Risk. Credit risk is’the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This risk is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. The City’s investment policy has mitigated credit risk by
limiting investments to the safest type of securities, by prequalifying financial institutions, by
diversifying the portfolio and by establishing monitoring procedures.

Investment in Local Agency Investment Fund, The City is a voluntary participant in the
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is governed by the California Government
Code under the oversight of the Local Investment Advisory Board (Board). The Board consists of
five members as designated by state statute. The fair value of the City’s investment in the LAIF
pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-
rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF, for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the
amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis, which is different from
the fair value of the City’s position in the LAIF pool.

As of June 30, 2009, the City’s investment in LAIF was’ approximately $465,000,000.The total
amount recorded by all public agencies in LAIF at that date was approximately $25.2 billion. Of that
amount, 85.29% was invested in non-derivative financial products and 14.71% in structured notes
and asset backed securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City Council adopted an i~vestment policy (the "Policy") on
April 2, 1985, as amended on June 9, 2009, related to the City’s cash and investment pool, which is
subject to annual review. The Policy specifically prohibits trading securities for the sole purpose of
speculating or taking an unhedgsd position on the future direction of interest rates. Per the Policy
the investments conform to Sections 53600 et seq. of the California Government Code and the
applicable limitations contained Within the Policy.
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II1. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Cash, Deposits and Investments

As of June 30, 2009, total City cash, deposits and investments, at fair value, are as foll6ws (dollars
in thousands):

Fiduciary Funds
Governmental Businass-typa Pension Private-Purpose CamJing

Aotivitlas Aotivltias Trus~t _ Trust . Agenoy Value
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 751,473 356,710 58 1,858 $ 1,110,099Other cash and Investments 6 6
Res~cted inveslments:

Equity in pooled cash and Investments 76,036 99,084 175,120
Other cash and investments 447,190 ,~69,123 33 916,336/Investments of retirement plans 3,756,019 -. 3,756,019.

Total deposits and investments $ t,274,695 924,917 3,756,01.~9 91 1,858= 5,957,580,

Deposits 52,121
Investments 5,905,459

Total deposits and investments $    5,957,580

Pooled Cash and Investments Held in City Treasury. The City maintains a cash and investment
pool that is available for use by all funds and certain component units. Each fund’s portion of this
pool is displayed on the accompanying governmental fund balance sheets and proprietary fund
statement of net assets as "Equity in pooled cash and investments held in City Treasury."

Other Cash and Investments. The City has other investments outside the City Treasury that are
invested pursuant to various governing bond covenants, San Jos6 Municipal Code or California
Government Code provisions.

Other investments consist primarily of deposits and investments with trustees related to the
issuance of bonds and to certain loan programs operated by the City. These investments are made
either in accordance with bond covenants, and are pledged for payment of principal, interest, and
specified capital improvements or in accordance with trust and grant agreements.

Investments of Retirement Systems. The Retirement Systems’ funds are invested pursuant to
policy guidelines established by the respective Boards. The objective of each inves.tment policy is
to maximize the expected return of the funds at an agreed upon level of risk. The Retirement
Boards have established percentage guidelines for types of investments to ensure the portfolio is
dive#sified.

Investment Risk. The investments are subject to certain types of risk, including interest rate risk,
credit quality risk, concentration of credit risk, custodial credit risk and foreign currency risk. These
risks are addressed separately for the investments related to governmental and business-type
activities and those related to the Retirement Systems, as follows:
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Investment Maturities at Fair Value
As of June 30, 2009

Dollars In Thousands)
(Continued)

Type of Investment
Equities’:

Domestic
Pooled domestic equity

Total domestic equities

3 Months
or Less

3 - 6 6 Months - 1 - 5 6 ¯ 10 More Than Total Fair
Months t Year Years Years 10 Years Value

International:
International currency*:

Australian Dollar
Brazilian Real
Bdtish Pound
Canadian Dollar
Danish Krone
Lure Currency
Hang Kong Dollar

’ Indian Rupee
Indonesian Rupiah
Japanese Yen
Malaysian Ringglt
Mexican Peso
New Tslwan Dollar
New Zealand Dollar
Norwegian Krone
Polish Zloty
Singapore Dolla~"
South Afdcan Rand
South Korean Won
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc
Turkish Lira
USD Denominated

Total international ourranoy

Pooled International Equities*

Total international equities

Total equities
Private equity*
Real Estate*     ~
Forward international currency contracts*
Securities Lending Collateral*

Total Investmeqts of retirement plans

$ 623,984
261,446

1,085,430

9,041
12,650
80,750

6,416
6,523

109,400
29,695

9,908
3,773

75,887
1,569
1,402
2,487
1,153

930
3t7

¯ 6A41
5~60
6,488
7,355

27,312
480

69,574
475,211

293,184

768,395

1,853,825
134,039
270,760

(10)
230.267

$ 3,756,0~9

* Investment(s) not subJecl to fixed maturity date
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Securities Lending. The municipal code and the investment policies, adopted by the Boards of the
Retirement Systems, permit the use of a securities lending program with its principal custodian
banks (Custodians). The Retirement Systems do not have a threshold for securities lending. The
investment policy of the System requires that loan maturities cannot stretch beyond one year, and
no more than 15% of the portfolio can be lent longer than six. months. The custodial agreements
with the Retirement Systems’ custodians authorize such custodian to loan securities in the
Retirement Systems’ investment portfolio under such terms and conditions, as the custodians deem
advisable and to permit the loaned securities to be transferred into the name of the borrowers. The
Retirement Systems receive a fee from the borrower for the use of the loaned securities. As of June
30, 2009, the Retirement System’s had no exposure to borrower credit risk related to the securities
lending transactions as the custodians are responsible for the replacement of the loaned securities
with other securities of the same issuer, class and denomination, or if such securities are not
available on the open market, the custodian is required to credit the Retirement Systems’ account
with the market value of such unreturned loaned securities it the loaned securities are not returned
by the borrower. All securities loan agreements can be terminated on demand within a period
specified in each agreement by either the Retirement Systems or borrowers.

Securities lending collateral represents investments in an investment pool purchased with cash
collateral, as well as securities collateral that ,may be pledged or sold without a default by the
borrower. Securities lending transactions collateralized with securities that cannot be pledged or
sold without borrower default are not reported as assets and liabilities in the fiduciary statement of
net assets. The Retirement Systems do not match the maturities of investments made with cash
collateral with the securities on loan.

The Plan authorized State Street Bank and Trust to invest and reinvest cash collateral in State
Street’s pooled investment vehicle which must have an effective duration of 90 days or less.
Securities with maturities of 13 months or more must have a rating of A or better by at least two
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, or if unrated, be of comparable quality
Securities with maturities of les~ than 13 months are rated at least A-l/P-1. As of June 30, 2009,
the size of the cash collateral pooled vehicle was $44.6 billion and the weighted average maturity of
42.64 days. The cash collateral investments included asset backed securities (47% of the pool),
certificates of deposit (20%), corporate securities (6%), bank notes (13%), and other securities
(14%). All of the underlying investments of the Plan’s securities lending cash collateral are held by
the counterparty, not in the name of the Plan.

The System authorized The Northern Trust Company to invest and reinvest cash collateral in
Northern Trust’s pooled investment vehicle which must have weighted average life of 60 days or
less. Securities with maturities of 13 months or more must have a rating of A or better. Securities
with maturities of less than 13 months are rated at least P-3. As of June 30, 2009, the size of the
cash collateral pooled vehicle was $28.6 billion and the weighted average life of 47 days. The cash
collateral investments included time deposits (28% of the pool), repurchase agreements (18%),
asset backed securities (25%), certificates of deposit (16%), variable rate securities (11%) and
commercial paper and other bank notes (2%). All of the underlying investments of the System’s
seci~rities lending cash collateral are held by the counterparty, not in the name of the System.

The loaned securities as of June 30, 2009 consisted of U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. government
agency securities, domestic corporate bonds, international corporate bonds, international
government bonds, domestic equity securities, and international equity securities. In return, the
Retirement Systems receive collateral in the form of cash or securities equal to at least 102% for
domestic and 105% for international of the transferred securities plus accrued interest for
reinvestment.
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As of June 30, 2009, the underlying securities loaned by the Retirement Systems as a Whole
amounted to. approximately $235,848,000.The net asset value (NAV) of the cash collateral pools as
of June 30, 2009 for the Plan and the System were $209,103,000 and $21,164,000, respectively,
on a mark to market basis. The NAV was less than 100% is due to the decline in fair value of the
assets held by the cash collateral pool. The Retirement Systems i.s expos&d to investment risk
including the possible loss of principal values in the cash c511ateral pool due to the fluctuation in the
market value of.the assets held by the cash collateral pool.

The followi~ng table provides information concerning securities lent and collateral received as of
June 30, 2009 (dollars in thousands):

Type of Investment Lent
For Cash Collateral:

U.S. treasury notes and bonds
U.S, government agency securities
Domestic corporate bonds
Domestic equity securities
International equity securities

Total Lent for Cash Collateral

For Non-Cash Collateral:
U.S. treasury notes and bonds
Domestic equity securities

Total Lent for Non-Cash Collateral

Total Securities Lent

The plan The System Total Fair Value

$ 18,511 799 $ t9,310
12,340 144 1~1484
20,762 3,157 23,919

126,965 16,696 143,661
33,769 1,662 35,431

212,347 22,458 234,805

882 882
111 50 161

993 5O 1,043

$ 213,340 22,508 $ 235,848

$ 209,103 21,164 $ 230,267

902 902
114 5O 164

1,016 50 1,066
$ 210,119 21,214 $ 231,333

Type of Collateral Received
Cash Collateral

Non-Cas’h Collateral:
For lent U.S. treasury ~otes and bonds
For lent domestic equity securites

Total Non-Cash Collateral

Total Collateral Received
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B. Receivables, Net of Allowances

Receivables at year-end of the City’s major individual funds and non-major funds taken in
aggregate, incl.uding the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows (dollars in
thousands): ’

Total
Receivables - General Redevelopment Housing Assessment Ftnanalng Honmajer Governmerltal

Governmental Aatlvlties: Fund , Agenoy A~ttvlties Districts Authodty_.~ Funds Aotivlties
Taxes $ 27,596 272 ~,331 $ 32,199
Accrued interest 1,295 674 1,646 14t 6 3,648 7,410Grants 3,667 5,278 11,597 20,542Special assessments 64,886 64,886Other 22,237 588 62 23,081 45,968Less: allowance for uncoltec~ibles (6,74~ (3) !3.267) (10,011)

Tota~ receivables, nat $ 48,054 1,534 6,983 65,027. 6 39,390 $ 160,994

Norman Y, Minete
San Jos~ Westewater Mu~ioipal Total

International Treatment Water Parking Business.Type
Business-Type Activities: AIq~ort System System System A0tlvitles
Accounts $ 9,150 2,703 3,061 117 $ 15,031
Accrued Interest 2,833 "~,391 78 98 4,400
Grants 9,082 3,580 - 12,662

Less: allowance for uncollectJbles (384) 1’605)’ (361) (10) (1,360)
Total receivables, net $ 20.681 7,069 2,779 205 $ 30,733

Special assessment receivables in the amount of $64,886,000 are not expected to be collected
within the subsequent year.

C. Loans Receivable

The composition of the City’s loans receivable as of ,June 30, 2009 is as follows (dollars in
thousands:

General Redevelopment Housing Nonm=,lor
,Type of Loan Fund Agena~/ Aotlvltle~ Funds
20% Housing Program Developer, rehabilitation,

second moll.gage and relocation Ioalls $ 545,319 .
Loans funded by federal grants 44,219 7,643
F:conorn[Q development, real estate developer

and other loans 2,391 49,999 42,~29 779
Lass: allowance for unoollectabtes (13,138) ~341,242) ~2,322)

Total loans, r~et $     2,391 36,858 , 290,925 6,097

Total
Governmental

Activities

$ 545,319
51,862

95,792
~356,7D2)

$ 336,271

California Community Redevelopment Law requires that at least 20% of the incremental tax
revenues generated from certain redevelopment project areas be used to increase, improve, and
preserve the affordable housing stock for families and individuals with very low, low, and moderate
incomes. In response to this requiremen!, the City established its 20% Housing Program to offer
financial assistance to qualified developers, families, and individuals by providing loans at "below
market" rates.

Typical loans and related terms are summarized as fellows:

Loan Type Interest Rate Due
New construction and permanent
Multi-unit rental rehabilitation
Take-out (first time homeowners)
Home improvement

0 - 4% up to 55 years
3% 5 or more years
4% 7 to 40 years

3 ~ 6% 1 to 30 years
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Loans are secured by first, second, third or lower in lien-property deeds of trust except for take-out
loans, which are all secured by second deeds of trust. Interest and principal are typically due in
installments, except for take-out loans, which do not require payments until their maturity dates.

The City has also invested in multi-family rental housing projects serving low to moderate income
individuals through subordinate loans with terms of up to 55 years. Generally, these loans are to be
repaid through fixed payments or net cash flow payments from project operations and t.he term and
potential risk of each loan varies. Because of the net cash flow feature of these subordinate loans,
ea.rnings and repayments are not as definite as with other loans receivable. There is greater risk of
variability in the timing of payments and, potentially, a lower probability of eventual repaymeqt on
these subordinate loans than on other loan types.

The City maintains a valuation allowanc.e against loans receivable comprised of an allowance for
risk and an allowance for present value discount. The allowance for risk is maintained to provide for
losses that can be reasonably anticipated. The allowance is based upon continuing consideration of
changes in the character of the portfolio, evaluation of current economic conditions, and such other
factors that, in the City’s judgment, deserve recognition in estimating potential loan losses. The
allowance for risk takes into consideration maturity dates, interest rates, and other relevant factors.

In accordance with City policy, loans are funded at below market rates of interest and include
amortized net cash flow deferred repayment terms. This policy exists to enhance the well-being of
the recipients or beneficiaries of the financial assistance, who, as described above, are very low,
low, or moderate-income individuals or families, or developers of housing for such individuals or
families.

Accordingly, for financial statement purposes, the City has established an allowance account
against the loans receivable balance containing a present value discount. The present value
discount gives recognition to the economic cost of providing loans a~ interest rates below market,
and represents an estimate of the present value of projected net cash flows to the City from the
loan portfolio, The present value discount attributable to the loans will be recognized as interest
income only as such loans are repaid in full because of the deferred nature of the loan portfolio and
the high level of uncertainty relating to the likelihood that cash flows will occur as projected. The
difference between the individual outstanding loan balances and the calculated net present value of
the loans results in the allowance for present value discount. Losses are recognized through
charges to the allowance and any subsequent recoveries are added to the allowance.         ~

The City’s management believes the combined amount of the aforementioned risk and present
value discount allowances is adequate to reflect the net realizable value of the Community
Development Block Grant ("CDBG") loans, Home Investment Partnership Program ("HOME") loans,
and 20% Housing Program loans receivable as of June 30, 2009.

In the normal course of operations for housing programs, the City has outstanding commitments to
extend credit, which have been encumbered as of June 30, 2009. These commitments involve
elements of credit and interest rate risk similar to those described above for outstanding loans
receivable. As of June 30, 2009, amounts committed to extend credit under normal lending
agreements totaled approximately $40,000,000.
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D. Capital Assets

1. Summary Schedule

The following is a summary of capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 (dollars
in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30

Governmental .activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 559,825 11,757 10,324 ’ 561,258
Construction In progress 140,489 128,381 37 (16,172) 252,661

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 700,314 140,138 10,361 (_.16,172) 813,919

Capital assets, being depreciated;
Buildings
Improvements, other than buildings
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment
Furnitures & fixtures
Property under capital leases

Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreclation for:

Buildings
Improvements, other than buildings
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equlpment
Furnitures & fixtures
Property under capital leases

Total accumulaled depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net
Business-type Activities:
Capital assats, not being depreciated’.

Land
Construction In progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:

I~ulldlng~
Improvements, other Ihan buildings
Vehicles and equipment
I#tanglble assets
Property under capital leases

Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Bulidings
Improvements, other Ihan buildings

, yehicles and equipment
Intangible assets
Property under capital leases

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciate~, net

Bus!nest-type acllvlties capital assets, net

1,261,805 13,595 12,736 1,288,136
126,671 1,709 128,380

11,278,414 19,242 64 3,436 11,301,028
108,513 11,292 2,676 117,129
26,507 26,507
13,379 13,379

12,815,289 45,838 2,740 16,172 12,874,559

264,686. 33,9~8
5,363 2,189

5,329,023 304,600 38
89,734 6,593 2,132
7,922 2,655

12,112 193
5,708,840 350,228 2,170
7,106,zH9 ~304,390) 570
7,806,763 (164,252) 10,931

16,172

298,684
7,552

5,633,585
94,195
10,577
12,305

6,056,898
6,817,661
7,631,580

134,926 134,926
616,188 360,623 3,536 , (105,134) 868,141
751,114 360,623 3,536 (105,134) 1,003,067

573,168 61 59,709 632,938
852,896 4,470 20,399 877,765
150,088 3,918 234 25,026 178,798
15,188 15,188
13,406 13,406

1,604,746 8,449 234 t05,134 1,718,095

244,527 16,944
362,884 22,921
108,874 5,513 222

7,611 324
10,153 454

734,049 46,153 222
870,697 , (37,704) 12 105,134

1,621,811 322,919 3,548

261,468
385,805
114,165

7,935
t0,607

779,980
938,1t5

1,941,152
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2. Depreciation

Depreciation expense charged to various governmental and business type activities of the City for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Governmental activities;
General government $ 13.182
Public safety 5,512
Capital maintenance 305,260
Community services 26,274

Total depreciation expense
governmental activities $ 350,228

Business-type activities:
Norman Y. Mineta San Jos~

International Airport $ 20,396
Wastewater Treatment System 21,025
Municipal Water System 2,489
Parking System ~ 2,243

Total depreciation expense
business-type activities $ 46,153

3. Intangible Assets

intangible assets consist primarily of the Airport’s acquisition of certain habitational rights and
navigation/relocation easements made in accordance with its land acquisition program under the
California Noise Reduction Act. All costs associated with such acquisitions have been capitalized
as intangible assets. Amortization of such intangible assets is calculated using the straight-line
method over a 40 year estimated useful life. Amortization expense that was reported for the year
ended June 30, 2009 related to these acquisitions was approximately $320,000.

4. Capitalized Interest

Interest costs that related to the acquisition of buildings and improvements and equipment acquired
with tax-exempt and taxable debt are capitalized for business~type activities. The amount of interest
to be capitalized is calculated I~y offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing
until completion of the project, with interest’earned on invested debt proceeds over the same
period. Capitalized interest cost is prorated to completed projects based on the completion date of
each projei;t. For the year ended June 30, 2009, the total amount of interest capitalized in the
Airport Enterprise Fund, net of allowable interest earned of temporary investment proceeds, was
approximately $33,991,000.

5. Construction Commitments

Commitments outstanding as of June 30, 2009, related to governmental and business-type
activities construction in progress totaled approximately $67,644,000 and $358,999,000,
respectively.
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E. Leases

The City has commitments under various operating lease agreements requiring annual rental
payments, which are described as follows:

Governmental Activities

The City has ongoing commitments under operating lease agreements for business equipment,
office facilities and land necessary for City operations, which expire at various dates through 2021.
Each governmental fund includes the expenditures related to such lease agreements. There are ¯
both cancelable and non-cancelable lease agreements. Rental expenditures reported by the
General Fund, Non-major Governmental Funds and the Redevelopment Agency Fund under these
operating lease agreements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 amounted to approximately
$2,040,000, $1,074,000 and $4,065,000, respectively. The future, minimum lease payments
anticipated under the existing lease commitments, as of June 30, 2009, are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Nonmajor Total
Ending Governmental Redevelopment Govermental

June 30, General Fund Funds Agency " Activities

2010 $ 1,883 $ 1,112 $ 3,t88 $ 6,183
2011 1,725 1,185 2,783 5,693
2012 1,521 1,228 2,671 5,420
2013 1,302 977 2,316 4,595
2014 656 97 2,238 2,991
2015-2019 3,215 3,215
2020-2021 183 183

Totals $ 7,087 $ 4,599 $ 16,594 $ 28,280

Business-Type Activities

The Airport leases its office space under a lease agreement which, as amended, expires in
December 2014. Rental expense for the Airport’s office space was approximately $3,062,000 for
the year e~qded June 30, 2009. In June 200t, the Airport entered into an operating lease and
maintenance agreement of 20 compressed natural gas powered buses. The term of the agreement
is from March 1, 2003 to February 28, 2010. In December 2007, the Airport entered into an
additional operating lease and maintenance agreement of 14 compressed natural gas powered
buses. The term of the agreement is from August t, 2008 to July 31, 2015. Rental expenses for the
Airport buses for the year ended June 30, 2009 was approximately $3,502,000.
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The future minimum payments anticipated under these commitments, as of June 30, 2009, are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year

Ending Operating

June 30, Leases

2010. $ 5,349

2011 .4,t9.7

2012 3,1~6

2013 3,~g3
2014 2,305

Thereafter’ 1,289

Total $ 19,609

The City also leases building space, facilities, and/0r the privileg.e of operating a concession to
tenants and concessionaries resulting in receipt of annual rents, which are described as follows:

Governmental Activities

¯ In October 1991, the City entered into a 15-year agreement (the initial term) with the San Joss
Arena Management Corporation (the Manager), an unrelated entity, regarding the management,
operations, and maintenance of the San Jos6 Arena, and use of the San Jos6 Arena by the San
Jos~ Sharks, a franchise of the National Hockey League. The agreement was subsequently
amended on December 9, 2000 extending the agreement for an additional 10 years (the extended
term). The initial term commenced on October 24, 1991 and terminated on July 31, 2008. The
extended term commenced on August 1, 2008 and terminates on July 31, 2018. Under the initial
term of the agreement, the Manager is required to pay the City an annual payment amounting to
the greater of $1,000,000 or 5% of the Average Annual Hockey Revenue, as defined by the
agreement. Additionally, the City received a portion of the luxury-box suite revenue. During the
extended term of the agreement, the Manager is required to pay the City annual, minimum rental
and hockey rental payments of $t,642,000 and $1,460,000, respectively, as defined by the
agreement. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 was year 16 of the lease for which the City
received approximately $4,875,000. As of June 30, 2009, leased assets had total historic cost of
approximately $118,114,000 and accumulated depreciation of approximately $41,633,000.

Business-Type Activities

The City entered into an Airline-Airport lease and operating agreement with various passenger and
cargo airlines serving the Airport.-The airline lease agreement, which took effect on December 1,
2007, is scheduled to expire on June 30, 2012 and may be extende.d for one additional five-year
term by mutual agreement of the City and the Signatory Airlines. The key provisions in the new
airline lease agreement include compensatory rate making for the terminal cost center and residual
rate making for the airfield cost center. The new airline lease agreement also includes a revenue
sharing provision to evenly divide net unobligated Airport revenues between the Airport and the
airlines currently operating at the Airport after each fiscal year. In any fiscal year in which there are
net unobligated Airport revenues and all requirements of the City’s Airport financing documents
have been satisfied, the remaining net unobligated Airport revenues are to be evenly divided
between the City and the airlines. If net revenues exceed the projected levels outlined in the Airport
Forecast identified in the new airline lease agreement, then the airlines share of the difference will
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be deposited into the Rate Stabilization Fund up to a cap of $9,000,000. Once the Rate
Stabilization Fund has been fully funded or in the event that the actual net revenues do not exceed
the projected net revenues, the airlines share of net revenues shall be applied as a credit to the
airline terminal revenue requirement for the following fiscal year, thus reducing terminal rental rates
for the following fiscal year. The first $1,000,000 of City’s share o{ any net revenues shall be
retained by the Airport in a discretionary fund to be used for any lawful Airport purpose. The
remaining balance of City’s share shall be applied to the capital costs of the Airport’s Master Plan
Program. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Airport’s actual revenues exceeded its
expenses and reserve requirements by ~,pproximately $29,336,000. The surplus received during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 will be distributed in accordance of the revenue sharing
provisions of the new airline lease agreement.

The Airport also enters into leases with concessionaires, airline carriers, and other business entities
for building space and/or the privilege of operating a concession at the Airport. The terms of these
operating leases range from 1 month to 29 years. The leases with concessionaires are generally
based on the greater of a percentage of their sales or a minimum annual guaranteed amount.

The future minimum rentals to be received from the aforementioned operating leases, as of June
30, 2009, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year

Ending

June 30, Amount

2010 $ 57,568
2011 74,424
2012 79,436
2013 16,880

2014 16,620
2015-2019 57,910
2020-2024 22,754

2025-2029 13,237
2030-2034 10,760

2035-2039 7,614

Total $ 357,203

These future minimum rentals are based upon annual rates and charges agreed to by the airlines
and other tenants. In addition to the future minimum rentals disclosed above, the Airport expects to
receive approximately $1,072,000 from month-to-month rentals in fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.
As of June 30, 2009, leased assets had historic costs of approximately $94,235,000 and
accumulated depreciation of approximately $45,455,000.
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F. Long-Term Debt and Other Obligations

1. Summary Schedule of Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt of the City as of June 30, 2009 (dollars in thousands):

Governmental Activities:

City of San Jose:
Genera~ Obligation Bonds:
Sodas 2001 (Libraries and Parks)
Sodas 2002 (Libraries, Parks, P ub[~c Safety)
Series 2004 (Llorades, Perils, Publtc Safety}
Series 2005 (Libraries and Public Safety)
Sodas 2006 (Libraries and Parks)
Sodas 2007 (Parks ar~ Pub5o Safety)
Sodas 2008 (Lloradas and Parks)
Sodas 2009 (Pufulo Safety)

Purpose

Community Facfitlos
Community Faclffies
Community Facfiifies
Community FacfltIes
Community Facfgles
Community Facfifes
Community Facilities
C~mmunity Facfitles

HUG Section t08 Note Economic Development

Cityof San dose F~nanclng Authodty:.
Lease Revenue Bonds:

Sodas 1993B (Community Facllfles) Community Facilities
Sodas 1097B (Fire, Childcare, LIbra~y Land) Community FeclItges
Sodas 2001E (Communication Center) Refunding
Sodas 20028 (Civic Center Project) Civic Center
Sodas 2003A (Central Service Yard) Refunding
Sodas 2006A (Civic Center Project) Refunding
Series 2007A (Recreational F acl~ille s) Refunding
Sodas 2008A (Civic Center) Refunding
Sodas 20088 (Civic Canter Garage) Rel~nanclog
Sodas 20080 (Hayes Mansion) Refunding
Sodas 2006G (Taxable) (Hayes Mansion) Refundlog
Sodas 2008E (Taxable) (Ice Centre) Refunding
Sodas 2006F (Taxable) (Land Acquisition) Refunding

Special ~ssessment Bonds with Limited Governmental Commitment:

Series 24K (Seismic Retrofit)
Series 249 (Hefyer.Plercy)
Sede,s 24R (2002 Consolidated Refunding)

Specful Tax Bonds:
CFD No. 1 (Capfol Expressway Auto Mall)
CFD No. S (Greet Oaks*Route 85}
CFD No. 0 (Bafey/Hlghway 101)
CFD No. 10 (Hess!st-Silver Creek)

Tax AiIocafion Bonds:
Sodas 1993 (Merged Area Rofundlog)
Sodas 1997 (Merged Area)
Sodas 1698 (Me~Jed Area)

Series 2002 (Merged Area)
Sodas 2003 (Merged Area)
Sodas 2004A (Merged Area)
Series 2005A (Merged Area)

Series 2006A (Taxable) (Merged Area)

Sodas 20060 (Merged Area)

Series 20078 (Merged Area)
Sodas 2006A (Merged Area)
Sodas 2005B (Merged Area)

Seismic Retrofit
Public infrastructure
Consolidaied Refunding

Public Infrastructure
p ubllo lofrastnJcture
P ubllo lofrastn~cture
Public Infrastructure

Advance Refuedings
Redevelopment Projects
Redevelopment projects
Redevelopment Projects
Redevelopment Projects
Redevelopment PmJeclo
Refunding
Refunding
Refum:ilog
Redevelopment Projecls
Redevelopment Projects
Refunding
Refunding
Redevelopment Projects
Redevelopment Projects
Redevelopment ProJects
Redevelopment Projects

Revenue Bonds (Subordinate):
6ede~ 1006A (Merged Area)
Sodas 1999B (Merged Area)
Bodes 2003A (Taxable) (Merged Area)

’ Sodas 20038 (Merged Area)

Redevelopment Projects
Redevelopment Projects
Redevelopment Projects
Redevelopment Projects

Range of PrlnQIpal Balance
Issue Final Interest Payments Juno 30~

Amount Issue Date Maturity Rates (millions) 2009

$ 71,000 05100/200t 0910112031 4.75-5.125% 2.37 $ 54,410
116,090 07118/2002 09/01/2032 4.00-5.00% 3,87 02,870
118,700 0711412004 09/0112034 4.00-5.00% 3,98 102,880

46,300 06/23/2005 09/01/2035 3.00*7.50% 1.54-1.55 41,680
105,400 06129/2008 09/0112036 4.G0-5.00% 3.51-3.62 08,380
g0,000 0812012007 00/01/2037 4.00-8.00% 3.00 87,000
33,100 06/2512008 0910112036 4.00-5.90% 1.I0-1.11 33,100

g,000 08/2512009 09101/2039 4.00-6.00% 0.00-0.30 g,o00
519,320

25,810 02110/2005 08/0112024 Variable 1.01-2.22 23.923

18,045 04/1311993 1111512012 5.g0-6.00% O.25-0.31 2,007

18,610 03/29/2001 0510112010 5.00% 4.O4 4,040
292,425 t1114/2002 06/0112037 3.75-5.26% 0.16-33.45 291,980

22,625 0911812003 10/1512023 3.10-4.70% 0.94-1.61 18,400
67,440 06/01/2006 06/0112030 4.00-5.00% 0.00-17.44 57,440
36,555 06/28/2007 08]15/2030 4,125-4.76% 0.91-2.22 34,340
60,310 08/14/2008 06101/2030 Variable 0.00-21.89 56,020
36,680 0711012008 06/0112038 Vadable 0.70-1.89 35,975
10,915 08/2612009 06/0112027 Vadable 0.00-4.67 10,915
47,390 06/28/2008 06/0112025 Vadeble 1.30-4.20 46,380
28,070 07/0312008 0810112025 Vadabls 1.08÷2.52 27,085
67,195 08/1112008 0610112034 Vadable 0.00-4.81 67,105

655,137

823 0612011993 09102/2013 8.60% 0.01 36
27,505 06126/2001 00/02/2023 4.00-5.875% 0.08-2.05 21,525
13~040 07/03/2002 09/02/2015 3.50°4.375% 1.01-1.21 7~799

4,t00 11116/1987 t1/0112022 5.30-5.70% 0.15-0.30 2,065
12,200 12/18/2091 09/0112023 4.50-6.00% 0.47-0.07 10,160
13,560 02/13/2003 0910112032 4.70-6.65% 0.26-0.05 12~105
12,500 07/2312003 09/01/2023 3.80-5,25% 0,60-0.94 10,305

84,866

692,075 12/1511993 0810112015 6.00% 0.00-15.25 59,690
tO0,000 03127/1997 08/01/2028 5.375*5,625% 0.0%0.72 6,689
175,000 03110/1998 08/01/200Q 6.00% 1.51 1.505
240,090 01/0811908 0810112019 4.75% 0,00-7.’~7 12,020
350,000 01124/2002 08/0112015 4.00-4.50% 0.00011.29 22,565
t35,000 12/22/2003 08/0112033 4,00-5.00% 0.00-34.10 127,545
281,985 05/27/2004 08/0112019 2.80-5.?.5% 8.70031.90 242.105
152,050 07/25/2005 0810112028 4.30-5.00% 0.30-26.21 162,725

67,130 07/25/2005 08101/2015 4.40-5.00% 4.23-21.50 67,130
t4.300 1111412006 08/01/2022 6,65% 1.80-6.00 13,300
67,000 11114/2006 08/01/2035 4.50-5.00% 1.00-21.00 67,000

423,430, 12/15/2006 0810112032 3.75-5.00% 12.00-74.28 423,430
277,755 12/16/2005 0810112023 4.00-5.00% 0.66-67.33 27’7,305

21,330 1110712007 09/0U2017 5.10% 1.66-2~07 19,450

37,150 12/17/2009 0810112018 5.25*6.50% 3.03o4.60 37,t60

1,802.235

29,560 06/2711995 07/01/2029 Varloblo 0.80-2.00 25,800
29,509 06/2711095 07/0112020 Variable 0.80-2.00 25,800
45,000 0812712003 0610t/2028 Vadable 1.30-3.t0 41,600
16,000 08/2712003 0810112032 Vadabte 0.0003.g0 15,000

108,200
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Purpose
Govemmental A~tivitlas (continued):

RedeveJopmenl Agency (conrinued):
City of San Jose Financing Authority Revenue Bonds (Subordinate):

Series 2001A (4th & San Fernando) Parking Facility
Series 2901F (Convention Center) Refunding

HUD Section 108 Note (Masson/Dr. Eu/Security) Redevelopment Projects
HUD Section 108 Note (CIM Block 3/Central Place) Redevelopment Projects
HUD Section 108 Note (SloryfKIng Retail) Redevelopment ProJects

CSCDA o 2005 ERAF Loon Redevetopment Projects
CSCDA- 2006 ERAF Loan Redevetopmeot Projects

Housing Sot-Aside Tax Ailocotion Bonds:
Series 1997E (AMT) (Merged Area) Affordable Housing /
Sedes 2003J (Taxabte) (Merged Area) Afforri. Housing/Refunding
Series 20(~3K (Merged Area) Afford. Houslng/Refunding
Series 2005A (Merged Area) Refunding
Series 2005B (Taxable) (Merged Area) Refunding

Housing Set.Aside Tax Ailocallon Bonds (Subordinate);
Sedes 20050 (AMT) (Merged Area)
Sedes 20050 (AMT) (Merged Area)

Afford, Housing/Refunding
Afford. Housing/Refunding

Bank of New York* Housing Set-Aslde Term Loan      Affordable Housing

Total Govemmental Aotiv~tie s - Bonds, Certificates of Part!clpetion and Notes payable

Range of Principal Balance
issue Final Interest Payments June 30,

Amount . IssUe Date Maturity Rates {millions) 2009

48,675 04110/2001 09/01/2026 3.90-5.25% f.49-3.2t $ 39,740
t88,t50 07/26/200t 0910112022 4.00-5.00% 7.42-t4~73 f53,3t0

193,050

5,200 02/1111997 08/01/20t6 Vadable 0.20-0.47 2,955
13,000 02/0812006 08/0112025 Variable 0.00-1.14 13,000
18,000 06/3012006 08/0U2025 Vadable 0.67-1.57 18,000

33,955

19.085 04/27/2005 00/0t12015 4.50-5.0t% 1.87-2.36 12.560
14,920 05103/2006 08/01/2016 5.44-5.67% 1.38-f.91 11,390

23,980

t7,045 06/23/1997 03/01/2027 5.75-5.05% 0.34-3.67 17,045
55.265 07110/2003 08/0112924 4.125-5.25% 2.02-3.51 43,095
t3~735 67110/2003 08/0112029 3.00H,40% 0.23-1.07 9,025
10,445 06/30/2005 03/0112024 3,75-5.00% 0.97-2.27 10,4~5

119,~75 0613012005 03/0112035 4.37~5.46% 0.70-8.30 115,145
194,755

33,075 06/30/2005 03/0|12035 Vadable 0.10-1,57 29,255
33,075 06/’30/2005 00/0~/2035 Vadable O.10-f.57 29,260

58,515

50.000 04/0112009 04/0~/2014 Variable 10,00 50,000

$ 3,727,956

Norman Y. Mlrmta San Jose Intem~tional Airport~
Revenue Bonds:
Sedes 1998A (AMT) Refunding 14.015 01127/1999 03/0112018 4.50-4.75% 033.1,09 8,015
Series 200tA Runway Sonslruction 159.455 08/14/200f 03/01/2031 4,00-5.25% 3.68-10.06 13~,840
Series 2002A Refunding 53,600 01/09/2003 03/0tl2018 4.00-5,375% 0.00-9.29 53,600
Series 2002~ (AMT) Refunding 37,945 0t/09/2003 0310112012 4.00-5.00% 2.38-6.55 15,t65
Series 2004C (AMT) Airport Facilities 75,730 00/24/2004 03/0fl2026 4.625-5.25% 1,00-10,59 74,730
Series 20040 Airport Facilities 34,270 06/2412004 0310112028 . 5.00% 0.o0-12,56 34,270
Series 2007A (AMT) Airpod Facilities 545,755 09/t312007 0310112047 5.00~,00% 0.00-73,50 545,755
Series 28070 Airpod Facgilles 179,260 09/13/2007 0310112037 4.25-5.00% 0.00-28.80 179,260

1,049,635

Clean Water Financing Aothodty:
Revenue Bonds:
Series 2005A Refunding 54,020 10/05/2005    1111512016 3.25-5.00% ’
Series 2009A Refunding 21,420 01/29/2809    1111512020 3.00-5.o0%

State of California - Revolving Fund Loan Wastewater Facll~tes ’

Total Business-type Activities- Bonds and Loan Payable

Grand

73.566 Various 05~1/2019 Various

4.64-5.80 41,265
0.80-5.4t 21,420

62,685

1,77-3,77 38,254

$ 4,878,580

2. Debt Scrap/lance

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The
City believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.

3. Legal Debt Limit and Margin

The City’s legal debt limit (as defined by Section 1216 of the City Charter) and debt margin as of
June 30, 2009, are approximately $19,352,982,000 and $18,833,662,000, respectively. In
accordance with the California Community Redevelopment Law, the Redevelopment Agency
establishes its own legal debt limit, based primarily on the aggregate of all future projected tax
increment revenues from existing redevelopment areas.
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On April 7, 2009, the City Council/Agency Board approved the amendment to the Agency’s
Redevelopment Plans for the Merged Project Area by increasing the tax increment limit from $7.6
billion to $15.0 billion and to establish a single limit of $7.6 billion for the bonded indebtedness that
may be outstanding at any one time. The additional tax increment revenues will provide additional
capital to the Ageqcy to continue to implement blight-eliminating projects in the City’s
redevelopment project areas.

On May 5, 2009, the City Council/Agency Board approved the amendment to the Agency’s
Redevelopment Plan for the Strong Neighborhoods Initiative (SNI) Redevelopment Project by
authorizing the collection of tax increment from portion of the SNI project called Diridon Area.

4. Arbitrage

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage restrictions with respect to the issuance of
tax-exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage regulations deal with the investment of all tax-
exempt bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the interest yield paid to bondholders.
Generally, all interest paid to bondholders can be retroactively rendered taxable if applicable rebate
liabilities are not reported and paid to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) at least every five years.
During the current year, the City performed calculations to determine the rebate liabilities for the
tax-exempt bond issues listed above. However, as no bond issue with a positive rebate liability was
due for a fifth-year payment, the amount calculated has been recorded as a liability to the IRS. The
rebate liability amount is recorded as a liability in the Governmental Activities column of the
government-wide statements in the amount of $686,000.

5. Special Assessment Bonds with Limited City Commitment

All obligations of the City under the Special Assessment Bonds are not considered general
obligations of the City, but are considered limited obligations, payable solely from ~he assessments
and from the funds pledged therefore under the Paying Agent Agreement or Fiscal Agent
Agreement. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, or any political subdivision
thereof, is pledged to the payment of the bonds. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Paying
Agent Agreement, the City is not obligated to advance available surplus funds from the .City

.Treasury to cure any deficiency in the Redemption Fund; provided, however, the City is not
prevented, in its sole discretion, from so advancing funds. As of June 30, 2009, the City has
recorded approximately $64,886,000 of deferred revenue and related special .assessments
receivables in the Special Assessment Districts Fund. These balances consist primarily of property
tax assessments to be collected in the future by the County for the City for debt service.

As of June 30, 2009, there are assessment surpluses of approximately $2,341,000 (excluding
interest) that have been declared by the City Council. These are included in advances and deposits
on the accompanying statement of net assets and governmental funds balance sheet. Such
surpluses are being reviewed in order to make recommendations regarding their use.

6. Conduit Debt

The City has issued multifamily housing revenue bonds to provide funds for secured loans to
builders of multifamily housing projects. The purpose of the program is to provide needed rental
housing for low to moderate-income households. To comply with Internal Revenue Service
requirements in order to meet the tax-exempt status, the owner is’ required to set aside certain
percentage of all units built for very low and low income households. The bonds are payable solely
from payments made on the related secured loans. These tax-eXempt housing bonds have maturity
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dates that are due at various dates through January 1, 2047. As of June 30, 2009, the outstanding
conduit multifamily housing revenue bonds issued by the City aggregated to approximately
$517,717,000. The outstanding conduit multi family housing revenue bonds issued by the Agency
is $47,688,000.

In the opinion of the City’s officials, these bonds are not payable from any revenues or assets of the
City. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, the ’Redevelopment Agency, the
State, or any political subdivision thereof are pledged for the payment of the principal or interest on
the bonds.

7. Variable.Rate Demand Bonds

Included in long-term debt is $411,185,000 of variable-rate demand bonds. The scheduled
redemption of these bonds is incorporated in the Annual Requirements to Maturity schedules. The
City issued these bonds to provide variable-rate exposure to the debt portfolio and to provide
additional flexibility with respect to restructuring or redeeming the debt issued for certain projects.
Under the reimbursement agreemenis related to these credit facilities, the trustee is authorized to
draw an amount sufficient to pay the purchase price of bonds that have been tendered and have.
not otherwise been remarkS, ted.

The credit facilities that support the CitY’s variable-rate demand bonds are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

City of San Joe6 Financing Authority:.
Lease Revenue Bonds:

Series 2008A (Civic Center) $ ~6,920
Series 20088 (Civic Center Garage) 35,975
Series 2008C (Hayes Mansion) 10,915
Sertes 2008D (Taxable) (Hayes Mansion) 46,380
Series 2008E (Taxable) (Ice Cenb’e) 27,085
Series 2008F (Taxable) (Land Acqulsillon) 67,195

Total vadable rate lease revenue bonds 244,470

Redevelopment Agency:
Revenue Bonds:

Series 1996A (Merged Area) 25,800
Series 19968 (Merged Area) 25,800
Series 2003A (TaxableI (Merged Area) 41,600
Series 20038 (Merged Area) 15,000

Total vadable rate revenue bonds 108,200

Housing Set-Aside Tax Allocation Bends:
Series 2005C (AMT) (Merged Area) 29,255
Series 2005D (AMT) (Merged Area) 29,260

Total variable rate tax allocation bonds 58,515

Total variable rate bonds $ 411,185

Balance
June 30, Credit Facility Description

2009 Provider Expiration Date

ScollabankJCalSTRS 08/14/2010
Bank of Amedca, N,A./CalSTRS 07/09/2010
Scetlabank/CalSTRS 0612512010
ScetlabanldCalSTRS 06125/2010
Bank of America, N,A./CalSTRS 07/02/2010
Bank of America, N.A, 06111/2011

JPMbrgan Chase Bank, N.A. 10127/2010"
JPMergan Chase Bank, N,A. 10/2712010"
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 812712009*
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 8/27/2009’

Bank of New York Mellon 6/29/2010
Sank of New York Mellon 612912010

The Agency extended the explration date oi~these bonds subsequent to year end, (See Note IV D; Subsequent
Events.

City of San Jos~ Financing Authority Variable-Rate Lease Revenue Bonds

lhe Authority’s $244,470,000 variable-rate, lease revenue bonds are payable upon demand of the
bondholder at a purchase price equal to principal plus accrued interest. The Authority’s remarketing
agents are required to use their best efforts to remarket the bonds and, to the extent that bonds are
not remarketed, the Authority’s trustees are authorized to draw on the credit facilities in the
amounts required to pay the purchase price of bonds tendered.
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The Authority’s repayment of unreimbursed draws made on the credit facilities bear interest at
varying rates with the principal amortization amounts and periods ranging from 3 of 5 years. The
interest rate on and principal amortization schedule ofan unreimbursed draw are determined by the
take-out provisions of the applicable reimbursement agreement, which will remain in effect until all
principal of an unreimbursed draw is amortized. For 6xample, if a draw occurs on June 30, 2010,
then the take-out provision will remain in effect until June 30, 2013 or June 30, 2015, depending on
the agreement. If the unreimbursed draws represent a significant portisn of the outstanding debt,
the principal will generally be amortized over multiple years because, under State law, lease

¯ payments may not exceed the fair rental value for the leased, property. Per the terms of the
reimbursement agreements, the providers of the credit facilities have the right to require an
appraisal of the applicable leased property to increase the amount of the rent payable.

The Authority is required to pay the credit facility providers an annual commitment fee for each
credit facility-ranging from 0.60% to 0.65%, based on the terms of the applicable reimbursement
agreement and the outstanding principal amount of the bonds supported by the credit facili’~y.

Redevelopment Agency Variable-Rate Revenue Bonds

The Agency’s $108,200,000 variable-rate revenue bonds (1996 and 2003 Bonds) are payable upon
demand of the bondholder at a purchase price equal to principal plus accrued interest. The
Agency’s remarketing agents are required to use their best efforts to remarket the bonds and, to the
extent that bonds are not remarketed, the Agency’s trustees are authorized to draw on the credit
facilities in the amounts required to pay the purchase price of bonds tendered,

In connection with the issuance of the 1996 and 2003 Bonds, the Agency obtained four letters of
credit as credit facilities for the bonds. At June 30, 2009, the letters of credit were set to expire on
October 27, 2010.and August 27, 2009, respectively, The Agency’s repayment of unreimbursed

.draws made on the credit facilities bear interest at varying rates with the principal ’amortized from
the date of the draw to the expiration of the credit facility.

.The Agency is required to pay the credit facility providers an annual commitment fee for each credit
facility ranging from 0.45% to 0.60%, based on the terms of the applicable reimbursement
agreement and the outstanding principal amount of the bonds supported by the credit facility.

As of June 30, 2009, the City reclassified $5,300,000 of the Agency’s 1996 and 2003 Bonds to
demand bonds payable in the Redevelopment Agency Major Fund based on an extension of the
Letter of Credit (LOC) with JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. at a reduced maximum aggregate
amount. As a c0nditior~ of the LOC extension, the Agency is required to redeem $5,300,000 of
outstanding demand bonds within less than one year from June 30, 2009 at a price equal to
principal plus accrued interest. As an additional condition of the extension, the Agency is required
to pay the credit facility providers higher annual commitment fees for each credit facility ranging
from 2.10% to 2.30%, based on the terms of the applicable reimbursement agreement and the
outstanding principal amount of the bonds suppo.rted by the credit facility, as discussed in Note IV
D; Subsequent Events.

Redevelopment Agency Variable-Rate Housing Set.Aside Tax Allocation Bonds

The Agency’s $58,515,000 variable-rate housing set-aside tax allocation bonds (2005 Bonds) are.
payable upon demand of the bondholder at a purchase price equal to principal plus accrued
interest. The Agency’s remarketing agents are required to use their, best efforts to remarket the
bonds and, to the extent that bonds are not remarketed, the Agency’s trustees are authorized to
draw on the credit facilities in the amounts required to pay the purchase price of bonds tendered.
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In connection with the issuance of the 2005 Bonds, the Agency obtained two letters of credit as ’
credit facilities for the bonds. The letters of credit are set to expire on June 29, 2010, The Agency’s
repayment of unreimbursed draws made on the credit facilities bear interest at varying rates with
the principal amortized over a period of five years from the date of the drawing, The interest rate on
and principal amortization schedule of an unreimbursed draw are determined by the take-out
provisions of the applicable reimbursement agreement, which will remain in effect until all principal
of an unreimbursed draw is amortized.

The Agency is required to pay the credit facility providers an annual commitment fee for each credit
facility of 0.45% based on the terms °o[ the applicable reimbursement agreement and the
outstanding principal amount of the bonds supported by the credit facility.

8. Summary of Changes in Long-term Obligations

The changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2009, are as follows (dollars in
thousahds):

Governmental Activltles~
Long-term debt payable:

General Obligation bonds $
HUD Section 108 loan

San Jose Financing Authority
Lease revenue bonds
Accreted interesl on capital appreciation bonds

Special Assessment bonds with limited
governmental commitment

Redevelopment Agency
Revenue bonds
HUD Section 108 notes payable
Tax allocation bonds
California Statewide Communities Development
Aulhority - ERAF loan

Housing Set-Aside Term Loan

Total long-term debt payable
Less deferred amounts;

For refunding gain
For IssUance premlum~
For Issuance discounts

Total deferred amounts
Total long-term debt payable and

deferred amounts

Other Long-term obligations:
Hayes Mansion construction loan
Arbitrage liability
Accrued vacalion, s~ck leave and compensatory time
Accrued landfill postclosure costs .
Estimated liability for self-insurance
Net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligation
Pollution remedlatlon obligation

Total other long-term obligations
Governmental activities long-term obligations $

Additional
Obligations, Current

Interest Maturities,
Accretion Retlrements~ Amounts

June 30, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2008 Increases Decreases 2009 One Year

528,565 9,000 (18,245) 519,320 $ 19,350
24,876 (953) 23,923 1,008

627,241 124,960 (98,850) 653,351 9,790
2,083 183 (480) 1,786 501

68,151 (3,265) 64,886 . 3,396

312,240 (10,990) 301,250 17,100
34,220 (265) 33,955 955

1,978,935 117,295 (40,725) 2,055,505 51,600

27,070 ° " (3,090) 23,980 3,245
50,000 50,000 10,000

3,603,381’ 301,438 (t76,863~ 3,727,956 116,954 "

(57,585) 3,279 4,150 (50,156) (4,150)
67,765 276 (8,952) 59,089 4,305
(3,177) (1,34~) 136 (4,389) (136)
7,003 2,207 (4,666) 4,544 19

3,610,384 303,645 (181,529) 3,732,500 116,973

1,200 1,200
1,033 (347) 686

94,124 48,931 (46,134) 96,921 46,000
9,300 -’ (465) 8,835 465

146,338 15,736 (31,132) 130~942 7,500
66,684. 62,637 119,321

4,946 4,946 .
318,679 122,250 (78,078)’ 362,851 ’ 53,96~*

3,939,063 425,895 (259,507) 4,095,351 $     170,938
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General Obligation Bonds are issued primarily to finance the construction of and improvements to
libraries, parks and public safety facilities throughout the City and are secured by a pledge of the
City to levy ad valorem property taxes without limitation of rate or amount. The ad valorem property
tax levy is calculated for each fiscal year to generate sufficient revenue to pay 100% of annual debt
service net of other available funding sources. Total principal and interest remaining on the bonds is
$851,565,000, with the final payment due on September 1,2039.

Lease Revenue Bonds are issued primarily to finance various capital improvements to be leased to
the City and are sedured by lease rental revenue from "lessee" departments in the General Fund
and Nonmajor Funds. The lease rental revenue for each fiscal year is generally equal to 100% of
annual deb~ service net of other available funding sources. Total principal, interest, and accreted
value remaining on the bonds are estimated to be $1,060,928,000, with. the final payment due on
June 1, 2039.

Assessment Bonds are issued by the City to finance public improvements in special assessment or
tax districts established by the City and are secured by assessments or special taxes levied on
properties located within the special districts. The assessments are calculated for each fiscal year
to generate sufficient revenue to pay 100% of annual debt service net of other available funding
sources. Total principal and interest remaining on the bonds is $98,670,000, with the final payment
due on September 1, 2032.

The Redevelopment Agency’s Merged Area Tax Allocation Bonds are issued primarily to finance
redevelopment projects and are secured primarily by a pledge of tax increment revenues consisting
of a portion of all taxes levied upon all taxable properties within each of the redevelopment project
areas constituting the Merged Area Redevelopment Project. The total projected tax increment
revenue through the period of the bonds is approximately $3,572,452,000. These revenues have
been pledged until the year 2036, the final maturity date of the bonds. The total principal and
interest remaining on these Tax Allocation Bonds is $3,026,600,000 which is 85 percent of the total
projected tax increment revenues. The pledged tax increment revenue recognized during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009 was $161,877,000 as comPared to total debt service of $114,579,000.

The Redevelopment Agency’s Revenue Bonds are issued primarily to finance redevelopment
projects within the Merged Area Redevelopment Project. The bonds are ratably and equally
secured by a pledge Of the subordinated revenues and are subordinate to the Senior Obligations of
the Agency.

Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside Tax Allocation Bonds are issued primarily to finance
affordable housing projects and are secured by a pledge of and lien upon the 20% tax increment
revenue set-aside for the low and moderate income housing fund. The total projected 20% tax
increment revenue through the period of the bonds is approximately $712,988,000. These revenues
have been pledged until the year 2035, the final maturity date of the bonds. The total principal and
interest remaining on these Housing Set-Aside Tax Allocation Bonds is $393,103,000, which is 55
percent of the total projected 20% tax increment revenues. The pledged tax increment revenue
recognized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 was $40,469,000 as compared to total debt
service Of $20,501,000~

Other Long-Term Obligations payments are primarily made from general revenue recorded in the
General Fund.
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Business-Type Activities:
Norman Y, Mineia San Jose International Airport:

Revenue bonds $
Deferred amounts:

For refunding
For issuance premiums
For Issuance discounts

Clean Water Financing Authority:
Revenue bonds

Deferred amounts’.
For refunding
For issuance premiums

State of California - Revolving Fund Loan
Accrued vacation, sick leave and compensatory time
Estimated Ilabl!ity for self-insurance
Net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligation
Pollution remedlation obligation

Business-type long-term obligations $

Additional Maturities,
Obligations Retirements, Amounts

June 30, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within

1,060,815 (11,180) 1,049,635 $ 11,645

(3,272) 645 (2,627) (563)
5,676 (284) 5,392 300

(5,833) 40 (5,793) (41)

72,875 ’ 21,420 (31,610) 62,685 4,640

(2,147) (370) 380 (2,137) (380)
933 1,470 (163) 2,240 ’ 236

41,952 (3,698) 38,254 3,767
9,395 5,514 (5,515) 9,394 6,086
8,725 1,531 (1,245) 9,011 2,022

10,995 (1,044) 9,~51
330 384 714 714

1,200,~44 29,949 (53,674) 1,176,719     $ 28,426

Airport Revenue Bonds are issued primarily to finance the construction of capital improvements at
the Norman Y. Mineta San Jos6 International Airport. Pursuant to the Airport’s Master Trust
Agreement, the City has irrevocably pledged the general airport revenues and certain other funds
held or made available under the Airport’s Master Trust Agreement, first to the payment of
maintenance and operation costs of the Airport, and second to the payment of principal of and
premium, if any, and interest on the bonds. General airport revenues generally include all revenues,
income, receipts and moneys derived by the City from the operation of the Airport with the
exception of certain expressly excluded revenues. The net revenues available to pay debt service
in the current fiscal year totaled $73,159,000, which is composed of $24,106,000 of net general
airport revenues and $49,053,000 of other available funds. Bond debt service payable from general
airport revenues iq the current fiscal year totaled $23,037,000, which is net of $42,539,000 of bond
debt service paid from the capitalized interest accounts established in conjunction with the issuance
of the 2007 Airport Revenue Bonds. The City has covenanted in the Master Trust Agreement that
net revenues available to pay debt service for each fiscal year will be at least 125% of annual debt
service for such fiscal year. Total principal and interest remaining on the bonds is $2.13 billion, with
the final payment due on March 1,2047.

San Jos6-Santa Clara Clean Water Financing Authority Sewer.Revenue Bonds are issued primarily
to finance the construction of capital improvements at the San Jos~-Santa Clara Water Pollution
Control Plant and the City has pledged its net systems revenues as security for its obligations under
the improvement agreement to make base payments and additional payments with respect to the
outside revenue bonds. The net system revenues available to pay debt service in the current fiscal
year totaled $50,238,000. Bond debt service payable from net system revenues in the current fiscal
year totaled $7,065,000. The City has covenanted in the Improvement Agreement that net system
revenues will be at least 115% of its allocable percentage of annual debt service. The City’s
allocable percentage of annual debt service is currently 100%. Total principal and interest
remaining on the bonds is $77.9 million, with the final payment due on November 15, 2020.
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9. Annual Requirements to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds, notes, and ce~ificates of participation outstanding
as of June 30, 2009, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Governmental Activities

City of San Jose General Obligation
Bonds and HUD Loan

City of San Jose Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds [1,2,3,4]

Fiscal Year Ending Accreted
June 30, Pdncipal Interest Pdncipal Intemst In.rest

2010 $ 20.358 $ 24,070 $ 9,799 $ 501 $ 20,859
2011 20,688 23,279 6,309 521 20,549
2012 20,724 22,435 9,160 540 20,434
2013 20,770 21,562 10,374 556 20,271
2014 20,826 20,664 11,275 20,074
2015 - 2019 105,233 89,908 75,460 95,693
2020 - 2024 107,612 66,913 106,760 83,755
2025 - 2029 100,502 42,984 115,900 66,548
2030 - 2034 89,640 19,195 138,760 44,319
2035 - 2039 36,590 3.084 169,554 12,955
2040 - 2044 3oo 8
Total $ 543,243 $ 334,102 $ 653,351 $     2,118 $ 405,457

Special Assessment Bonds with
Limited Governmental Commitment

Redevelopment Agency
Housing Set-Aside Bonds and

Bank of New York Term Loan [1, 5}

Governmental Activities
Redevelopment Agency

Redevelopment Project Bonds and
HUD Loans

Principal         Intemst
$ 17,095 $ 10,747

17.370 10,349
17,665 9,940
17,975 9,508
18,310 9,056
47,445 39,760
57,040 29,579
60,905 17,106
42,455 5,800
7,010 190

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, Principal In.rest Pdncipal In~mst

2010 $ 3,396 $ 3,416 $ 60,505 $ 98,300
2011 3,521 3,266 64,650 95,356
2012 3,677 3,103 68,235 92,360
2013 3,823 2,929 71,405 89,165
2014 3,989 2,743 75,195 85,718
2015 - 2019 18,610 10,761 417,925 371.908

¯2020 - 2024 21,210 5,387 493,785 265,278
2025 - 2029 3,220 1,704 467,150 152,144
2030 - 2034 3,440 476 344,960 59,456
2035 - 2039 97,610 4,649
2O4O - 2O44
Total $    64,886 $    33,785 $ 2,161,420 $ 1,814.364 $ 303.270 $    142 055
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Business-Type Activities
Airport - Wastewater Treat~nent System

Revenue Bonds [4]            Revenue Bonds and Loans
Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest
2010 $ 11,645 $ 53,678
2011 12,120 53,356
2012 12,620 52,801
2013 13,165 52,211
2014 21,795 51,550
2015 - 2019 121,965 240,008
2020 - 2024 137,805 207,487
2025 - 2029 164,470 168,332
.2030 - 2034 186,535 128,186
2035 - 2039 304,235 51,886
2040 - 20zH 36,040 14,911
2045 - 20,~9 27,240 3,332
Total $ 1,049,635 $ 1,077,938

Princlpal Interest
8,407 $ 3,038
8,625 2,816
8,850 2,569
9,102 2,310
9,369 2,O48

46,000 5,710
10,586 468

$ 100,939 / $ 18,959

[1] Projected interest payments for the variable rate series of bonds ar~ based on the following rates in effect on June 30, 2009, Lease
Revenue Sands: Series 2008A (0.20%), Series 2008B (0.25%), Series 2008C (0.11%), Series 2008D (0.55%), Series 2008E (0.45%),
Series 2008F (0.50%). RedeveiopmentAgencyRevenue’Bonds: Series 1996A(0.1"1%), Series 1996B (0.15%), Series 2003A(0.42%),
Series 2003B (0.17%). Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside Tax Allocation Bonds: Series 2005C (0.24%), Series 2005D (0.30%).
HUD Section 108 Notes: City of San Jose and Redevelopment Agency Loans (0.87%). Bank of New York Loans: Housing Set-Aside Term
Loan (1.73%). Each series may be set at different interest rate calculation modes, including daily, weekly, monthly, and long rates.
[2] Amount shown is accreted value payable in each period. ,~,s of June 30, 2009, $1,786,000 of value had accreted on the outstanding
capital appreciation bonds, which combined with the $653,351,000 principal amount of outstanding lease revenue bonds totals
$655,137,000 of outstandihg lease revenue debt.

[3] Proiected debt service payments for the City of San Jose Financing Aulhority Series 2001A Parking Revenue Bonds and Series 2001F
Lease Revenue Bonds are included in the Redevelopment Agency Redevelopmen! Project category, reflecting that the Redevelopment
Agency is the primary source of payment for those bonds.
[4] Does not include notional amorlization of outstanding commercial paper notes.

[5] Excludes the impact of the reclessilication of $5,300,000 to short-term liability. (See Note III F.7.; Variable-rate Demand Bonds)

For governmental and business-type activities, the specific year for payment of estimated liabilities
for Hayes Mansion construction loan, arbitrage liability, accrued vacation, sick leave and
compensatory time, accrued landfill post-closure costs, estimated liability for self-insurance, the net
OPEB obligation and the pollution remediation obligation are not practicable to determine.

10. New Debt Issuances and Unused Authorizations

Governmental Activities

City of San Jos~ Financing Authority Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2008E (Taxable) (Ice
Centre Refunding Project). On July 3, 2008, the Authority issued $28,070,000 of Series 2008E
Taxable Lease Revenue Bonds. The proceeds of the Series 2008E Bonds were used to current
refund the Authority’s Series 2000C (taxable) and Series 2004A (taxable) Lease Revenue Bonds
(together, the "2000/2004 Bonds") issued to finance and refinance real property and improvements
to the City’s Ice Centre of San Jos~. Debt service on the bonds will be paid from base rental
payments received by the City from the Ice Centre operator, Silicon Valley Sports and
Entertainment. However, such payments are not pledged to the Series 2008E Bonds, and thus the
City’s obligation to make the Series 2008E lease payments are not conditional on the receipt of
such payments.
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This refunding of variable-rate bonds with another series of variable-rate bonds constitutes a
restructurin~ of the 2000/2004 Bonds, which had been negatively impacted by disruptions in the
financial markets related to auction rate securities and rating agency downgrades of bond insurers.
The Series 2008E Bonds financing structure eliminated the bond insurance which provided credit
enhancement to the 2000/2004 Bonds and replaced .it with a direct-pay letter of credit. The
2000/2004 Bonds were redeemed on July 3, 2008, and have been removed from the City’s basic
financial statements.                                                             ,

The Series 2008E Bonds, which are supported by an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit provided
by Bank of America and the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS), bear interest
at a weekly variable rate, which on June 30, 2009, was 0.45%, and have a final maturity date of
June t, 2025.

City of San Jos~ Financing Authority Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B (Civic Center
Garage Refunding Project). On July 10, 2008, the Authority issued $36,580,000 of Series 2008B
Lease Revenue Bonds. The proceeds of the Series 2008B Bonds were used to refinance the
portion of the Authority’s Tax-Exempt Lease Revenue Commercial Paper Notes issued as an
interim financing me.chanism to finance land acquisition and construction of the Civic Center
Employee Parking Garage and certain improvements to the Civic Center. Debt service on the
Series 2008B Bonds will be paid by lease payments from the General Fund, the special funds and

¯ the capital funds.

This refinancing of variable-rate commercial paper notes with a series of variable-rate bonds
provides long-term financiog for the Civic Center Garage. Commercial paper notes, in the amount
of $32,528,000, were redeemed on July 11, 2008, and have been removed from the City’s basic
financial statements.

The Series 2008B Bonds, which are supported by an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit provided
by Bank of America and the CalSTRS bear interest at a weekly variable rate, which on June 30,
2009, was 0.25%, and have a final maturity date of June 1,2039.

City of San Jos6 Financing Authority Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A (Civic Center
Refunding Project). On August 14, 2008, the Authority issued $60,310,000 of Series 2008A Lease
Revenue Bonds. The proceeds of the Series 2008A Bonds were used to current refund the
Authodty’s Series 2002C Lease Revenue Bonds issued, to finance a portion of the costs of the City
Hall project. Debt service on the Series 2008A I~onds will be paid by lease payments from the
General Fund, the special funds and the capital funds.

This refunding of variable-rate bonds with another series of variabl~-rate bonds constitutes a
restructuring of the Series 2002C Bonds, which had been negatively impacted by disruptions in the
financial markets related to rating agency downgrades of bond insurers. The Series 2008A Bonds
financing structure eliminated the bond insurance which provided credit enhancement to the Series
2002C Bonds and replaced it with a direct-pay letter of credit. The Series 2002C Bonds were
redeemed on August 14, 2008, and have been removed from the City’s basic financial statements.

The Series 2008A Bonds, which are supported by an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit provided
by The Bank of Nova Scotia (Scotiabank) and the CalSTRS, bear interest at a weekly variable rate,
which on June 30, 2009, was 0.20%, and have a final maturity date of June 1, 2039.
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Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Josd Merged Area Redevelopment Project Tax
Allocation Bonds, Series 2008B. On November 13, 2008, the San Josd Redevelopment Agency
(SJRA) issued $80,145,000 of Series 2008B tax allocation bonds-. The proceeds of the Series
2008B bonds will be used to finance multiple redevelopment projects within the SJRA’s Merged
Area Redevelopment Project. The 2008B tax allocation bonds were issued at parity with the
outstanding tax allocation bonds by SJRA and are secured primarily by a pledge of tax revenues,
consisting of a portion of all taxes levied upon all taxable properties within the Merged Area
Redevelopment Project.

The Series 2008B bonds bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 6.25% to 7.00%, and have a final
maturity date of August 1, 2035.

Redevelopment Agency Of the City of San Jos~ Merged Area Redevelopment Project Tax
~llocation Bonds, Series 2008A. On December 17, 2008, the San Jos~ Redevelopment Agency
(SJRA) issued $37;150,000 of Series 2008A tax allocation bonds. The proceeds of the Series
2008B bonds will be used to finance multiple redevelopment projects within the SJRA’s Merged
Area Redevelopment Project. The 2008A tax allocation bsnds were issued at parity with the
outstanding tax allocat!on bonds by SJRA and are secured primarily by a pledge of tax revenues,
consis!ing of a portion of all taxes levied upon all taxable properties within the Merged Area
Redevelopment Project.

The Series 2008A bonds bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 5.25% to 6.50%, and have a final
¯ maturity date of August ’1, 2018.

Bank of New York Housing Set-Aside Term Loan. On April 1, 2009, the City converted a
$50,000,000 line of credit with the Bank of New York into a five-year term loan that is payable in
twenty (20) equal, quarterly installments. The proceeds of the loan ’will be used to finance
affordable housing projects. Debt service is secured from the 20% portion of Agency tax increment
revenues set aside for affordable housing.

The loan bears interest at an annual ~’ate of LIBOR plus spread of 1.35% to LIBOR plus 3.35%,
which on June 30, 2009 was 1.73%, and has a final maturity date of April 1,2014.

City of San Jos6 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009 (Public Safety Projects). On June 25,
2009, the City issued $9,000,000 of Series 2009 General Obligation Bonds. The proceeds will be
used to fund $9,000,000 of public safety projects. Debt service on the Series 2009 Bonds is
payable from ad valorem taxers levied upon all property subject to taxation by the City. The Series
2009 Bonds bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 4.00% to 6.00%, and have a final maturity date
of September 1, 2039.

At June 30, 2009, the City has issued $589,590,000 in general obligation bonds to provide funds for
the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and parks. Of this amount, as of June 30,
2009, $519,320,000 is outstanding. Of the total amount of $598,820,000 authorized to be issued,
there remains an unused balance of $9,230,000.

~3ity of San Jos~ Financing Authority Lease Revenue Commercial Paper Notes Payable. On
January 13, 2004, the City Council and the City of San Josh Financing Authority each adopted a
resolution authorizing the issuance of City of San Jos6 Financing Authority tax-exempt lease
revenue commercial paper notes in an amount not to exceed $98,000,000. This commercial paper
program wasestablished as a mechanism for financing public improvements of the City including
the offsite parking garage for the new Civic Center and non-construction costs for technology,
furniture, equipment and relocation services for the new Civic Center. On November 9, 2005, the
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City Council and the Authority authorized use of the commercial paper program to finance
procurement costs of the City’s consolidated utility billing system.

Subsequently, on June 21, 2005, the City Council and the City of San Jos6 Financing Authority
each adopted a resolution authorizing the issuance of taxable lease revenue commercial paper
notes, under the same $98,000,000 not to exceed limitation as the tax-exempt notes. This
subsequent authorization permits the Authority to issue taxable commercial paper notes to pay for
expenses otherwise authorized under the commercial paper program, but ineligible to be paid from
tax-exempt commercial paper proceeds.

On November 15, 2005, the City Council and the City of San Jos~ Financing Authority each
:adopted a resolution.expanding the capacity of the lease revenue commercial paper program from
$98,000,000 to $116,000,000 and authorizing the issuance of commercial paper notes to pay a
portion of the costs of the Phase II improvements at the City’s Central Service Yard and a portion of
the demolition and clean-up costs at the City’s Main Service Yard.

On May 22, 2007, the City Council and the City of San Jos6 Financing Authority each adopted a
resolution authorizing the issuance of lease revenue commercial paper notes to pay for capital
improvements at the City’s HP Pavilion.

Under this program, the Authority is able to issue commercial paper notes at prevailing interest
rates for periods of maturity not to exceed 270 days. The commercial paper notes are secured by a
pledge of lease revenues from various City assets and additionally secured by a letter of credit
provided by State Street Bank and Trust Company and the CalSTRS.

During fiscal year 2009, the Autho~’ity issued $3,357,000 of commercial paper notes for technology,
furniture and relocation services for the New City Hall, $85,000 for municipal facility improvements,
$280,000 for the consolidated utility billing system, $508,000 for the Central Service Yard Phase II
project, and $175,000 for capital improvements at the City’s HP Pavilion.

Also during fiscal year 2009, the Authority refinanced $32,528,000 of commercial paper notes for
the new City Hall and offsite parking garage with a portion of the proceeds from the Authority’s
Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B and redeemed $6,215,000 for technology, furniture and
relocation services for the new City Hall, $1,306,000 for the consolidated utility billing system, and
$604,000 for the Central Service Yard Phase II project.

On June 30, 2009, $39,643,000 of Authority tax-exempt’commercial paper notes were outstanding
at interest rates ranging from 0.40% to 0.47%. On June 30, 2009, $7,938,000 of Authority taxable
commercial paper notes were outstanding at an interest rate of1.50%.

The changes in commercial paper payables during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

June 30, 2008 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009
$83,829 4,405 40,653 $47,581
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Business-Type Activities

San Jose-Santa Clara Clean Water Financing Authority Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2009A, On January 29, 2009, the Clean Water Financing Authority issued $21,420,000 of
Series 2009A sewer revenue refunding bonds. The proceeds of the Series 2009A bonds were used
to current refund the Authority’s Series 2005B variable-rate sewer revenue refunding bonds. Debt
service is payable from the Authority’s revenues which consist primarily of payments from the City
of San Jose’s sewer revenues.

This refunding of variable-rate bonds with a series of fixed-rate bonds constitutes a restructuring of’
the Series 2005B Bonds, which had been negatively impacted by disruptions in the financial
markets related to rating agency downgrades of bond insurers and liquidity providers. The Series
2009A Bonds financing structure.eliminated the bond insurance which provided credit enhancement
to the Series 2005B Bonds and the liquidity facility which provided liquidity support to the Series
2005B Bonds. The Series 2005B Bonds were redeemed on January 29, 2009, and have been
removed from the City’s basic financial statements.

The Series 2009A bonds bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%, and have a final
maturity date of NQvember 15, 2020.

Airport Commercial Paper Notes Payable. On November 2, 1999, the City Council adopted a
resolution authorizing the issuance of City of San Jose; San’Jose International Airport subordinated
commercial paper notes in three series (Series A - Tax-Exempt, Series B - Subject to the AMT,
Series C - Taxable) in an amoun~ not to exceed $100,000,000. The commercial paper program was
established to provide an interim source of financing for tl~e initial capital projects in the Airport.
Master Plan until a permanent financing plan was finalized and implemented. Subsequently, on
April 1, 2003, the City Council authorized use of the commercial paper program to fund costs
associated with implementation of the requirements under the federal Aviation and Transportation
Security Act (ATSA).

On June 20, 2006, the City Council approved an expansion of the Airport commercial paper
program from $100,000,000 to $200,000,000 to ensure that funding would be available for the
award of the design and construction contracts related to the re-phased Airport Master Plan
projects. On January 9, 2007, the city Council .approved an additional expansion of the Airport
commercial paper program from $200,000,000 to $450,000,000 to ensure’that funding would be ¯
available for the award of the design and construction contracts ’related to the rephrased’Airport
Master Plan projects. Various Airport Master Plan projects over the next several years are focused
on completion of the North Concourse Projects as well as the implementation of a Terminal Area
Improvement Program (the "TAIP").. Additionally, the Airport CP Program may be used to pay costs
related to the Airport’s lease of the former FMC property and to pay debt service costs on other
debt obligations as permitted.

On March 25, 2008, the City Council approved an expansion of the Airport commercial paper.
program from $450,000,000 to $600,000,000 to provide sufficient capacity to refund the City’s
outstanding Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A and Series 2004B (the "2004AB Bonds"). This
expansion was accomplished through a combination of three additional series of commercial paper
notes (Series D - Tax-Exempt, Series E - Subject to AMT, Series F - Taxable) in an amount, not to
exceed $150,000,000.

Under this program, the City is able to issue commercial paper notes at prevailing interest rates for
Operiods of maturity not to exceed 270 days. The portion of the commercial paper program
approved by the City Council prior to March 25, 2008, is secured by a subordinate pledge of the
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Airport’s revenues and additionally secured by letters of credit issued on a several and not joint
basis by JPMorgan Chase Bank, Bank of America, and Dexia Credit Local. The portion of the
commercial paper program approved by the City Council on March 25, 2008, is secured by a
.subordinate pledge of the Airport’s revenues and separately secured by a direct-pay letter of credit
with I ’loyds TSB Bank plc.

During fiscal year 2009, no Series A, Series D or Series E commercial paper notes were issued or
outstanding. During fiscal year 2009, the City issued $12,464,000 of Series B commercial paper
notes, $50,777,000 of Series C commercial paper notes, and $79,930,000 of Series F commercial
paper notes.

Also during year 2009, the Authority redeemed $5,800,000 of Series B commercial paper notes.

On June 30, 2009, $150,331,000 of Airport Series B commercial paper notes was outstanding at
interest rates ranging from 1.80% to 1.90%. On June 30, 2009, $93,300,000 of Airport Series C
commercial paper notes was outstanding at an interest rate of 1.80%. On June 30, 2009,
$79,930,000, of Airport Series F commercial paper notes was outstanding at an interest rate of
0.60%.

The change.in commercial paper payables during the fiscal year 2009 are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

June 30, 2008          Additions Deletions June 30, 2009
$186,190 143,171 5,800 " $323,561

11. Landfill Post.closure Costs

The City has five closed landfills for which post-closure and monitoring services may be required fqr
approximately a 30 year period which began in fiscal year 1996, coinciding with the closure of the
last landfill. An estimated liability of $8,835,000 related to the closed landfills is recorded in the
government-wide financial statements as of June 30, 2009. The City’s Environmental .Compliance
Officer performs an annual evaluation of the aforementioned liability. Actual costs may be higher
due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. The City does not own or
operate any open landfills at this time.

12. Estimated Liability for Self-Insurance

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, errors and omissions, general liability,
injuries to employees, unemployment claims, and employee health and dental insurance. During
fiscal year 2009, the City maintained an all-risk property policy including boiler and machinery
exposures, coverage for 10ss due to business interruption and flood. The City did not carry
earthquake insurance as it was not reasonably available. A summary of coverage is as follows:

Coverages Coverage per Occurence
Property, including Business Interruption (1) $ 1 billion
Flood Zone A and V $ 25 million
Flood Zone B $ 50 million
All Other Flood Zones $100 million

(1) The policy limit for property damage caused by terrorism Is $5 mllllon per.occurence ~nd In aggregate.
(2) Deductable applies per location afflected.

Deductible Per Occurrence
$100,000
$500,000 (2)
$100,000 (2)

$100,000 (2)
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The City has an airport liability policy covering the Airport, which provides a limit of $200,000,000
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage with a $25,000,000 each occurrence
limit for personal injury subject to a per occurrence deductible of $100,000 and an aggregate
deductible of $100,000. The Airport’s $200,000,000 liability policy specifically excludes war and
terrorism from its coverage. During the past three years, there have been not been any .instances
that the amount of claim settlements exceeding the insurance coverage.

Claims liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. Tl~e result of thep~’ocess to estimate the claims liability is not an
exact amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines,
new discovered information and damage awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically
to consider the effects of inflation, recent claims settlement trends (including frequency and amount
of pay-outs), economic and social factors, newly discovered information and changes in the law.
The estimate of the claims liability also includes increases or decreases to previously reported
unsettled claims.

With respect to the general liability accrual, the City has numerous unsettled lawsuits filed or claims
asserted against it as of June 30, 2009. The City Attorney and, with respect to workers’
compensation claims, the City’s Risk Manager have reviewed these claims and lawsuits in order to
evaluat~ the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the City and to arrive at an estimate of the
amount or range of potential loss to the City. The City has included a provision for losses in its
claims liability for loss contingencies that are both probable and can be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the reported liability during the past two years are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Liability as of July 1, 2007
Claims and changes in estimates during 2008

Clalm~ payments
Liability as of June 30, 2008

Claims and changes in estimates during 2009
Claims payments

Liability as of June 30, 2009

$ 159,269
22,629

(26,835)

155,063

13,723
(28,833)

$     139,953

Owner C~ntrolled Insurance Programs - On March 31, 2004, the City bound certain liability
insurance coverage for the major components of the North Concourse Project through an owner-
controlled insurance program from American International Group, now AIU Holdings, Inc. and AIU
LLC (AIU). An owner-controlled insurance program ("OCIP") is a single insurance program that
provides insurance coverage for construction jobsite risk of the project owner, general contractors
and all subcontractors associated with construction at the designated project site. The North
Concourse Project has been completed and the policies expired December 31, 2008. Closeout
procedures on the North Concourse have begun. All remaining work associated with opening of the
facility is covered by Terminal Area Improvement Project ("TAIP"), Owner Controlled Insurance
Program ("OCIP"), as described below or is addressed in the contracts for work not covered by the
TAIP OCIP by requiring the contractors performing such work to provide insurance coverage
naming the City as an additional insured.

The City’was also required to establish a claims loss reserve for the North Concourse Project in the
aggregate’ amount of $3,900,000 available in a cash working fund. The full amount of the claims
loss reserve had been deposited with the insurance carrier and was recorded as advances and
deposits in the accompanying statement of net ’assets. The claims loss reserve funds the
deductable of up to $250,000 per occurrence to a maximum loss exposure to the City of
$3,900,000. Cumulative amounts of claims paid for during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 was
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$187,000. At the end of.the OCIP program period, an actuarial review is to be conducted based on
the claims outstanding and a portion of the unused amount is to be returned to the City, until all
claims are closed and the coverage term ends.

On March 15, 2007, the City bound additional liability insurance through another OCIP for major
components of the Airport’s TAIP OCIP through AIU. The coverage for this program is as follows:

Termln=l Area Irnprovomont ProjeCts
Covoragos                              Limits                Dodu~tlble Par Oo~urron¢o

General Llabllity $2 million per ooour~ence/ $250.000
~4 million aggregate

Workers’ Compensation Statutory $250,000
Employers~ Liability $1 million per aooldent $250,000
Excess Liability $200 milllorl None

The. liability under the TAIP OCIP is based upon an estimated payroll of $92,500,000 for the
covered projects ~nd a construction period of 57 months, commencing on March 15, 2007 through
December 13, 2010, in the event that the actual payroll for the covered TAIP projects exceeds the
estimated $92,500,000 payroll or in the event the construction period extends beyond 57 months~
the City will be obligated to’ pay increased premiums for the .TAIP OCIP and, in addition, may be
required to augment the claims loss reserve fund. The terms of the TAIP OCIP require the City to
fund a claims loss re,serve fund with AIU in the amount of $8,900,000, The claims loss reserve fund
is available to AIU to pay claims within the City’s deductible subject to an aggregate maximum loss
exposure within coverage limits to the City of $8,900,000. The City was able to negotiate to fund
74% of the claims loss reserve. As of June 30, 2009, an amount of $4,355,000 has been deposited
with AIU and was recorded as advances and deposits in tl~e accompanying statement of net
assets. The remaining balance of $2,177,000 Was paid in March 2009. Cumulative claims for the
covered projects paid as of June 30, 2009 amounted to $718,000.                  ’

13. Net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Obfigation

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, prospectively and as such, the City did not
have a net OPEB obligation at transition.(i.e., July 1, 2007). The Police and Fire Department
Retirement Plan (the Plan) and the Federated Employees’ Retirement System (the System)
calculated a net OPEB obligation in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45 as discussed in Note
IV A.2. At June 30, 2009, the City recorded a net OPEB obligation in the amount of $129,271,000 in
the government-wide financial statements.

14. Pollution Remediation Obligations

The City is currently responsible for the management and cleanup of pollution remediation activities
at several City sites including two recreational park sites ~ one ground contamination site at Watson
Park and one migrating landfill gas site at Martin Park; .five active leaking petroleum storage tank
sites: Fire Stations #5 and #16, Las Plumas Warehouse, the Main Yard and the Airport, as
discussed in Note IV C.1. The Agency is obligated for the management and cleanup of one ground
water accumulation and contamination site at the Adobe office building site; Although the City and
Agency have significant experience in estimating these types of cleanups, the calculation of the
expected outlays related to this pollution remediation is based on estimates provided by both City
engineers and consultants and engineers hired by the City and the Agency. The amount of the
estimated pollution remediation liability assumes that there will be no major increases in the cost of
providing these cleanup services. As of June 30, 2009, the City recorded a net pollution
remediation obligation in the amount of $5,660,000 in the government-wide financial statements.
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G. Inter-fund Transactions

Tlie composition of ihter-fund balances as ’of June 30, 2009,. with explanations of significant
transa’ctions, is’ as follows (dollars in thousands):"

1. Due from/Due to other funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund

General Fund Redevelopment Agency
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Redevelopment Agency General Fund
NonmaJor Governn~ental Funds

Housing Activities Redevelopment Agency

Nonmajor Governmental Funds NonmaJor Governmental Funds
Redevelopment Agency

Wastewater Treatment System Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Municipal Water System

Airport Fund No’major Governmental Funds

Amount

¯ 4,093 (1)
1,595 (2)

278 (3)
3,947 (4)

~;4 (5)

37,413.’ (6)
2,300 (7)

50 (8)
700 (9)

14 (10)
$ 50,444

(1) $1,73t represents reimbursement for services performed for the Redevelopment Agency and $2,362 represents
short-term borrowing for working capital.

(2) $1,310 represents accrual of gas tax transfer and $285 represents short-term borrowil~g for working capital.
(3) $9 represents accrual of pooled cash funds interest receivable of and $269 represents accrual for staff

¯ services performed by the Redevelopment Agency.
(4) $3,297 represents parkland in-lieu fees for the Watson Park Restoration project and $.650 represents Project

Service Memorandum refunds to the Redevelopment Agency.
(5) Represents year-end tax increment and SB 813 accrual.
(6) Represents short-term borrowing for working capital.
(7) Represents short-term portion of parkland voucher fees loan to the Redevelopment Agency.
(8) Represents short-term portion of loan for Fiber Optics Conduit project
(9) Represents short-term portion of loan for the North Coyote Valley Water Project.
(10) Represents reimbursable expenses related to the Airport West project.
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2. Advances to/Advances from other funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund San Jos~ Financing Authority $ 3,333 (1)

Redevelopment Agency Housing Activities 580 (2)
General Fund 500 (3)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds Redevelopment Agency 5,812 (4)

Parking System Redevelopment Agency 6,800 (5)

Wastewater Treatment System NonmaJor Governmental Funds 301 (6)
Municipal Water System 2,117 (7)

$ 19,443

(1) $36 represents a loan for Seismic District bond purchase and $3,297 represents a Joan to support the
City-owned golf course.

(2) Represents discounted loan to the YMCA Villa Nueva Housing project.
(3) Represents executive staff home loans.
(4) Represents parkland vouchers fees loans for low Income housing projects. Agreement was amended in 2009

for the advance to be repaid by October 2, 2011.                 ..
(5) On June 12, 2007 the City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board extended the maturity of the RDA loan

from the Parking System Fund to July 31,2012, and removed the provisions of any future
interest beyond June 30, 2007.

(6) Represents a long-term loan for the Fiber Optics Conduit project and is scheduled to be paid within 15
years from t996.

(7) Represents a loan for the North Coyote Valley Water Project.
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3. Transfers in/’rransfers out

Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, lease payments or debt service and
subsidies of variousCity operations. The following schedules sumr’narize the City’s transfer activity
with explanations of significant transactions (dollars in thousands):

Between Governmental and Business-type Activities:
Transfers from                   Transfers to Amount

General Fund Airport Fund $ 282 (1)
Municipal Water System 35 (2)

San Jose Financing Authority Parking System 135 (3)

Parking System General Fund
Redevelopment Agency
Nonmajer Governmental Funds

51 (4)
135 (5)
981 (6)

Mu’nicipal Water System General Fund 725 (7)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 134 (8)
San Jose Fin~ncing Authority 159 (9)

Wastewater Treatment System General Fund 2,559 (10)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,3t6 (11 )
San Jose Financing Authority 286 (12)

Airport Fund. General Fund

NonmaJor Governmental Funds Airport Fund
Wastewater Treatment System

104

43
67O

$ 7,615

(13)

(14)
(15)

(1) Transfer for interest expense on commercial paper.
(2) Transfer for operating expenses.
(3) Transfer for joint parking project,
(4) Transfer to the General Fund for miscellaneous non-downtown parking receipts and other postemployment

benefits.
(5) Transfer for refund of Interest earned on surplus funds held by the fiscal agent.
(6) Transfer of convention center, parking receipts and City Hall debt service payment,
(7) Transfer for in-lieu taxes payment of $270, other postemployment benefits of $10, and return on assets of $4:45.
(8) Transfer for City Hall debt service payments.
(9) Transfer for commercial paper redemption expense,
(10) Transfers for in-lieu taxes payment of $2,083, other postem ployment benefits of $129, rent of $67 and interest

of $280,
(11) Transfer for City Hall debt service payments.
(12) Transfer for commercial paper redemption expense.
(13) Transfer for other postemployment benefits.
(14) Represents various debt service, operations and capital transfers.
(15) Transfers for reimbursement of expenditures received from Federal and State agencies for past public emergencies.
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Between Funds within the Governmental Activities:
Transfers from                   Transfers to

General Fund Redevelopment Ag en~.y
San Jose Financing Authority
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Redevelopment Agency

Amount

Housing Activities

1,435 (1)
2,242 (2)

38,403 (3)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

General Fund 2,004 (4)
Housing Activities 90,469 (5)
San Jose Financing Authority 3,364 (6) .
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 10,017 (7)

San Jose Financing Authority

Redevelopment Agency 18,047 (8)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 933 (9)
General Fund 21 (10)

Special Assessment Districts

Redevelopment A~ency 5,210 (11)
General Fund 27,339 (12)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 12,161 (13)
San Jose Financing Authority 41,909 (14)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,313 (15)

General Fund 6 (16)

Public Works Program Support
Internal Service Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund 2,358 (17)

$ 259,231

(1) Transfer to Redevelopment Agency for the Edenvale Community Center construction expenses.
(2) Debt service payments of $369 for the 1997B bond series and $1,873 for the 2008F bond series.
(3) Various debt service payments, loan repayments, operations and subsidies.
(4) $348 for San Jose arena pass through payment, $1,585 for the acquisition of property and $71 for rent and

tenant improvements received for the property at Keyes Street.
(5) $40,469 for 20% increment tax transfers as required under California Community Redevelopment Law. $50,000

is transfer proceeds from tine of credit..
(6) Debt service payment for 4th & San Fernando parking garage.
(7) Transfers for capital projects.
(8) Transfer for debt service payments.
(9) Transfer for City Hall leas~ payments.
(10) Transfer for other postemployment benefits.
(11) $3,872 is for the Edenvale Community Center project and $1,338 is for various Project Service Memorandum

refunds.
(12) Various transfers for operations, capital projects and other postemployment benefits.
(13) Various transfers for debt service, operations and capital projects..
(14) Various transfers for debt service payments.
(15) Various transfers for debt service, operations and capital projects.
(16) Transfer of interest earnings to General Fund.
(17) Transfer to establish the Public Works Program Support Special Revenue Fund.
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IV. Other Information

A. Employee Defined Benefit Retirement SYStems

A, 1 Defined Benefit Pension Plans

1. Plan Description

The City sponsors and administers two single employer defined benefit retirement systems, the
Police and Fire Department Retirement Plan (the "Plan") and the Federated City Employees’
Retirement System (the "System" and collectively, "the Retirement Systems"), which together cover
all full-time and certain part-time employees of the City. The Retirement Systems provide general
retirement benefits under single employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans, as well as the
Postemployment Healthcare Plans. The pension plans are accounted for in the Pension Trust
Funds. The estimated payrolls for employees covered under both the Plan and the System for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, were approximately $243,196,000 and $320,912,000,
respectively. The City’s total actual payroll for the fiscal ye.ar ended June 30, 2009, was
approximately $608,628,000.

The separately issued annual reports of the Police and Fire Department Retirement Plan and the
Federated City ~mployees’ Retirement System, together with the City’s municipal code provide
more detailed information about the pension plans. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the
City of San Jos6 Department of Retirement Services, 1737 North First Street, Suite 580, San Jos6,
California 95112.

The Defined Benefit Pension iPlans provide general retirement benefits including pension, death,
and disability benefits to members. Benefits are based on average final compensation, years of
service, and limited .required cost-of-living increases. The Defined Benefit Pension Plans are
administered by the Director of Retirement, an employee of the City, under the direction of the
Boards of Administration for the Retirement Systems. The contribution and benefit provisions and
all other requirements are established by City ordinances.

The current membership in the Defined Benefit Pension Plans as of June 30, 2009, is as follows:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

Terminated vested members not yet receiving benefits

Active members

Total

The Plan The System

1,661 2,997
75 603

2,087 4,196
3,823 7,796

The Retirement Systems are not subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974.

2. Funding Policy

It is the City’s policy to obtain actuarial valuations for the Retirement Systems every two years.
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. For pension plans, the assumptions include those about
future employment, mortality, salary increases, and investment rate of return. Actuarially
determined amounts are subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
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The contributions to the Defined Benefit Pension Plan for each retirement system for both the City
and the participating employees are based upon an actuarially determined percentage of each
employee’s base salary sufficient to provide adequate assets to pay benefits when due.

On June 24, 2008 theCity Council adopted ordinance No. 28332 amending Chapter 3.36 and 3.28
of Title 3 of the San Jos6 Municipal Code to provide the City with the option to make lump sum
prepayments of City required contributions for pension benefits to the Police and Fire Department
Retirement Plan and Federated City Employees’ Retirement System. The lump sum prepayment
for fiscal year 2009 was calculated to be actuarialiy equivalent to the biweekly payments that would
otherwise have been the City’s required contributions to the pension plans. The Boards of
Administration for the San Jos6 Police and Fire Department Retirement Plan and Federated
Employees’ Retirement System approved the actuarially determined prepayment amount to be paid
by the City on August 1, 2008, for the remaining 24 pay dates from August 1, 2008 through June
19, 2009 on June 5 and June 12, 2008, respectively.

Contribution rates for the Defined Benefit Pension Plans for the City and the participating
employees for fiscal year 2009 were established in accordance with actuarially determined
requirements computed through actuarial valuations dated June 30, 2007. The contribution rates in
effect and the amounts contributed to the pension plans for the fiscal year ended June 30,.2009 are
as follows (dollars in thousands):

Actuarial Rate:
Defined Benefit Pension Plan:

7/01/08 - 6130109 (police members)
7/01/08 - 6/30/09 (fire members)
7/01/08 - 6/30/09

Annual Pension Contribution (in thousands):
Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Plan The System
City Participants Total City Participants Total

21.61% * 8.18%
24.12% * 8.62%

18.31% ** 4.28%

$ 53,103 $    20,324 $ 73,427 $ 57,020    $ 13,848

The actual contribution rate paid by the City was 20. 89% and 23.32% for the Police and Fire members, respectively,
as a result of the City exercising their option to make a lump sum prepayment for 24 pay pedods of fiscal year 2009.
The actual contribution rate paid by the City was 17. 63% for the Federated members as a result of

th~ City exercising its option to make a lump sum prepayment for 24 pay periods of fiscal year 2009.

$ 70,868

3. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The following is three-year trend information for the City’s Defined Benefit Pension Plans (dollars in
thousands):

The Plan

The System

Fisoal Annual Percent Nat
ysar Pension APC Pension

ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30107 $ 46,625 t00% $
6130/08 56,372 100%
6130109 *** 53,103 100%

6/30/07 51,004 100% 3,239
6130/08 51,718 106%
6/30/09 *** 57,020 100%

These am~unts represent the annua~ pensi~n ~~st fa~t~dng in the ~ity’s e~ected ~ump-sum prepaymen~~ In the absence of the
City’s elected lump-sum prepayment, the annual required employer contributions based on the Boards of Admin/strelion of the
Retirement Systems’ adopted contribution rates for the Plan and the Syste.m would be $54,780,000 and 58, 759, 000, respectively.
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4. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was 100% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2,372,386,000, and the actuarial value of assets was
$2,365,790,000, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $6,596,000. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $227,734,000, and
the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 3%. As of the June 30, 2007 valuation date, the
System was 83% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,960,943,000 and the
actuarial value of assets was $1,622,851,000, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) of $338,092,000. The covered payroll was $291,405,000, and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 116%.

As noted in the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets, the City’s pension trust funds
experienced a net decrease in net assets of $850,000,000 in fiscal year 2009 following a
$262,200,000 decline in net assets in the prior year. Due to this significant decrease in net assets,
the Retirement Systems’ next actuarial studies are e~pected to substantially increase the annual
required contribution amounts for fiscal year 2010.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RSI following the Notes to Basic Financial
Statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing o.ver time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits,
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5. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrual liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. The more significant actuarial
methods and assumptions used in the calculations of employee and employer contributions to the
Retirement Systems for the pension plans for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 are as follows:

MethodlAssumption The Plan The System

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method for actuarial accrued
liabilities

Remaining amortization period

Actuarial asset valuation method

Investment rate of return

Postretirement mortality

Active service, withdrawal, death, disability
service retirement

Salary Increases

Cost-of-living adjustments

June 30, 2007

Entry age normal cost
method

Level percentage of payroll

10 years, closed for
unfunded pension liabilities;
16 years, closed for gains
and losses between
valuations, and changes in
assumptions

5 year smoothed market

8.00% per annum

RP-2000 combined healthy
mortality table, with a three-
year set back, is used for
male members.

RP-2000 combined healthy
mortality table, with a one
year set forward, is used for
female members.

Based upon the June 30,
2007 experience study

¯ 9% for employees for the
first five years of service,
6% for six and seven years
of service, and 5% for eight
or more years of service.
The total salary Increase of
4% is for combined inflation
and real across-the-board
salary increase.

3.00% per year

June 30, 2007

Entry age normal cost
method

Level percentage of payroll

30 years, open

5 year smoothed market

8.25% per annum

The 1994 Group Annuity
Mortality Table used for
healthy retirees and
beneficiaries. The disabled ’
mortality table used was the
1981 Disability Mortality
Table.

Based upon current
experience

The rate of annual salary
increase for all members
with at least five years of
service is equal to 4.25%
plus an added merit
component for those with
zero to four years of service.

3.00% per year
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A. 2 Postemployment Healthcare Plans

1. Plan Description

In addition tc~ the Defined Benefit Pension Plans, the City also sponsors and administers two single
employer postemployment healthcare plans, the Police and Fire Department Postemployment
Healthcare Plan and the FederatedCity Employees’ Postemployment Healthcare Plan, which
together ’cover eligible full-time and certain part-time employe~s of the City. The postemployment
healthcare plans are accounted for in the Pension Trust Funds.

The separately issued annual reports ofthe Police and Fire Department Retirement Plan and the
Federated City Employees’ Retirement System, together with the City’s municipal code provide
more detailed information about the Postemployment Healthcare Plans. As stated in Section A.1 of
this note, those reports may be obtained from the City of San Jos6 Department of Retirement
Services.

The Postemployment Healthcare Plans provide medical and dental benefits to eligible retirees.
Benefits are 100% of the premium cost for the lowest priced medical insurance plan and 100% of
the premium cost for dental insurance plan available to an active City employee. The
PostemPloyment Healthcare Plans are administered by the Director of Retirement, an employee of
the City, under the direction of the Boards of Administration for the Retirement Systems. The
contribution and benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by City ordinances.

The current membership in the postemployment Healthcare Plans as of June 30, 2009, is as
follows:                                              ,

P0stemployment Healthcare Plans:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefiis

Terminated vested members not yet receiving benefits

Active member~

Total

¯ The Plan .The System

1,571 2,641
5 80

2,087 4,196

3,663 6,917

2. Funding Policy

As stated above in the Defined Benefit Pension Plan section of this note, it is the City’s policy to
.obtain actuarial valuations for the Retirement Systems every two years. Actt~arial valuations of an
ongoing plan involve estimates and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far
into the future. For postemployment healthcare plans, the assumptions include those about future
employment, mortality, salary increases, healthcare cost trend, and investment rate of return.
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of postemployment’l~ealthcare benefit costs for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan as understood by the employer and plan members, and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and the plan members to that point.
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On June 24, 2008, the City Council adopted ordinance No. 28332 amending Chapter 3.36 and 3.28
of Title 3 of the San Jose Municipal Cod~ to provide the City with the option to make lump sum
prepayments of City required contributions for postemployment healthcare benefits to the Police
and Fire Department Retirement Plan and Federated City Employees’ Retirement System. The
lump sum prepayment for fiscal year 2009 was calculated to be actuarially equivalent to the
biweekly payments that would otherwise have been the City’s required contributions to the
postemployment healthcare plans. The Boards of Administration for the San Jose Police and Fire
Department Retirement Plan and Federated Employees’ Retirement System approved the
actuarially determined prepayment amount to be paid by the City on August 1, 2008, for the
remaining 24 pay dates from August 1, 2008 through June 19, 2009 on June 5 and June 12, 2008,
respectively.

Contribution. rates for the’ Postemployment Healthcare Plans forthe City and the participating
employees for fiscal year 2009 were established in accordance with actuarially determined
requirements computed through actuarial valuations dated June 30, 2007. The postemployment
healthcare contribution rates were based upon an actuarially determined percentage of each
employee’s base salary prior to the requirements of GASB Statement Numbers 43 and 45. The
contributions are not currently sufficient to provide adequate assets to pay benefits when due in
accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement Numbers 43 and 45. The contribution rates
in effect and the amdunts contributed to the Police and Eire Plan and the Federated Plan for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

The Plan , The System
City Participants Total’ City , Participants Total

Actuarial Rate:
Postemployment Healthcere Plan:

7/01/08 - 6/27/09 (police and fire members) 4,19% ’ 3.78%
7/01/08 - 6/27/09 5.25% ** 4.65%
6/28/09 - 6/30/09 (police members) 5.28% * 4,78%
6/28/09 - 6/30/09 (fire members) 4,19% * 3.78%
6/28/09 - 6t30/09 5.70% *" 5.07%

Annual OPEB Contribution (in thousands):
PostemptoymentHealthcarePlan $ 9,888 $ 9,218 $ 19,105 $ 16,368 $ 15,076 $ 31 444

* The actual contribution rate paid by the Cit~ was 4.05% for both the Police and Fire members as a result of
the City exercising their option to make a lump sum prepayment for 24 pay periods of fiscal year 2009.

** The actuel contfibufion rate paid by the City was S.05% for the Federsfed members as a resull of
the City exercising its option to make a/ump sum prepayment for 24 pay periods of fiscal year 2009.

The City has begun a five-year phase-in to fully pre-fund retiree healthcare benefits for the majority
of its employee units, with the exception of the San Jose Firefighters union (International
Association of Firefighters, Local 230). This will result in an incremental increase in .retiree
healthcare contributions for both the City and its employees over the next five years.
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3. Annua/ Other Postemp/oyment Benefit (OPEB) Cost and Net OPEB Ob/igation

The City implemented GASB’~,5 in fiscal year 2008 and elected to report a zero net OPEB
obligation at the beginning of the transition year. The City’s annual other postemployment benefit
cost and net OPEB obligation for.the Plan and the System as of and for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2009, were as follows (dollars in thousands)

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation

Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase in net,OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation - end of year

The Plan The System

$ 46,720 $ 33,381
3,155 1,746

(3,541) (1,402)

46,334 33,725
(12,548) (15,919)

33,786 17,806
50,726 26,953

$ 84,512 $ 44,759

The following is two-year trend information for the City’s single employer Postemployment
Healthcare Plans (dollars in thousands):

The Plan

Fiscal Annual Percent Net
year OPEB Annual OPEB Cost OPE8

ended Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/08 $ 61,344 17% $ 50,726
6/30/09 46,334 27% 54,512

The SYstem 6/30/08 $ 38,513 30% $ 26,953
6/30/09 33,725 47% 44,759

4. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2007, the mos.t recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was 7% funded..The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $666,228,000, and the actuarial value of assets was
$45,393,000 resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $620,835,000. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $227,734,000, and
the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 273%. As of the June 30, 2007 valuation date, the
System was 16% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $616,749,000, and the
actuarial value of assets was $96,601,000, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) of $520,148,000. The covered payroll was $271,833,000, and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 191%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RSI following the Notes to Basic Financial
Statements, presents information about whether the actuarial value 5f plan assets increased or
decreased in fiscal year 2009 over the transition year in relation to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.
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5. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrual liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with. the long-term perspective of the calculations. The more significant actuarial
methods and assumptions used in the calculation of the annual OPEB cost, the annual required
contribution, and the funded status and funding progress for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009
are as follows:

MethodlAssumption The Plan The System

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method for actuarial accrued
liabilities
Remaining amortization period

Actuarial asset valuation method

Discount rate*

June 30, 2007

Entry age normal cost method

Level percentage of payroll

30 years as of June 30, 2007,
open

5 year smoothed market

6.4%

June 30, 2007

Entry age normal cost
method

Level percentage of payroll

30 years as of June 30,
2007, closed

5 year smoothed market

6.6%

Salary Increases The total salary increase of
4% is for combined inflation
and real across-the-board
salary increase.

The rate of projected
payroll increase is 4%

Healthcare cost trend rate:
Medical 10% for fiscal year 2009,

8.25% for fiscal year 2010,
dec(easing by 0.50% for each
year for seven years until it
reaches an ultimate rate of 5%

Dental 5% -

inflation rate 3.5%

The valuation assumes
that future medical
inflation will be at a rate of
8% per annum
graded down each year
in 0.5% increments to an
ultimate rate of 4.5%.

Dental inflation is
assumed to be 6%
graded down to 4%
over a nine year period.
4%

* Determined as a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the City’s
investments, based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date.
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B. Defined Contribution Retirement Plan

In January 1995, the Agency Board adopted a single employer defined contribution retirement plan,
the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Jos6 Retirement Plan (the Retirement Plan), which
provides pension benefits for its non-civil service employees. For eligible employees who contribute
3.5% of their annual base salary, the Agency contributes approximately 9.0%. The Agency’s
contributions are based on a formula takir~g into account employee annual base salary and length
of service. The Agency’s contributions for each employee (and interest allocated to the employee’s
account) are fully vested after three years of continuous service from the original date of
employment. The Agency’s .contributions and interest forfeited by employees who leave
employment before vesting occurs may be used to reduce the Agency’s contribution requirement or
to offset plan-operating expenses: The Agency contracts with an advisor to manage the Retirement
Plan with all assets being held in trust by a third party custodian in the name of each of the
Retirement Plan’s participants. Each of the Retirement Plan’s participants directs the investments
of his/her separate account. The Agency’s Board of Directors may authorize changes to the
Retirement Plan.

The Agency’s total payroll in fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 for all non-civil service employees
was approximately $9,451,000. Contributions to the Retirement Plan during the year ended June
30, 2009, made by both the Agency and the participating employees, amounted to approximately
$847,000 and $323,000, respectively.

C. Commitments and Contingencies

1. Norman Y. Mineta San Jos~ International Airport

Purchase Commitments. As of June 30, 2009, the Airport was obligated for purchase
commitments of approximately $332,000,000, primarily for the terminal area development projects,
noise attenuation, as well as design and construction of the rental car facility and the North
Concourse building. Additionally, the Airport has projected, that it will expend or encumber
approximately $326,935,000, including approximately $13,116,000 pertaining to Phase 2 of the
Airport Master Plan, on proposed capital projects during the next five fiscal years. Construction on
Phase 2 projects is contingent upon satisfyingactivity-based triggers. It is anticipated that funding
for such capital projects will be provided primarily by proceeds from passenger facility charges
(PFC), Federal grant monies, .bond proceeds and other Airport revenues.

Fuel Storage Facility. In 1985, the Airport and a fuel supplier with a fuel storage facility adjacent to
the City owned fuel tank farm facility discovered a fuel leak whereby petroleum products had been
released into the soil and ground water from either or both of the City owned facility and/or the other
fuel supplier facility. The Airport and a fuel supplier with a fuel storage facility adjacent to the City
owned facility agreed to share the costs of a study to develop an acceptable cleanup program for
the contaminated site. The cleanup program submitted to the Santa Clara Valley Water District, the
responsible regulatory authority, was approved and the cleanup program commenced during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1991. Under an operating agreement, the Airport implemented a
groundwater extraction system to control the migration of the contamination and begin efforts to
remediate the conta~nination. Under the agreement and until 1998 when the agreement expired, the
Airport was required to pay 60% of the costs and the fuel suppl.ier to pay the balance of 40% of the
costs. The fuel supplier also receives a 10% management fee for overseeing the cleanup operation.
Since there is currently no agreement in place, approximately $660,000 of unpaid invoices exist
relating to the remediation and managements fees for the period of December 1998 through
December 2008.
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The City has budgeted approximately $7,400,000 for the site characterization and remediation
costs, which is being financed as a component of Phase 1 of the Airport Development Program.
However, the actual costs of the site characterization and remediation may exceed the budgeted
amount. The Airport and a fuel supplier are currently negotiating an agreement for corrective
actions at the existing fuel tank farms at a cost to the City not to exceed $1,800,000 and additional
expenditures not to exceed $1,800,000. The proposed agreement will provide for a 50% - 50% cost
sharing responsibility for the actual future costs until the successful closure of the site and will
provide the mechanism for the City to pay its 50% share of the past costs that the fuel supplied had
incurred since the expiration of the original agreement. The fuel supplier will be responsible for
administering the agreement including retaining a corrective action contractor. The proposed
agreement will also be structured to facilitate potential reimbursement from~the State Water
Resource Control Board Underground Storage Tank Commingled Plume Fund. Reimbursement
from the Fund is potentially available up to $1,500,000 for each party. The new agreement is
expected to be executed during the fiscal year 2009-10.

On December 22, 1998, due to minimal fuel activities, the Airport temporarily closed its facility and
ceased operation at that time. Construction of a new fuel storage facility started in July 2008 and it
is anticipated that it will become operational in approximately March 2010. The current facility will
then be closed and site remediation activities will commence. As of June 30, 2009, the Airport has
accrued approximately $714,000 to cover the estimated remaining costs of its portion of the interim
remediation costs. In the absence of a site characterization study by a corrective action contractor,
the Airport has insufficient information to reasonably estimate the future remediation costs. Based
on presently available information, the City’s management does not anticipate that the full cost of
remediation of the fuel storage facility will have a significant impact on the City’s financial position or
change in financial position.

Acoustical Treatment Program. The Airport has an Acoustical Treatment Program (ACT) to
comply with the requirements of Title 21 of the California Noise Standard. The program provides
acoustical treatment to residences in the noise impact areas surrounding the Airport, at no cost to
the property owners. The program is primarily funded by grants from the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) and by PFC revenues. The Airport expended approximately $5,433,000 on
noise attenuation projects during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 and expects to spend
approximately $7,295,000 during fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.

Master Plan. The Airport Master Plan consists of a program of facility improvements designed to
fully accommodate commercial aviation demand (passengers and cargo) projected for the year
2017, with development phased as demand warrants and is determined to be financially feasible.
The Master Plan was originally adopted by the City of San Jos~ in June 1997 and approved by the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) in December 1999. In June 2006, the City Council approved
revisions to the Airport Maste( Plan regarding implementation of the Terminal Area Improvement
Program (TAIP). The current P.rogram consists of two phases that total approximately. $1.6 billion.
Phase 1 of the Program has a total budget of approximately $1.3 billion and construction of most of
the projects is scheduled to be completed near the end of 2009-2010, with some projects to be
completed in 2010-2011. Construction of the Phase 2 projects is contingent upon satisfying
specified activity-based triggers. Funding for Master Plan projects is from several sources, including
grants, PFCs, airline rates and charges, airport revenue bonds, and subordinated commercial
paper proceeds.
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2. Redevelopment,Agency

Tax Sharing Agreement with the County of Santa Clara. On May 22, 2001 ,. the County of Santa
Clara, City of San Jose and the Agency amended and restated the 1993 Tax Revenue Sharing
Agreement (the 2001 Agreement). The 2001 Agreement requires the Agency to provide the County
a portion of the Agency’s bond proceeds in addition to the 1993 revenue sharing amounts. The
money will be used by the County to undertake redevelopment projects in or of benefit to the
merged area, and requires the Agency to transfer funds to the County to pay for such projects.
Such payments are considered Delegated Payments. Until June 30, 2004, the Delegated Payment
Was equal to the County’s pass-through payment. However, after January 1, 2004, the Delegated
Payment was re-defined as 20% of the proceeds of any debt secured by the Agency’s non-housing
tax increment revenues (excluding refunding bonds). For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the
pass-through payment totaled approximately $21,347,000 and.Delegated Payments totaled in the.
amount of $16,832,000.

3. City of San Jose and the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Jos~

In August 2004, the City and the Agency filed a lawsuit seeking a judicial determination as to
whether the County had breached the 2001 Agreement entered into among the parties in May
2001. The 2001 Agreement included provisions regarding redevelopment tax increment allocation
and the application of land use procedures in County territory within the San Jose urban service
area. The City and the Agency contend that under the 2001 Agreement, the County was required to
abide by City land use procedures before it entered into agreements with private entitles for the
development of a theater on the County fairgrounds.

In April 2005, the County filed a cross complaint against the City and the Agency alleging, among
other things, breach of the 2001 Agreement, breach, of the 2001 Agreement’s implied covenant of
good faith and fair dealing, and intentional interference with prospective economic relations. The
County’s cross complaint alleged no specific amount of damages and sought damages and
restitution according to proof. In addition a second lawsuit was filed by the County challenging the
Council’s approval of the North San Jose Development Policies Update. These lawsuits resulted in
a settlement in November 2006.

The settlement among the City, Agency and County is that each agreed to dismiss their respective
lawsuits and the Agency and/or City would pay the County a sum of $22,500,000, to be used by
County on specified facilities that benefit the citizens of the City of San Jose. The Agency and/or

.City will pay the $22,500,000 in three installments of $7,500,000 over a three-year period,
commencing on July 1, 2007. At June 30, 2009, the final installment liability in the amount of
$7,500,000 was recorded as part of the current obligations; estimated liability for self-insurance in
the government wide financial statements. In addition, as part of the agreement, the City is required
to fund up to $11,000,000 toward certain improvements on Montague Expressway no later than
June 30, 2010.

4. san Jos& - Santa Clara Water Pollution Control Plant

The City’s 2010-20i4 Five-Year Capital Improvement Program includes approxi.mately $20,000,000
for the South Bay Water Recycling (SBWR) project, a regional water reclamation program to
recycle highly treated wastewater for irrigation and industrial uses in the cities of San Jose, Santa
Clara, and Milpitas, California. This program is part of an action plan, developed by the City and
other agencies tributary to the Plant and adopted by the Regional Water Quality Control Board
(RWQCB), to control the amount of efflDent discharged by the Plant into San Francisco Bay.
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The. SBWR distribution system includes approximately 60 miles of pipe, a four million-gailon
reservoir, a transmission pump station, and two booster pump stations. These facilities were
constructed between 1996 and 1998 at a capital cost of approximately $140,000:000 funded by the
tributary agencies, grants, and bond proceeds.

Proceeds from prior bonds that were refundedby the Series 2005 A and Series 2009 A San Jos~-
Santa Clara Clean Water Financing Authority Sewer Revenue Bonds, were used to pay for the
City’s share of Phase I costs. The City of Santa Clara’s share, of Phase I costs was approximately
$20,067,000. Sources of funding included credit for the City of Santa Clara’s existing non-potable
water reclamation distribution system, in-kind services, additional construction, and City of Santa
Clara sewer utility cash reserves. Other sources of funding for Phase I included U.S. Bureau of
Reclamation grants, $6,449,000 transferred in fiscal year 1995 from the Authority to the City’s
Wastewater Treatment Plant Capital Fund, and cash contributions from the other participating
agencies.

In June 1997, the RWQCB and the’ City approved the Proposed Revision to the South Bay Action
Plan, which described the projects necessary to reduce average dry weather effluent flow from the
Plant to below 120 million gallons per day (mgd) and protect salt marsh habitat for endangered
species in the South Bay as required by RWQCB Order 94-117. These projects include expanding
the Phase I non-potable reuse system by extending additional piping, placing greater emphasis on
water conservation programs, reducing infiltration inflow, augmenting stream flow, and creating
wetlands. The estimated cost for implementing these projects was $127,500,000, of which
$101,269,000 has been experided or encumbered. These estimated costs are to be funde’d by the
City and other tributary agencies through a combination of State Revolving Fund Loans, Sewage
Treatment Plant Connection Fees, federal grants, and cash contributions.

5. Retirement Systems - Unfunded Commitments

As of June 30, 2009, the Retirement System and Plan had unfunded commitments to contribute
capital for private fund investments in the amount of $59,403,000 and $69,950,000, respectively.

6. Federal Financial Assistance Programs

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs, primarily with the
Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Aviation Administration, the Department
of Transportation, the Department of Homeland Security,. the Department of Labor, and the
Department of Justice. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors
or their representatives.

Although the City’s grant programs have been audited in accordance with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, these programs are
still subject to financial and compliance audits by Federal auditors, and to resolution of identified
findings and questioned costs. At this time, the amount of expenditures, if any, which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined.
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Subsequent Events

1. Fiscal Year 2010 State Budget Impacts

On July 28, 2009, Governor Schwarzenegger signed a package of bills to close the State’s fiscal
year 2010 $23.0 billion budget shortfall. The following are the significant impacts to the City and the
Redevelopment Agency as a result of the State’s actions:

Borrows City Property Taxes -The State’s suspension of Proposition 1A would divert $1.9 billion
of local government property tax revenues in fiscal year 2010. The suspension diverts 8% of the
total property tax revenues received by cities, counties and special districts in 2009 (excluding debt
levies). The county auditors are instructed to shift 8% of each local government’s share of property
taxes to the county-level Supplemental Revenue Augmentation Fund to fund K-12 schools and
other State programs that would otherwise be funded from the State General Fund. The State must
repay the amount shifted, with interest, no later than June 30, 2013. The City’s Proposition 1A
property tax shift is $20,467,000.

In addition to suspending Proposition 1A, tl~e 2009 State Budget package also authorized the
securitization of Proposition 1A Receivables. California Communities has been authorized to
implement the Proposition 1A Securitization Program to enable local agencies to sell their
respective Proposition 1A Receivable to California Communities. Under the Securitization Program,
California Communities will simultaneously purchase the Proposition 1A Receivable from
participating local agencies, issue bonds, and provide each participating local agency with the cash
proceeds in two equal installments, on January 15, 2010 and May 3, 2010, to coincide with the
dates that the State will be shifting property tax from local agencies thereby not impacting the City’s
expected cash flow. The purchase price of Propo.sition 1A Receivable paid to the local agencies will
equal 100% of the amount of the property tax reduction. All transaction costs of issuance and
interest will be paid by the State of California. Participating local agencies will have no obligation on
the bonds and no credit exposure to the State.

On October 20, 2009, City Council adopted a resolution approving the sale of the City’s Proposition
1A Receivable from the State of California. The proceeds of the sale are expected to be received in
two equal installments, on January 15, 2010 and May 3, 2010 to offset the City’s reduced property
tax allocation in fiscal year 2010 due t’o the State’s suspension of Proposition 1A.

Supplemental Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (SERAF) Taxes - On July 24, 2009,
the State Legislature passed Assembly Bill (AB) 26 4x, which requires redevelopment agencies
statewide to deposit a total of $2.1 billion of property tax increment in county "Supplemental"
Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds (SERAF) to be distributed to meet the State’s
Proposition 98 obligations to schools. The SERAF revenue shift of $2.1 billion will be made over
two years, $1.7 billion in fiscal year 2010 and $350,000,000 in fiscal year 2011. The SERAF would
then be paid to school districts and the county offices of education which have students residing in
redevelopment project areas, or residing in affordable housing projects financially assisted by a
redevelopment agency, thereby relieving the State of payments to those schools. The Agency’s
share of this revenue shift is approximately $62,200,000 in fiscal year 2010 and $12,800,000 in
fiscal year 2011. Payments are to be made by May 10 of each respective fiscal year. In response to
AB 26x 4, the Agency will attempt to renegotiate the tax sharing and other payment agreements
with the County of Santa Clara by deferring payments forthe next three years arid negotiate with the
City in obtaining a loan from the Housing 20% Set-aside Funds.
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On October 20, 2009, the California Redevelopment Association (CRA) together with two
redevelopment agencies have filed a lawsuit in Sacramento Superior Court challenging the
constitutionality of AB 26x 4. The lawsuit asserted that the transfer of property tax increment to the
SERAF is not permitted under Article XVI, Section 16 of the California Constitution. The complaint
also asserted impairment of contract and gift of public funds argumerits.

2. Letters of Credit

The principal and interest payment of the 1996 Merged Area Revenue Bonds and 2003 Merged
Area Revenue Bonds are supported by the Letters of Credit under a Reimbursement Agreement
with JPMorgan Chase Bank. The Letters of Credit were set to expire on October 31, 2010, and
August 27, 2009, for the 1996 Bonds and 2003 Bonds, respectively. Failure to extend or replace the
Letters of Credit would require the Agency to redeem the bonds upon the expiration date of the
Letters of Credit.

To avoid the need to redeem the 2003 Bonds on November 27, 2009, the Bank has agreed to
extend the 2003 Letters of Credit to November 26, 2010, and to extend the 1996 Letters of Credit to
the same date, under the terms of an Amendment to Reimbursement Agreements that amend both
the 2003 and 1996 Reimbursement Agreements. The Amendment to Reimbursement Agreements
includes .the following basic terms:

The annual fee for the 2003 Letters of Credit will increase from 1.50% times the
outstanding Letters of Credit amount to 2.20% subject to an increase of 0.15% for each
downgrade of the Agency’ senior tax allocation bond rating by either Moody’s or Standard
and Poor’s.

2. The annual fee with respect to the 1996 Letters of Credit will increase from 0.45% to 2.10%
times the outstanding Letters of Credit subject to an increase of 0.15% for each Rating
Downgrade Event.

The Agency must reduce, by November 27, 2009, the aggregate amount of the 2003
Bonds and 1996 Bonds to no more than $100,000,000. The Agency will direct the Bond
Trustee of the bonds to redeem $5,300,000 of the 1996 Bonds (the $5,300,000 has been
recognized by the Agency as short-term obligation in the governmental funds in the current
fiscal year as Variable-Rate Demand Bonds).
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City of San Jos~
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

($00o’s)

Actual Amounts
Budgetary Basis Actual

Variance with Amounts Budgetary
Budgeted Amodnts Final Budget Budgetary to GAAp

Original Final , Over (Under) Basis Differences
REVENUES
Taxes:

Prope~y $ 209,267 210,356 488 210,544
Sales 152,536 135,920 (3,gl 5) 132,005
Utility 83,690 90,904 2,715 93,619
State of California In-lieu 7,g46 7,860 978 8,838
Franchis e 41,621 41,190 (122) 41,068
Other 9,972 7,818 (23) 7,795

Licenses, permits and fines 78,884 85,473 (1,199) 84,274
Intergovemmenta[ 6,104 16,164 202 t6,366
Charges for current services 30,853 27,244 896 28,140
Investment income 14,768 7,860 (6) 7,854
Other revenues 28,159 33,905 (1.0,~9) 32,856

Total revenues 664,80__.~.9_0664,69~4. , (1,035) 663,659

(313)
(250)
1’563)

Actual
Amounts

GAAP Basis

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 136,406 133,300 (26,362) lfi6,938 (8,402)
Public safety 419,739 431,825 (10,015) 421,810 (2,767)
Capital maintenance 98,121 84,742 (19,682) 65,060 (11,620)
Community ser~ces 153,612 153,019 (10,692) 142,327 (3,335)
Sanitation 1,951 3,592 (684) 2,908 (287)

Capital outlay 6,275 6,275 {785) 5,490 (257)
Debt service’,

Principal 953 953 953
Interest 630 630 630

210,844
132,005
93,619

8,838
,41,068

7,795
54,274
16,366
28,140

7,541
32,606

663,096

98,536
419,043

53,440
138,992

2,621
5,233

953
630

Total expenditures 817,687 914,336 (68,220) 746,116 ~’26,668)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures .(152,887) (149,642! 67,185 , 182,457) 26,105

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In                                   36,112 34,711 (1,902) 32,509
Transfers out (35,067) (44,779) 2,382 (42,397)

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,045 f10,068~ 480 (9,588I
Net change In fund balances (149,942) (159,710) 67,665 (92,045)

Fund balances - beginning 223,651 223,651 223,651
Beginning encumbrance 41,648
Fund balances - ending $ 73,809 63.941 67.665 173,254

719,446

{’56,352)

26,105

53,492
f41,648)
37,939

32,809
(42,397)

(9.686)

(65,940)

277,133

ExplansNon of differences;
(1) Galn or loss tn fair value of investm ants are not formally budgeted transactions,
(2) Encumbrances of funds for which formal budget are preparad.
13) Expenditures and repayments that In.ease and decrease certain loan receivables for which formal budge,re are prepared.
I4) Loan advance Is budgetary reciaesod as cther revenue.

(1)
(4)

(2),(3)
(2)
(2)
(2)
(2)
(2)

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary Information,
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City of San Jos~
Housing Activities

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance.Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

($000’s)

REVENUES

Actual Amounts
Budgetary Basis Actual

Variance wlth Amounts ¯ Budgetary
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget Budgetary to GAAP

Original Final . Over (Under) Basis Differences

Actual
Amounts

GAAP Basis

Intergovernmsntal $ "~7,659 39,145 (27,135) 12,01o
Inves.tment income 6,150 6,150 4,369 10,519 475
Other revenues 38,276 11,376 (4,012) 7,364 (5,878)

Total revenues 62,085 56,671 . (26,776) 29,893 (5,403)

EXPENDITURES
CIJrrent:

Capital maintenance
Community selMces
Tatal expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 174,873 90,469 90,469
Transfers out (19,077) (19,001) (1g,001)

Total other financing sources (uses) 155,79~" 71,46"’--"-""~’ 71,468

Net change in fund balances (48,653) (47,682) 23,630 (24,052) 62,415

Fund balance- beginning 13,677 13,677 13,677 309,216
Add beginning encumbrance balance 36,587 (36,587)
Fund balances - ending $    (34,976~)) ~ 23,630 26,212 335,044

Explanation of differences:

12,010
10,994
1,486

24,490

125 86 (21) 65
266,409 175,735 (50,387) 125,348     (67,818)
266,534 175,821 (50,408) 125,413     (67,818)

65
57,530
57,595

23,630 (95,520) 62,415 (33,105)

90,469
(19,001)
71.468

36,363

322,893

361,256

(1) Gain or less in falr value of investments are not formally budgeted transactions.
(2) Encumbrances of funds for which formal budget are prepared.
(3) Expenditures and repayments that Increase and decrease cedain loan receivables for which formal budgets are prepared.

(1)
(3)

(2), (3)

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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Required Supplementary Information

June 30, 2009
Schedules of Funding Progress

($000’s)
.Police and Fire Department Retirement Plan - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual
Valuation Value of Liability (Overfunded) Funded Covered
Date (4) Assets (1) (AAL) (2) AAL Ratio Payroll (3)

6130103 $ 1,826,287 1,823,200 (3,087) 100% 202,222
6/30!05 1,983,090 " 2,027,432 44,342 98% 210,018
6/30/07 (5) 2,365,790 2,372,386 6,596 100% 227,734

Federated City Employees’ Retirement System - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual
Valuation Value of Liability Uhfunded Funded Covered
Date (4) Assets (1) (AAL) (2) AAL Ratio Payroll (3)

6/30/03 $ 1,280,719 1,311,691 30,972 98% 292,961
6130/05 1,384,454 1,711,370 326,916 81% 286,446
6/30/07 1,622,881 1,960,943 338,092 83% 291,405

(1) Excludes accounts payable and postemployment healthcare plan assets.
(2) Excludes postemployment healthcare liability.
(3) Annual covered payroll represents the actuarial estimate of annual covered payroll for the subsequent year.
(4) Actuarial valuations have been performed biennially through June 30, 2007.
(5) After reflection of benefit improvements effective July 1,2008 for Police members.

(Overfunded)
Unfunded
AAL as a

Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
(2)%
21%
3%

Unfunded
AAL as a

Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
11%

114%
116%

Police and Fire Department Retir~r~ent Plan. Postemployment Healthcare Benefit Plan

Unfunded
Actuarial AAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funde.d Covered of Covered

Date Assets (AAL) (6) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

6130106 $ 38,381 851,217 812,836 5% 218,521
6/30/07 45,393 666,228 620,835 7% 227,734

372%
273%

Federated City Employees’ Retirement System - Postemployment Healthcare Benefit Plan

Unfunded
Actuarial AAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets (AAL) (6) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

6/30/06 $      81,288 702,939 621,651 12% 275,559
6/30/07 96,601 616,749 520,148 16% 271,833

226%
191%

(6) The decrease in the actuarial accrued liability from 6/30/06 valuation to 6/30/07 valuation for both the Plan and the System
is largely due to an Increase in the sharing of benefit costs for the members as a result of the negotiations between
the City and the members’ unions.
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Notes to Required S~pplementary Information

June 30, 2009,

Budgetary Information

The adopted budget represents the financial and organizatiQnal plan by which the policies and
programs approved by the City Council will be implemented. It includes: (1) the programs, projects,
services and activities to be provided during the fiscal year; (2) estimated revenues available to
finance the operating plan; and (3) the estimated spending requirements of the operating plan. The
City Charter requires that the City establish a budgetary system for general operations and prohibits
expending funds for which there is no legal appropriation.

Annual budgets are prepared for the General Fund and all special revenue funds except for the
following:

, Developer Fees
¯ William F. Prusch, Jr.
¯ Special Assessment Special Services
¯ Emergency Reserve

The annual appropriation ordinance adopts the budget at the appropriation level by expenditure
category (personal services, nonpersonal) within departments. Accordingly, the lowest level, of
budgetary control exercised by the City Council is the appropriation level within a department. The
City’s legal level of budgetary control is so detailed that it is not practical to demonstrate compliance
within the CAFR itself. As a result, the City prel~ares a separate report to demonstrate compliance
with its legal level of budgetary control.

Capital project budgets are based on a project time frame rather than a fi~cal year time frame and
therefore are not included. Debt Service Funds appropriations were implicitly adopted by the
Council when the formal bond resolutions were approved.

II, Budgetary Results Reconciled to GAAP

The budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis other than the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) basis. The results of
operations are presented in the accompanying budget and actual comparison schedules in
accordance with the budgetary process (budgetary basis) to provide a meaningful comparison with
the budget.

The major diffe~’ences between the budgetary basis actual and GAAP basis are as follows:

Year-end encumbrances are recognized as the equivalent of expenditures in the budgetary
basis financial statements, While encumbered amounts are not recognized as expenditures
on the GAAP basis until the equipment, supplies, or services are received.

Certain loan transactions are recognized as expenditures for the budgetary basis but not for
the GAAP basis. When these loans are made, they are recorded as receivables for the
GAAP basis and as expenditures for the budgetary basis. When loan repayments are
received, they are recorded as reductions to receivables for the GAAP basis, but are
recognized as revenues for the budgetary basis.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information

June 30, 2009

Net decreases were made to certain GAAP basis loans receivable to reflect carrying amounts
at a discounted present value and allowances for bad debts. The discount is treated as.an
expenditure for the GAAP basis and is not included in the budgetary basis financial
statements. In addition, the allowance for bad debts is not included in the budgetary basis
financial statements, but is an expenditure for the GAAP basis.

Certain accounts such as the change in fair value of investments included in the City’s GAAP
basis amounts, for which no formal budgets are prepared, are excluded from the budgetary
basis financial statements.

The Community Facility Revenue non-major special revenue fund has been blended to
include the financial operations of the Dolce Hayes Mansion. Formal budgets are not
prepared for this financial activity and is excluded from the budgetary basis financial
statements.

Certain line of credit transactions are recognized as expenditures in the budgetary basis
financial schedules but are recorded as an asset in the GAAP.basis financial statements.
When the outside agency drawdown on the line of credit, the City records an asset, advances
to other agencies, in the GAAP basis financial statements and an expenditure on the
budgetary basis financial schedules. When the outside agency pays down the line of credit,
the City records a reduction to its assets in the GAAP basis financial Statements and
revenues on the budgetary basis financial schedules.

Certain grant revenues, received in advance are recognized on the budgetary basis financial
statements, but are deferred and not recognized as revenue on the GAAP basis financial
statements. This process normally creates a variance in recognized revenue from the prior
year to the current year.

II1. Budget Revisions

On September 30, 2009, the City Council approved certain fiscal 2009 budget revisions that
increased appropriations for various expenditure categories. The budget amounts presented in
the accompanying schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - budget
and actual (budgetary basis) reflect such budget revisions.
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WALNUT CREEK
2121 hi. California Blvd., Suite 750

Walnut Creek, CA, 94596
925.274.0190

IV~ACIAS GINI ~ O!C.oNNELLu-~
Certified Public A~c0u’ntan~s & Managerfient c6nsult~n~S

.SACR~’v’~ENTO

OAKLAND

LO~ ANGELES

NEWPORT

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial R~pbrting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit Of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

City Council
City of San Jos6, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of San Jos6, California (the
City) as of and for the year ended June .30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 4, 2009. Our rePort contains an
explanatory paragraph describing the City’s adoption of. the provisions of Governmental Accounting
StandardsBoard (GASB) Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting~ for Pollution
Remediation Obligations. and an emphasis of a matter regarding an uncertainty related to a recently
passed State legislation. We conducted our audit, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government"Auditing Standards, issued by the Corn ptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting .......................
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of eXpressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveneSS Of the City’s internal
control over financial reperting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration Of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identifY all deficiencies in internal control tl~at r~ight be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant deficiencies. ..

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to pre~ent, or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or a combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more
than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City’s internal control. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying Federal Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
as findings #2009-A and #2009-B to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control
that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe that none of the
significant deficiencies described above is a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which couldhave a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of .noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated
November 4, 2009.

The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Federal
Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the City’s response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, the City’s management, and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and the State Controller’s Office, and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Certified Public Accountants

Walnut Creek, California
November 4, 2009
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MACiAS GINi O’CONNELL,u=
certified Public Accountants & Management Co~isultar~ts

2121N.Cali~rnla Blvd.,Suite 750
Walnut Cree~ CA 94596

925.274.0190

SACRA,MENTO

OAKLAND

SAN DIEGO

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program, the Passenger Facility Charges Program and

the Internet Crimes Against. Children State Grant Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB circular A-133

City Council
City of San Jos6 California

Cor~plianCe

We have audited the compliance of.the City of San Jos6, California (the City) with the types of
compliance req Uirements described in the U.SI office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement, the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies issued by the
Federal Aviation Administration (PFC. Guide), and the Recipient Handbook issued by the California
Emergenc~i Mariagement Agency (CalEMA) .that are app. cab .e tc~ ~ach"of ’t~.major federa prbgrams, the
passenger facility charges program, and the Internet Crimes Against Children (ICAC) State Grant
program, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2009. :The City’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompany ng Federal Awards Schedu e of
Findings and QUe~ti0hed Costs.. compiian~e Witl~ the requi~ern~ntSof i~w~, ~egu at 0ns,i~hiracts and
gra’nts apPliCable to e~l~ of its maj0il federal programs, the passenger fac ].ty ichargesiprogram an~ the
ICAC State Grant program is the responsibility Of the City’s management. Our responsibility ist0 express
an opinion on the City’s Compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; the PFC Guide; and the Recipient I~andbookl Th6se
standards, OMB Circular A-t33, the PFC Guide.and the Recipient Handbook require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program, the passenger facility charges program and the ICAC State Grant pr.ogram occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of
the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federa prog[ams, the passenger facility charges program and the ICAC
State Grant program for the year ended June 30, 2009. However, the results of our auditing procedures
disclosed an instance of noncompliance with those requirements, which is required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying Federal Awards
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as finding #2009-01.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs, the passenger facility charges program and the ICAC State Grant program. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program, the passenger facility charges
program, and the ICAC State Grant program in order’to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

Our.consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the City’s internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. However, as discussed
below, we identified a deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of
a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a
remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
more than inconsequential will not be prevented .or detected by the City’s internal control. We consider
the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Federal Awards
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as finding #2009-01 to be a significant deficiency.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program, the passenger facility charges program, or the ICAC State Grant program will not be
prevented or detected by the City’s internal control. We do not consider the deficiency described in the
accompanying Federal Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be a material weakness.

The city’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Federal
Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response, and
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, the City’s management, the
Federal Aviation Administration, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and the State
Controller’s Office, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Certified Public Accountants
Walnut Creek, California

Janua~ 5,2010
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CITY OF SAN JOSEj CALIFORNIA
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges

Year Ended June 30, 2009
Passenger Facility

Passenger Facility Charges Project Number/Description
Total Passenger Facility Charges Collection Revenues
Passenger Facility Charges Collections
Interest Earned on PFC Program
Passenger Facility Charges Projects

Identifying Charges Project Revenue
Number Amount Expenditures Recognized

#1 Communication Center Upgrade
#2 Fire Truck Replacement
#3 Handlift Replacement
#4 Noise Attenuation
#5 Noise Monitoring System Upgrade
#6 Noise Remedy/Land Acquisition
#7 Security Access Control System
#40a Runway 30L Reconstruction
#40b Runway 30L Extension
#41 Aircraft Noise & Operation Management System
#42 Emergency Command Post Relocation & Equipment
#43 Interim Federal Inspection Service (FIS) Facility
#44 Airfield Lighting Control System
#46 Ewert Road Improvements
#47 Skyport Access to Airport Boulevard
#48 Taxiway Y Pavement Reconstruction
#49 Transportation Access Plan, Terminal Area Concept
#50 Terminal C Ramp Lighting Improvement
#51 Acoustical Treatment of Four Eligible Schools
#52 Taxiway Z - Apron Reconstruction ( Phase II)
#53 Terminal C Fire Protection
#54 Fiber Optic Cable to ARC & Fire Station 29
#55 Green Island Bridge
#56 Replacement of AACS and CCTV
#57 Skyport Grade Separation
#58 Terminal Drive Improvements
#59 Replacement of PASSUR
#60 TerminaIC Restroom
#61 Interim Air Cargo Ramp Extension
#62 Runway 30R/12L Reconstruction
#63 Noise Attenuation Category I1 & III
#64 Taxiway Y Extension
#65 Extended Noise Attenuation
#66 Taxiway Y Reconstruction
#67 Terminal B- North Concourse
#68 Terminal B Extension, Phase I
#69 Roadway Improvements: Grade Separations

Total Passenger Facility Charge Projects

$ 17,415,668
1,498,633

92-01-C-00-SJC $ 528,691 $
92-01-C-00-SJC 599,826
92-01-C-00-SJC 103,000
92-01-C-06-SJC 47,792,121 192,353
92-01-c-00-sJc 184,000
92-01-c-00-sJc 5,133,000
92-01-c-07-sJc 1,032,000
98-06-1-00-sJc 72,022,700
98-06-1-00-sJc 38,671,724
99-07-c-00-sJc 100,000
99-07-c-00-sJc 150,000
99-08-c-02-sJc 36,879,750 62,193
99-07-c-00-sJc 200,000
99-07-c-00-sJc 408,208
99-07-c-00-sJc 1,083,000
99-07-c-01-sJc 2,100,000
99-07-c-01-sJc 1,200,401
99-07-c-00-sJc 37,000
99-07-c-01-sJc 7,500,000
00-1 l-C-OO-SJC 825,000
00-11-c-oo-sJc 580,000 10,064
00-11-c-oo-sJc 87,345
OO-ll-C-OO~SJC 825,000 -
00-11 -c-oo-sJc 4,418,645 -
00-1 l-C-OO-SJC 18,218,154
00-11-c-oo-sJc 1,146,165
00-11-c-00-sJc 221,000
00-11-c-oo-sJc 2,485,000 267
00-11-c-01-sJc 1,100,000
00-11-c-oo-sJc 84,105,103
00-11-c-00-sJc 4,500,000 725
00-11-c-oo-sJc 12,890,000 -
02-13-c-00-sJc 61,589,000 1,474,625
04-14-c-00-sJc 39,131,000 142,925
06-15-c-00-sJc 495,095,000
08-16-c-00-sJc 110,159,000 39,333,847
08-16-c-00-sJc 10,244,000 ’ 10,242,443

$    1,063,344,833 $ 51,459,442 $ 18,914,301

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2009

GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) presents the activity of
the federal award programs and the State of California - Internet Crimes Against Children State
Grant Program of the City of San Jose, California (the City). The City’s reporting entity is defined
in Note I to its basic financial statements. The SEFA includes all federal awards received directly
from federal agencies and federal awards passed-through other governmental agencies. In
addition, the SEFA includes local, state and other expenditures matched along with the federal
award expenditures.

The Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges (PFCs) presents
only the activity of the passenger facility charges program of the Norman Y. Mineta San Jose
International Airport (Airport), an enterprise fund of the City. PFCs are fees imposed on enplaned
passengers by the Airport for the purpose of generating revenue for Airport projects that increase
capacity, increase safety, mitigate noise impact and enhance competition between a,nd among air
carriers in accordance with Federal Aviation Administration approvals.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedules are presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting for
program expenditures accounted for in the governmental funds and the accrual basis of
accounting for program expenditures accounted for in the proprietary funds as described in Note I
to the City’s basic financial statements, with the exception of the City’s loan programs (see
Note 7). For reimbursable grants, except for the San Jose Water Reclamation & Reuse Program
as discussed in Note 9, which revenues are recognized upon Congressional appropriations, the
City recognizes revenues commencing on the date of grant approval since this is when the City is
eligible to claim expenditures for reimbursements. As a result, prior year expenditures are
included in the current year SEFA because these expenditures only become eligible when the
grant was approved.

RELATIONSHIP TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expenditures of federal awards and PFCs are reported in the City’s basic financial statements as
expenditures in the general, special revenue and capital projects funds and as expenses for non-
capital expenditures and as additions to capital assets for capital related expenditures in the
enterprise funds. Federal award expenditures agree or can be reconciled with the amounts
reported in the City’s basic financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the SEFA and Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger
Facility Charges agree to or can be reconciled with the amounts reported in the related federal
financial reports.

AIRPORT EXPENDITURES

The Federal Aviation Administration reimburses the Airport for approximately 80% of allowable
Airport Improvement Program (ALP) grant expenditures. The remaining unreimbursed portion of
grant expenditures, if eligible, are reimbursed from PFC revenue. Total allowable AlP
expenditures are presented in the accompanying SEFA.
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
Schedule of Revenues and Expen, ditures of Passenger Facility Charges (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2009

The accompanying Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges
includes approximately 20% of expenditures reimbursed by PFC revenue for /kip approved
projects and 100% for non-AlP approved projects.

AMOUNTS PROVIDED TO SUBREClPIENTS

Included in the total expendi[ures of federal awards are the follo~ving amounts passed through to
subrecipients:

(7)

Program Title
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants
Emergency Shelter Grants Program
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS
Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Adult Program
Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Youth Activities
Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Dislocated Workers
Highway Planning and Construction

Federal Catalog Pmvidedto
Number Subrecipients

14.218 $3,611,042
14.231 469,636
14.241 940,469
17.258 897,299
17.259 1,363,675
17.260 2,132,358
20.205 330,937

LOANS OUTSTANDING

The City participates in certain federal award programs that sponsor revolving loan programs,
which are administered by the City. These programs maintain servicing and trust arrangements
with the City to collect loan repayments. The funds are returned to the programs upon
repayment of the principal and interest. The federal government has imposed certain continuing
compliance requirements with respect to the loans under the Community Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants (CDBG) and the HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME). In
accordance with Subpart B, Section 205 of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
the City has reported the outstanding balance of loans from previous years that have continuing
compliance requirements as of June 30, 2009 along with the value of total outstanding and new
loans made during the current year in the schedule. The following is a summary of the loan
programs maintained by the City and their balances at June 30, 2009:

Prior year loans
with continuing

CFDA Amount compliance
Program Title Number Outstanding requirements New loans

Community Development
Block Grants/EntitlementGrants 14.218 $ 7,214,337 $ 6,883,411 $ 330,926

HOME Investment
Partnerships Program 14.239 44,218,973 39,612,448 4,606,525

$ 51,433,310 $ 46,495,859 $ 4,937,451
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passen,ger Facility Charges (Continued)

YearEndedJune 30,2009

PROGRAM TOTALS

The SEFA does not summarize all programs that receive funding from various funding sources or
grants by Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number. The following table
summarizes these programs by CFDA numbers.

CFDA Number - Program Title
Grant Identifying Number or Pass-through Grantor

WIA Cluster, pass-through State of California Employment Development Department
CFDA No. 17.258 - WIA Adult Program

R865486
R970569
R970569 - American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

CFDA No. 17.258 -WIA Adult Program Total

CFDA No. 17.259 - WIA Youth Activities Program
R865486                                  ’ ¯
R970569
R970569 - American Recovery. and Reinvestment Act of 2009

CFDA No. 17.259 -WIA Youth Activities Program Total

CFDA No. 17.260 - WIA Dislocated Workers Program
R865486
R970569
R970569 - American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

CFDA No. 17.260 -WIA Dislocated Workers Program Total

Total WIA Cluster

CFDA No. 20.205 - Federal-Aid Highway Program
Pass-through California Department of Transportation
Pass-through Metropolitan Transportation Commission

CFDA No. 20.205 - Federal-Aid Highway Program

Federal
Expenditures

$ 858,313
3,567,075

8,431

4,433,819

2,288,451
1,545,155

255,835

4,089,441

1,339,754
2,359,465

8,431

3,707,650

$ 12,230,910

$ 9,889,559
330,937

$ 10,220,496
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2009

SAN JOSE AREA WATER RECLAMATION & REUSE PROGRAM

The San Jose Area Water Reclamation & Reuse Program assists the City and tributary agencies
of the San Jose-Santa Clara Water Pollution Control Plant in protecting endangered species
habitats, achieving federally mandated water quality standards and reducing reliance on area
surface, ground water, and imported water supplies. The U.S. Department of Interior- Bureau of
Reclamation awarded the City $32.5 million in federal fiscal year 1995 and approved an increase
of $2.5 million in federal fiscal year 2000. Funding for subsequent years, up to $35 million, is
contingent upon subsequent Congressional appropriations acts. As a result of the timing of the
subsequent funding approvals, the City requests reimbursements for costs incurred in prior fiscal
years.

As of September 30, 2009, Congress appropriated $31,650,300 and the citY has cumulative
reimbursements of $28,070,300 of which $970,000 was claimed in fiscal year 2009 for
expenditures incurred in prior fiscal years. The City accrued the revenue and has in process a
$3,580,000 reimbursement request for fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 that is awaiting final
funding approval from the State Water Resources Control Board, the administering agent for the
U.S. Department of the Interior.

SPECIAL PROGRAMS FOR THE AGING TITLE III,
PART B GRANTS FOR SUPPORTIVE SERVICES AND SENIOR CENTERS GRANT

The City receives various pass-through grants from the Council on Aging of Silicon Valley.
During fiscal year 2009, the Council on Aging of Silicon Valley noted that the City underreported
its fiscal year 2008 expenditures in the amount of $10,800 related to the Special Programs for the
Aging III, Part B Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers (CFDA #93.044) grant. As a
result, the City included this expenditure amount reported in the fiscal year 2009 SEFA.

128



CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2009

(11) INTERNET CRIMES AGAINST CHILDREN (ICAC) STATE GRANT

Program Title
and Expenditure Category

lnternet Crimes Against Children
Task Force Program (Federal)

Personnel Services
Operating Expenses
Equipment

Total
Internet Crimes Against Children

. Task Force Program (State)
Personnel Services
Operating Expenses
Equipment

Total

The following schedule represents expenditures for the Internet Crimes Against Children Task
Force Program from the U.S. Department of Justice and the State of California Governor’s Office
of Emergency Service (OES) for the year ended June 30, 2009. This information is included in
the City’s Single Audit Report at the request of OES.

Cumulative Cumulative
Expense Expense

Grant Number through Actual 711108-6130109 through
Grant Period June 30, 2008 Non-match Match June 30, 2009 Revenue

2OO8 MC CX K002
7/t/08 - t2/31/2009 $

$

$ 63,t73 $ -. $ 63,173 $ 63,173
209,420 209,420 209,420

76,902 76,902 76,902
$ 349 495 t $ $ 349,495 $ 349,495

IC07017928
11112008-613012010 $ $ $ $ $

4,400 256,929 261,329 256,92,9
54,209 54,209 54,209’

$ 4,400 $ 311,138 2 $ $ 315,538 $ 311,138
1 Amount is reported as federal expenditures in the SEFA under CFDA number 16.543 for the Missing Children Assistance Grant, from the

U.S, Department of Justice.

2 Amount is reported as other expendit~lres in the SEFA under the State of California - Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force
Program. This grant isa State grant from the Law Enforcement and Victim Services Division of the Governor’s Office of Emergency
Services.

(12) SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On September 28, 2009, the Transportation Security Administration (TSA) executed a federal
grant agreement, HSTS04-09-HREC161 (Agreement) with the City of San Jos6. The estimated
project cost is $23,240,400, of which TSA agreed to reimburse ninety percent (90%) of the
allowable, allocable and reasonable costs of the Baggage Handling System Terminal B project
(Project) including design and construction management in addition to construction costs but not
to exceed a total reimbursement of $20,916,360. Although this grant agreement was executed in
fiscal year 2009-2010, the Agreement provides a provision that the cost recognition date for the
Project be effective in April 2009. Upon execution of the TSA grant agreement, the City has
prepared information for reimbursement requests for eligible expenditures incurred from
April 2009 and recognition of the related revenues from the date of the grant approval
(September 28, 2009) will be reported in subsequent years’ City financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Federal Awards Schedule of Finding~ and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Section I Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued on the basic financial
statements of the City: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

~ Material weakness (es) identified? No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?

Yes

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

~ Materialweakness (es) identified?

~ Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major .
programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?

Identification Of major programs:

No

Yes

Unqualified

Yes

Federal
Catalog
Number
14.218
14.231
14.239
16.543

17.258,17.259,17.260
20.106
97.100

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants
Emergency Shelter Grants Program
Home Investment Partnerships Program
Missing Children Assistance
Workforce Investment Act Cluster
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Checked Baggage Screening Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs: $2,170,176

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? No
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Federal Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Section II Financial Statement Findings

Finding #2009-A - Accounting for Variable Rate Demand Obligations

Criteria
Accounting standards require bonds that have demand provisions exercisable at the balance sheet date
be reported as a liability of the fund used to account for proceeds of the bond issue unless the following
conditions are met:’

Before the financial statements are issued, the issuer has entered into an arm’s-length financing
(take-out) agreement to convert bonds "put", but not resold, into some other form of long-term
obligation.

The take-out agreement does-not expire within one year from the date of the issuer’s balance sheet
or statement of net assets.

The take-out agreement is not cancelable by the lender or the prospective lender during that year,
and obligations incurred under the take-out agreement are not callable by the lender during that year.

¯ The lender or the prospective lender is expected to be financially capable of honoring the take-out
agreement.

If these conditions are met, such bonds should be reported by the issuer as a long-term liability.

Condition
Variable rate demand obligations (VRDOs) are bonds that by their terms have demand provisions
exercisable at the balance sheet date (June 30, 2009) or within one year from the date of that statement
(June 30, 2010). At June 30, 2009, the City and the San Jos~ Redevelopment Agency (RDA) combined
had $411.2 million of VRDOs outstanding. The key elements in determining classification of the VRDOs
as current or noncurrent are the standby liquidity agreement (credit facility) and/or the take-out
agreement. In order for the VRDOs to qualify as noncurrent obligations under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), the credit facility must provide short-term funds to redeem the bonds "put"
by the bondholder pending resale by the remarketing agent and the take-out agreement must provide
assurance that the issuer will be able to repay any borrowings under the credit facility in a manner that
preserves the long-term nature of the obligation.

At June 30, 2009, the RDA had $56.6 million of variable-rate Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 2003A/B
outstanding. These VRDOs were supported by a credit facility provided by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
(JP Morgan) with an expiration date of August 27, 2009. The Series 2003 A/B Bonds did not have a take-
out agreement in place (as described above). On July 31,2009, JP Morgan extended the RDA’s credit
facility for these bonds to November 26, 2009. However, the extension did not meet the requirements
under GAAP for continuing to report the bonds as noncurrent obligations. If the Series 2003A/B Bonds
were reclassified as current, the RDA would be required to report a fund liability in its capital projects fund
of $56.6 million, which would reduce its fund balance by the same amount. In order to preserve the long-
term nature of the bonds, the RDA negotiated a one-year extension of this credit facility to November 26,
2010. However, the. terms of the extension included a mandatory reduction of $5.3 million in the
aggregate amount of letters of credit that JP Morgan provided to the RDA. As a result, we proposed an
audit adjustment to record $5.3 million as a fund liability as of June 30, 2009. In addition to the
mandatory reduction to the credit facility, other terms of the credit facility extension are less favorable as
compared with the credit facility’s prior terms including:

¯ Increasing the Series 1996 A/B credit facility fees from 0.45% to 2.10%

¯ Increasing the Series 2003 A/B credit facility fees from 1.50% to 2.30%
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Federal Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Finding #2009-A - Accounting for Variable Rate Demand Obligations (Continued)

Requiring a new debt coverage covenant

¯ Increas!ng the interest rates of the amounts drawn on the credit facility from the greater of prime or
the sum of the federal funds rate plus 0.5% to an interest rate the greater of 8.5%, prime plus 1.5%,
or federal funds rate plus 2.0%.

Cause
Over the past year, the extreme turmoil in the financial markets resulted in considerable pressures on the
supply of credit facilities for the VRDO market. As a result, credit facilities have recently been issued for
shorter durations and with more stringent terms thereby increasing the risk that the City or RDA may
misclassify these potential short-term obligations as long-term obligations.

Recommendation
Given the City’s and RDA’s reliance on third party VRDO credit facilities and the trends and pressures
noted above in the VRDO market, we recommend evaluating the financial and operational implications
should conditions related to the availability of such credit facilities worsen in the future. Additionally, we
suggest expanding the traditional finance focused monitoring efforts related to bond obligations (e.g.,
covenant compliance and disclosure) to include coordination with the City’s GAAP reporting unit to
ensure changes impacting classifications or display are properly considered and reflected in the financial
statements.

Management’s Response
With respected to the City’s debt portfolio, Debt Management staff meets with Specialized Accounting
staff on approximately a bimonthly basis to coordinate activities related to the City’s debt portfolio. These
meetings will be updated to include discussions related to the renewal of credit facilities supporting
outstanding debt.

Additionally~ the City continually monitors the City’s credit facilities and counterparty risks. Well in
advance of any renewal request date, such as three to six months prior the commitment expiration, staff
contacts the credit provider to better understand their willingness to renew a credit facility. Based on the
City’s very high credit ratings,-~ncluding a AAA rating from S&P, and its long-standing relationships with
numerous credit providers, staff anticipates that it will be possible to either renew existing credit facilities,
acquire new credit facilities, or refund debt in a timely manner. For example, staff was able to
successfully refund all of the City’s long-term variable-rate debt within a 12 month period to address
challenges in the financial markets. These refundings included two series or Airport Revenue Bonds,
eight series of Lease Revenue Bonds, and one series of Sewer Revenue Bonds.

With respect to the Agency’s debt and the related variable rate demand obligations, the Agency began
working to extend the Letter of Credit before the expiration date of August 27, 2009. However, the
negotiation with JP Morgan was longer than expected due to changes in the Letter of Credit market as a
result of the current worldwide economic and financial market disruptions. Negotiations were not
completed until October. On October 27, 2009, the Agency Board approved the new terms and
conditions for extending the 2003 Bond’s Letter of Credit including extending the Letter of Credit for the
1996 Bonds to November 26, 2010.

The new terms and conditions als0 required a mandatory reduction of $5.3 million on the outstanding
1996 and 2003 bonds, which required an early redemption of.$5.3 million by November 27, 2009. This
redemption required recognition of a $5.3 million short-term liability for these variable rate demand
obligations, which was included in the June 30, 2009 financial statements along with the required
disclosures.
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CITY OF S,AN JOSE,.CALIFORNIA

Federal Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Finding #2009-B - Housing Loan Reserves Calculations

Criteria
The City considers Governmental Fund resources to be available if they are collected within 60 days after
year-end. The availability criterion principle requires that the related receivable be offset with a liability
when the receivable is not collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter. In addition to
the offsetting of the governmental fund’s loan receivables, the City also prepares a loan portfolio analysis
and computes a valuation allowance using a complex spreadsheet to record against its loans receivable.

Condition
During our audit, we noted that the City recorded both an offset to the inclusionary and developer loans’
receivable balance and a valuation allowance in the amount of $11.5 million. As a result, the fund
balance of the Housing Activities Fund was understated by $11.5 million at June 30, 2009. In addition,
we noted that the Housing Department’s loan portfolio analysis included errors in the maturity dates
which led to potential understatement of the loan portfolio’s discount reserve by $0.9 million.

Cause                               "
During the past two years, we noted that City departments worked together collaboratively and made
significant progress towards improving the Housing Department’s loan reserve calculations. The City’s
loan committee composed of members from the Finance Department and the Housing Department re-
analyzed the loan loss reserve calculation with the main goal of re-analyzing the loan loss reserve
worksheet to accurately record the maturity ~late stated on the promissory notes. However, the Housing
Department continues to experience accounting and clerical errors and requires additional training on
these complex and non-routine year-end loan loss reserve computations and analysis.

Recommendation
We recommend the Finance Department continue to train its financial statement preparers and reviewers
on the recording of its loan balances and allowances on these balances and its related deferred revenues
and reserved fund balances.

Management Response
As noted above, the Housing and Finance Departments have worked together collaboratively and made
significant progress towards improving the Housing Department’s loan reserve calculations. In addition,
the Housing Department has implemented controls to review the maturity dates of ~il existing loans in
order to ensure that the loan loss reserve calculations are accurate. The conditions noted in this finding
were detected through the audit process and the appropriate adjustment was included in the’ financial
statements as of June 30, 2009. The Housing Department will continue to train their staff to prevent
cleri’cal errors in the computations from happening in the future. The Housing and Finance Department
management will also continue to stress the importance of providing the appropriate level of training and
oversight in preparing and reviewing loan loss reserve schedules and fund financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Federal Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned .Costs

Finding 2009-01 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) Completeness

U.S Department of Health and Human Services
Special Program,s for the Aging_Title III, Part B_Grants for Supportive

Services and Senior Centers, CFDA #93.044
Passthrough Council on Aging of Silicon Valley
Corporation for National and Community Services
Senior Companion Program, CFDA #94.016

Criteria
The U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and
Non-Profits Organizations (OMB Circular A-133), requires that the city prepare a schedule showing total
expenditures for the year for each federal program. Further, OMB Circular A-133 requires that the auditor
identity and audit all high-risk type A federal programs. The City’s Type A programs are those with current
year expenditures exceeding $2,170,176

Condition
During our audit, we noted that the City included the following misstatements in its draft schedule of
expenditures of federal awards (SEFA):

CFDA #93.044 Special Programs for the Aging_Title III, Part B Grants for Supportive Services
and Senior Centers understated prior year federal expenditureS in the amount of $10,800. In
addition, the SEFA incorrectly reported this grant as a direct federal grant instead of indicating
that this grant is pass-through the Council on Aging of Silicon Valley.

CFDA #94.016 Senior Companion Program overstated prior year other expenditures by $10,800.
These expenditures should have been reported as federal expenditures under CFDA #93.044, as
discussed above.

The City subsequently corrected the expenditure amounts reported in its fiscal year 2009 SEFA.

Effect
The City’s SEFA serves as the basis in determining the number of major programs required to be audited
in a fiscal year. Inaccuracy in its SEFA reporting may result in high-risk Type A programs not captured
for testing and Type B programs not subject to the required audit risk assessment.

Questioned Cos~
N~

Recommendation
The City should develop a grants manual to provide guidance to grant administrators in City departments.
In addition to completing the grants manual, we recommend the City develop and implement a mandatory
single audit training program that is conducted at least annually. The training program should address
expectations of the single audit, provide for changes and updates in available resources (e.g. the OMB
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement) and requirements, and provide guidance and updates on
identification of funding source (federal, state and other) and on when to [ecord revenues and
expenditures in the general ledger. In addition, the City should improve its process in requiring the
preparation and review of each grant reconciliations of its expenditures (both claimed and unclaimed)
reported in the SEFA to the general ledger and related revenues.
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Federal Awards Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Management Response and Corrective Action Plan
Finance staff will work withdepartment personnel City-wide to ensure that grant administration staff
receive appropriate training and guidance associated with the Single Audit reporting requirements. In
fiscal year 2007-08, the Finance Department implemented a new internal process requiring City
departments to provide a reconciliation of reimbursable grant expenditures reported on the SEFA
schedule to expenditures recorded in the City’s accounting system. Finance staff will continue to provide
assistance to City-wide grant administration staff to ensure that year end grant reports accurately report
grant expenditures on the SEFA and that appropriate documentation is provided during the grant program
testing process (was corrected).
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CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Passenger Facility Charges Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Section I Summary of Auditor’s Results
\

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued on the basic financial
statements of the City:

Internal control over financial reporting:

¯ Materi~il weakness (es) identified?

¯ Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?

Unqualified

No

Yes

No

Passenger Facility Charges

Internal control over Passenger Facility Charges:

¯ Materialweakness (es) identified?

¯ Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for the
Passenger Facility Charges program:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133 in
relation to the Passenger Facility Charge program?

No

None reported

Unqualified

No

Section II Financial Statement Findings

See Financial Statement Findings Items #2009-A and #2009-B in Federal Awards Schedule of Findings
and Questioned Costs.

Section III Passenger Facility Charges Findings and Questioned Costs

None repo~ed.
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Reference Number:

Audit Finding:

CITY OF SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2009

The City should continue to evaluate its process of closing of cases to
ensure that all close cases are properly removed from the Claims
Management Systems to avoid overstatement of the reserve balance
and the worker’s compensation claims liability. The City shouid also
evaluate its training program to ensure that it has the appropriate level
of expertise to ensure that the controls over the database system claims
information are adequate to meet financial reporting and State
compliance requiromen~ts.

Status of Corrective Action: Corrected in during the year ended June 30, 2009.
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